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2019 ANNUAL RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is
pleased to announce the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019. This announcement, containing the full text of the 2019
annual report of the Company (the “2019 Annual Report”), complies with the relevant requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) in relation to information to accompany preliminary announcements of annual
results. This annual results announcement and the 2019 Annual Report will be available for viewing on
the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and of the Company at
www.scudgroup.com. The printed version of the 2019 Annual Report will be delivered to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

Turnover

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Total assets

EBITDA

Basic and diluted earnings per share
(RMB cents)

Cash position

Current ratio (Times)

Total debt to equity ratio (%)

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

2019

7,395,203
48,696

52,543
5,183,200
183,137

4.82
406,197
1.1

551

2018

6,962,078
96,084

93,274
4,932,165
161,014

8.56
182,529
1.2
39.0

% Change
(+/-)

+6.2%
-49.3%

-43.7%
+5.1%
+13.7%

-43.7%
+122.5%
N/A

N/A

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with the senior management of the Company the

accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, discussed auditing and financial reporting

matters and reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31

December 2019 before they presented the same to the Board for approval.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Having been developing its “SCUDFRERE " brand since 1997 and listed
on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 21
December 2006, SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD" or the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is one of the leading providers of lithium
power solution for consumer electronics and smart hardware products
and one of the leading manufacturers of lithium-ion battery module
packaging and integration in the PRC.

Since its establishment, the Group has been focusing on the R&D and
application of lithium-ion battery, and mainly engaged in provision of
lithium power solutions and products to well-known international and
domestic mobile communication companies and Internet technology
companies. Supported by its self-developed and designed power
management system with high reliability as well as advanced technology in
battery module packaging, the Group’s lithium-ion battery products enjoy
high safety and high reputation in the industry. The Group accumulated
rich industry expertise and experience through the manufacture and sale
of various lithium-battery products to its customers under its own “SCUD
FRERR” brand, and by grasping the opportunities arising from the global
transfer from feature phones to smartphones for the growth in the PRC
ODM mobile phone battery market, the Group has been able to expand
rapidly in the field of ODM mobile phone battery manufacturing and
sales, and has established a solid industry position. The core business of
the Group is mainly the supply of quality lithium-ion battery modules for
original mobile telecommunication, mobile digital, smart electronics and
smart hardware products by entering into the supply chain systems of
well-known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. The high-quality customer groups
served by the Group have strong competitiveness and stable shares
in the end market, laying a foundation for the Group’s sustained and
stable growth. The high reliability of the Group’s product, mass delivery
capabilities and standardised and efficient operating systems give the
Group a competitive edge.

REBREB ARG ([RER I ARE]]) REHE
NA([AREE]) B1997F B3 B & & 2 SCUDRE
BE] - 2006F12 A21 BB BB ER ZERAAE
RET  REAELENEEETMEEEFERES
TRERR T RIZE AR T BB A R SR RSN
Z—o

REBAMK AR —E B TR T E A RER
TEABRBRREANMERE BN EMEBAER KO
RIEEBEREAFTRIER - BES ETMERTHE
BEBRFNERIERAENEORAER RS
B SASENERTEHNERTERZERTRM
MEmEEMOE - NEEBBE AR SCUDRELR]
MERERHES BN FENERTENEEBRP
MERTEEMNTEZENZE LA - WILEZIK
RETF 1 M) T B F IR BR84S P BIODMF B it T 5 )15
FHB - SAREBBATEODMTHE i BUE K s E48
R RIESR - 25 E Y TIREMI TR - AEE
BOEBEERBBEABNIINNEREBANLER
ERANMECEMNBEERER  AREEZSEM 2
BHEREEET  SEEGEREESES 8T
Bt o AEBEMRENEERFHENIETSES
BAMBFNANBENNE  AASERERTER
EERTEM ERMEMNSASMNE - KRR
LRBERNEEE AN AEENHERES -



The Group’s main production base is located in an industrial park in Fuzhou,
the PRC, which is well-equipped with extensive and advanced facilities.
Accumulated with years of production and management experiences, the
industrial park has built up a modernised manufacturing system featuring
refined management, standardised governance and high efficiency. The
Group has strict quality control system and environmental management
system, whereby it emphasises the use of advanced processes and
automated equipment in its product production process and implements
strict process control during the manufacturing process to fully meet the
requirements of scale production and ensure each product is of a high
quality. Such procedures enhanced the Group’s market competitiveness
through the improvement of business operating efficiency and better
cost control. The Group follows advance international standards by
adopting strict control throughout its production process including
selection of suppliers, raw materials procurement, and production and
quality control to provide customers with safe and reliable products.
Abundant bare battery cell resources and complete industrial chain for
battery production provide the Group with production advantages, and
the Group has become one of the most important R&D and production
bases for lithium-ion battery products, mobile communication and digital
product accessories nationwide.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
(RMB thousand except where otherwise stated)

HZE2019F12A31BILEE
(BrBAHEFRIN  LARBFILIIR)

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 % Change
AREBTRE AREBTT #ZHasSH

(+/-)
Turnover E 7,395,203 6,962,078 +6.2%
Profit for the year NG R 48,696 96,084 -49.3%
Profit for the year attributable to KARHEAR A
owners of the Company E(ERFE R 52,543 93,274 -43.7%
Earnings per share BRAEF
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAREE(ARES) 4.82 8.56 -43.7%
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
SCUD Group Limited (“SCUD", the “Company” or, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results
of the Company for the full year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019 (the “Review Period"”).

Looking back at 2019, the Group’s main business, i.e. ODM business,
focused on the production of lithium-ion battery products, which are
mainly used in 3C consumer electronics and smart hardware products
such as smartphones and power banks. The main customers are well-
known mobile communication companies and internet technology
companies in the PRC and abroad. With the increasing breadth and
depth of cooperation between the Group and customers, the Group’s
consolidated market position has made the Group a major supplier of
lithium batteries for smartphones and consumer electronics.

Adjusting development strategy in response to market changes is an
important step of the successful and continuous expansion of the business.
During the Review Period, the Group adjusted its business strategy by
concentrating resources on strengthening the growing ODM business and
officially terminating the own-brand business under its “SCUDFRTERR"
brand at the end of 2019, thereby re-integrating the existing resources
to cater for the sustainable development plan of its ODM business. As
the existing production capacity of the Scud Battery Industrial Park of
the Group has been fully utilised in recent years, the Group needs to
be equipped with new production facilities and supporting facilities for
its future business. Therefore, the Group implemented the expansion
plan of the Scud Battery Industrial Park in mid-2019 to enhance the
Group’s production capacity, and the new design of the new plant
lays a good foundation for optimising the production process, further
consolidating and improving the production quality, and expanding the
delivery capacity of the Group.

In addition, the Group’s ODM business customers have been expanding
the mobile phone market in India in recent years. It is expected that the
large population of India will bring great growth potential to the Indian
mobile phone market. During the Review Period, the Group established
a battery assembly plant in India through a joint venture to mainly
provide mobile phone battery and power bank assembly services to its
customers in India, which will meet customer needs and also enhance
the competitive advantage of the Group’s ODM business abroad.
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During the Review Period, the Group was devoted to improving its quality
control system to continuously improve its production efficiency and
technological level to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high
safety standards. As for customers, the Group is constantly looking for
more partners to cooperate with, and the provision of quality battery
supply that meets the needs of existing customers has become the key
factor for maintaining steady growth in the Group’s ODM business. In
respect of supply, in order to provide customers with assured quality,
the Group, through its careful selection of supplier partners, ensured
that it can provide its customers with high quality and diversified
battery cell options and make greater efforts to satisfy its customers.
As for production, the Group continued to upgrade and transform its
automated production line to ease the pressure faced by the consumer
electronics manufacturing industry on operating costs in recent years. In
addition, apart from product safety, focusing on the environmental and
social impact of production and ensuring work safety are also the Group’s
primary tasks. We have always ensured production and operation are
conducted in a way in which we shoulder social responsibilities, and we
will continue to develop the business in a healthy way to provide high
quality products for customers while providing a safe and comfortable
work environment for our staff.

In 2019, the Group continued to invest significant resources to improve
our corporate governance. Our internal risk management department
designed and implemented a risk management system and assisted
the Board in overseeing the implementation and effectiveness of the
risk management framework and process. The Group re-appointed
a professional adviser to assist the Group in improving our internal
control system and conducting regular view of various risk management
measures. The Group’s management is of the view that good corporate
governance is very important for the maintenance and enhancement of
the confidence of the Company’s shareholders, and is the key to the
development of the Group’s business and safeguarding the interests of
the Company’s shareholders. The Group will enhance the corporate value,
transparency and sense of responsibility through the implementation of
rules and regulations, strict enforcement of internal control, improvement
of risk prevention and management and prompt disclosure of data
in a transparent and comprehensive manner, so as to maintain good
corporate governance.
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Looking ahead, the Group will proactively pay attention to the application
of lithium-ion batteries in new industries and new fields and grasp
opportunities for access to the market. In addition, the Group attaches
great importance to the safety of using batteries for electronic products.
In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance of battery, the Group
will conduct more rigorous review of the safety of its battery products
to ensure that all manufactured batteries meet high safety standards.
Riding on high quality customer resources, quality assurance and
technology development capacity, the Group commits to the provision
of safe, portable and endurable green energy products for customers
and consumers.

On behalf of the Board and the management team, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to all staff, directors,
customers, suppliers, shareholders and institutions providing professional
services to the Group for all your support to the Group throughout these
challenging times.

Ho Chung Tai Raymond
Chairman
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INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to the information published by the market research firm IDC,
smartphones recorded global shipments of approximately 1.371 billion
units in 2019, dropped by approximately 2.3% as compared with 1.403
billion units last year. Looking back on the year of 2019, the development
of the global smartphone industry has entered a mature period, the
growth momentum has gradually weakened, and the saturation trend
of 4G market has already appeared. Although the global demand for
smartphones has slowed down, the demand for smartphones in some
emerging markets is still growing, and the market penetration will
further increase. The decline in global smartphone shipments was due
to the fact that consumers were still waiting for the launch of cheaper
5G phones and the improvement in 5G network coverage and speed,
resulting in weak market demand.

Lithium-ion battery is widely used in the field of smartphones for its
high energy density and long life cycle. With the rise in demand by
consumers for mobile internet, mobile payment and mobile games,
mobile phone manufacturers are proactively rolling out more high-
end models with advanced features, and the demand for lithium-ion
batteries with higher quality and higher energy density is increasing.
Apart from this, laptops, tablets, smart wearable and smart homes will
also be the driving forces for the demand for lithium-ion battery. The
biggest bottleneck of smartphones at present is the battery capacity. As
the battery technology is further improved, the peripheral hardware and
functions will also be improved. The arrival of 5G is not only a change
in the Internet access rate of mobile phones, but also a breakthrough
in new technologies. The widespread commercialisation of 5G networks
will bring new challenges to batteries.

Looking forward to 2020, with the further deployment of 5G base
stations and the introduction of more 5G mobile phones, 5G is likely
to be the largest variable in the market. In the past, there have been
two major phone replacement waves, one was upgrade from 2G to
3G and the other was upgrade from 3G to 4G. Therefore, the formal
issuance of domestic 5G commercial licenses and the increasing number
of 5G terminals entering the market have gradually attracted consumers’
attention to 5G. With the gradual launch of 5G mobile phones in the
market, the smartphone market landscape will change. It is expected
that in the next few years the smartphone market will experience a 5G
replacement wave, and the expected demand for lithium-ion batteries
will increase accordingly.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The current business of the Group comprises ODM business, own-
brand business and bare battery cell business. During the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the”Review Period”), the Group's
consolidated turnover amounted to approximately RMB7,395.2 million
(2018: RMB6,962.1 million), increased by approximately 6.2% compared
with 2018. The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately RMB52.5 million (2018: RMB93.3 million). Basic and
diluted earnings per share was approximately RMB4.82 cents (2018:
RMB8.56 cents). The ODM business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB6,870.5 million (2018: RMB6,460.7 million), accounting for
approximately 92.9% (2018: 92.8%) of the Group’s consolidated
turnover. The own-brand business recorded a turnover of approximately
RMB44.7 million (2018: RMB63.2 million), accounting for approximately
0.6% (2018: 0.9%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. The bare
battery cell business recorded a turnover of approximately RMB284.5
million (2018: RMB231.3 million), accounting for approximately 3.8%
(2018: 3.3%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover.

ODM Business

ODM business is the main business of the Group. It provides complete
lithium power supply solutions and lithium-ion battery products for
well-known mobile communication companies and Internet technology
companies at home and abroad, which are mainly used in 3C consumer
electronics and smart hardware such as smartphones and power bank
products. The Group focuses on manufacturing lithium-ion batteries and
R&D on application technology over the years. Our experienced ODM
product development team is able to develop, design and optimise
battery solutions jointly with customers that align with customer needs.
With powerful manufacturing capacity, reliable quality assurance system,
premium bare battery cells, state-of-the-art protection circuit design and
precise production process control, the Group has secured a leading
position in the industry. The Group attaches great importance to the
safety of batteries. In the pursuit of high efficiency and endurance
of battery, the Group ensures that all the batteries meet high safety
standards.
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The ODM business continued to grow in 2019. During the Review Period,
sales volume of ODM mobile phone batteries decreased by approximately
6.2% year-on-year to approximately 176.8 million pieces (2018: 188.5
million pieces) and turnover increased by approximately 0.5% year-
on-year to approximately RMB6,044.8 million (2018: RMB6,015.8
million). In 2019, turnover of ODM mobile phone batteries represented
approximately 88.0% (2018: 93.1%) of turnover of the ODM business.
ODM power bank contributed turnover of approximately RMB787.7
million (2018: RMB429.2 million), represented approximately 11.5%
(2018: 6.6%) of turnover of the ODM business. During the Review Period,
the ODM business recorded net profit of approximately RMB96.8 million
(2018: RMB143.3 million).

In recent years, in order to enhance the production capacity of ODM
business, the Group has gradually integrated various resources. Through
re-allocation of resources and addition of automated equipment, it
has improved production efficiency and further improved the control
system. However, as the existing production capacity of the Scud Battery
Industrial Park has been fully utilised, the Group needs to be equipped
with new production facilities and auxiliary facilities for the future
production needs of the business. Accordingly, the Group implemented
the expansion plan of the Scud Battery Industrial Park in mid-2019. The
new plant will provide additional production capacity for the Group,
while its new design will also provide fundamental conditions as basis
for the optimisation of the production process as well as the further
consolidation and improvement of the product quality of the Group. It
is expected that the new factories will be put into use in the first half
of 2020.

In addition, the Group’s ODM business customers have been expanding
the mobile phone market in India in recent years. It is expected that the
large population of India will bring great growth potential to the Indian
mobile phone market. During the Review Period, the Group established a
battery assembly plant in India through a joint venture to mainly provide
mobile phone battery and power bank assembly services to ODM business
customers in India, which can meet customer needs and also enhance
the competitive advantage of the Group's ODM business abroad.
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Looking ahead, the Group as a mainstream ODM supplier of mobile
phone batteries and power banks in the PRC will certainly maintain
a clear competitive advantage in the ODM market of mobile phone
battery and power bank supported by the stable demand of existing and
new customers. The Group will grasp the market development trend,
extend the application of lithium-ion batteries to other fields, and create
greater development space for the Group. In respect of operations, in
order to effectively expand the business scale, the Group will increase
the shipment scale and operating efficiency through integrating existing
resources, strictly controlling costs, constructing new production plants
and supporting facilities, and strengthening research and development
capabilities, thereby laying a solid foundation for further sustainable,
healthy and rapid development of the Group.

Own-brand Business

The own-brand business mainly consists of sale of various kind of lithium-
ion battery products in the PRC under our “SCUDRERR" brand. During
the Review Period, the Group adjusted its business strategy by officially
terminating the own-brand business under our “SCUDZERE” brand at
the end of 2019 and re-integrating the existing resources to cater for
the sustainable development of the ODM business.

During the Review Period, the own-brand business recorded consolidated
turnover of approximately RMB44.7 million (2018: RMB63.2 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 29.3% year-on-year. Own-
brand power banks recorded sales volume of approximately 0.3 million
pieces (2018: 0.5 million pieces), representing a decrease of approximately
41.3% year-on-year and contributing turnover of approximately RMB18.1
million (2018: RMB27.8 million). Own-brand mobile phone batteries
recorded turnover of approximately RMB14.1 million (2018: RMB13.2
million), representing an increase of approximately 6.8% year-on-year.
During the Review Period, no sales revenue (2018: RMB14.9 million) was
derived from sales of power management module. During the Review
Period, the own-brand business recorded net profit of approximately
RMB3.4 million (2018: RMB1.1 million).

Bare Battery Cell Business

During the Review Period, the bare battery cell business recorded
consolidated turnover of approximately RMB284.5 million (2018:
RMB231.3 million), representing an increase of approximately 23.0%
year-on-year. During the Review Period, bare battery cell business
recorded net loss of approximately RMB11.5 million (2018: net profit

RMB14.7 million).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Review Period, the Group recorded consolidated turnover
of approximately RMB7,395.2 million (2018: RMB6,962.1 million),
representing an increase by approximately 6.2% as compared to that
in 2018. Gross profit for the Group was approximately RMB530.5 million
(2018: RMB559.7 million), representing a decrease by approximately
5.2% as compared to that in 2018. The profit for the year and profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company were approximately
RMB48.7 million (2018: RMB96.1 million) and approximately RMB52.5
million (2018: RMB93.3 million) respectively, representing a decrease
by approximately 49.3% and 43.7% year-on-year respectively. The
Group recorded EBITDA of approximately RMB183.1 million (2018:
RMB161.0 million) for the year, representing an increase by approximately
13.7% as compared to 2018. Basic and diluted earnings per share was
approximately RMB4.82 cents (2018: RMB8.56 cents).

Turnover by segments

During the Review Period, turnover of approximately RMB6,870.5 million
(2018: RMB6,460.7 million) was generated from the ODM business
segment, which accounted for approximately 92.9% (2018: 92.8%) of
the Group’s consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately RMB44.7
million (2018: RMB63.2 million) was generated from the own-brand
business segment, which accounted for approximately 0.6% (2018:
0.9%) of the Group's consolidated turnover. Turnover of approximately
RMB284.5 million (2018: RMB231.3 million) was contributed by the bare
battery cell business segment, which accounted for approximately 3.9%
(2018: 3.3%) of the Group's consolidated turnover.

Sales by major products

During the Review Period, sales of approximately RMB6,058.9 million
(2018: RMB6,028.9 million) were generated from the sale of mobile
phone batteries, which accounted for approximately 81.9% (2018:
86.6%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover. Sales of power banks
amounted to approximately RMB805.8 million (2018: RMB456.9 million),
which accounted for approximately 10.9% (2018: 6.6%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover. Sales of approximately RMB284.5 million (2018:
RMB231.3 million) were generated from the sale of bare battery cells,
which accounted for approximately 3.8% (2018: 3.3%) of the Group's
consolidated turnover.
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Segment Results

For the ODM business segment, total turnover contributed to the Group
during the Review Period increased by approximately 6.3% year-on-year
to approximately RMB6,870.5 million (2018: RMB6,460.7 million). During
the Review Period, the sales volume of ODM mobile phone batteries
decreased by approximately 6.2% to approximately 176.8 million pieces
(2018: 188.5 million pieces) and the turnover of ODM mobile phone
batteries increased by approximately 0.5% to approximately RMB6,044.8
million (2018: RMB6,015.8 million), which accounted for approximately
88.0% (2018: 93.1%) of the Group’s ODM sales. Sales volume of ODM
power banks was approximately 8.4 million pieces (2018: 6.2 million
pieces). Sales of ODM power banks amounted to approximately RMB787.7
million (2018: RMB429.2 million), accounted for approximately 11.5%
(2018: 6.6%) of the Group’s ODM sales. During the Review Period, the
ODM business recorded net profit of approximately RMB96.8 million
(2018: RMB143.3 million).

For the own-brand business segment, the turnover contributed to the
Group during the Review Period decreased by approximately 29.3%
year-on-year to approximately RMB44.7 million (2018: RMB63.2 million).
During the Review Period, sales volume of own-brand power banks
decreased by approximately 41.3% to approximately 0.3 million pieces
(2018: 0.5 million pieces). Sales of own-brand power banks amounted
to approximately RMB18.1 million (2018: RMB27.8 million), which
accounted for approximately 40.6% (2018: 43.9%) of the Group’s own-
brand sales. As for other own-brand products, sales of own-brand mobile
phone batteries accounted for approximately 31.4% (2018: 20.8%)
of the Group’s own-brand sales, which contributed approximately
RMB14.1 million (2018: RMB13.2 million) to the Group’s own-brand
sales . During the Review period, the own-brand business recorded net
profit of approximately RMB3.4 million (2018: RMB1.1 million).

For the bare battery cell business segment, total turnover contributed to
the Group during the Review Period increased by approximately 23.0%
year-on-year to approximately RMB284.5 million (2018: RMB231.3
million). The bare battery cell business segment recorded net loss of
approximately RMB11.5 million in 2019 (2018: net profit RMB14.7
million).
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB6,864.7
million in 2019 (2018: RMB6,402.4 million), representing an increase of
approximately 7.2% as compared to 2018. The increase in cost of sales
in 2019 was in line with the increase in sales during the Review Period.
Direct materials, direct labour and other production costs accounted for
approximately 91.5% (2018: 92.6%), 6.4% (2018: 5.4%) and 2.1%
(2018: 2.0%) of the cost of sales respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The overall gross profit margin of the Group in 2019 decreased to
approximately 7.2% (2018: 8.0%) as a result of a decrease in gross
profit margin for the ODM business segment during the Review Period.

For the ODM business, the overall gross profit margin in 2019 was
approximately 6.8% (2018: 8.0%). For the own-brand business, the
overall gross profit margin in 2019 was approximately 17.7% (2018:
10.0%). For the bare battery cell business, the gross profit margin in
2019 was approximately 17.0% (2018: 14.8%).

Other revenue of approximately RMB98.0 million (2018: RMB85.3 million)
in 2019 mainly comprised of bank interest income, revenue from sales
of moulds, reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and
other receivables previously recognised and government grants. Other
revenue increased as the other revenue in 2019 included an amount
of RMB23.8 million being reversal of impairment loss on prepayments,
deposits and other receivables previously recognised and government
grants amounted to approximately RMB38.2 million.

Selling and distribution expenses of approximately RMB109.7 million
(2018: RMB96.1 million) accounted for approximately 1.5% (2018:
1.4%) of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2019. The selling and
distribution expenses mainly comprised of entertainment expenses,
advertising and promotion, transportation expenses, office expenses
and staff salaries and welfare. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in office expenses and
transportation expenses.

Administrative expenses of approximately RMB308.3 million (2018:
RMB290.9 million) accounted for approximately 4.2% (2018: 4.2%)
of the Group’s consolidated turnover in 2019. Administrative expenses
mainly comprised of R&D expenses, staff salaries and welfare, staff
training expenses, bank charges, legal and professional fees, office
supplies, depreciation and rental expenses. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly attributable to the increase in staff salaries and
welfare and staff training expenses during the Review Period.
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Other operating expenses of approximately RMB106.0 million (2018:
RMB98.7 million) mainly comprised of the impairment loss recognised
on inventories, property, plant and equipment and trade and other
receivables. The increase in other operating expenses was mainly due to
the increase in the impairment loss recognised on inventories in 2019.

Finance costs of approximately RMB48.3 million (2018: RMB54.1 million)
mainly represent interest on bank borrowings. The decrease in finance
costs was mainly due to the decrease in interest incurred on discounted
notes receivable during the Review Period.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

In 2019, the Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately RMB52.5 million (2018: RMB93.3 million). The decrease
in profit attributable to owners of the Company was mainly due to the
decrease in gross profit margin for the ODM business segment during
the Review Period.

Treasury Management and Cash Funding

The Group'’s funding and treasury policy is designed to maintain a
diversified and balanced debt profile and financing structure. The
Group continues to monitor its cash flow position and debt profile,
and to enhance the cost-efficiency of funding initiatives by its centralised
treasury function. In order to maintain financial flexibility and adequate
liquidity for the Group's operations, potential investments and growth
plans, the Group has built a strong base of funding resources and will
keep exploring cost-efficient ways of financing.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents held by the Group as at 31 December 2019
was approximately RMB406.2 million (at 31 December 2018: RMB182.5
million), principally denominated in Renminbi, representing an increase by
approximately RMB223.7 million year-on-year. The increase in cash and
cash equivalent was mainly due to the increase in cash inflow generated
from financing activities and the decrease in net cash used in investing
activities during the Review Period. The Group recorded a net cash inflow
from operating activities of approximately RMB310.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: RMB392.9 million), representing a
decrease by RMB82.1 million as compared to that in 2018.
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The Group's borrowings, principally denominated in Renminbi, which
were outstanding as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
RMB592.1 million (at 31 December 2018: RMB400.0 million). Bank
borrowings amounting to approximately RMB40.0 million (at 31
December 2018: RMB40.0 million) and approximately RMB542.7 million
(at 31 December 2018: RMB340.6 million) were carried at floating
interest rate and fixed interest rate respectively. Other loans amounting to
approximately RMB9.4 million (at 31 December 2018: RMB19.4 million)
were carried at fixed interest rate. A total of approximately RMB591.5
million (2018: RMB390.6 million) of the interest-bearing borrowings will
fall due during the 12 months after the end of the Review Period. There
was no particular seasonality of the Group's borrowing requirements.
Please refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements for
details on the maturity profile of the Group’s borrowings. The Group
monitored capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt of the Group
divided by total equity of the Group. Total debt to equity ratio of the
Group expressed as a percentage of interest bearing borrowings over
the total equity of approximately RMB1,074.5 million (at 31 December
2018: RMB1,025.4 million) was approximately 55.1% as at 31 December
2019 (at 31 December 2018: 39.0%). Bank deposits pledged for banking
facilities as at 31 December 2019 was approximately RMB977.5 million
(at 31 December 2018: RMB978.0 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current ratio was approximately
1.1 times (at 31 December 2018: 1.2 times) based on current assets of
approximately RMB4,547.2 million (at 31 December 2018: RMB4,487.7
million) and current liabilities of approximately RMB4,097.0 million (at
31 December 2018: RMB3,892.0 million). Trade receivable turnover
days were approximately 106 days for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to approximately 98 days for the year ended 31
December 2018. Inventory turnover days were approximately 29 days
for the year ended 31 December 2019 as compared to approximately
33 days for the year ended 31 December 2018. Trade payable turnover
days were approximately 78 days for the year ended 31 December
2019 as compared to approximately 72 days for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Net Current Assets and Net Assets

The Group's net current assets as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB450.3 million, representing a decrease by approximately 24.4%
from the balance of approximately RMB595.7 million recorded as at 31
December 2018. Net assets as at 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB1,074.5 million, representing an increase by approximately 4.8%
from the balance of approximately RMB1,025.4 million as at 31 December
2018.
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Construction of New Factories

The Group regularly reviews its production capacities as part of its business
development planning in order to determine whether new production
facilities may be required. As the existing production capacities of the
Group’s ODM business are being fully utilised, in order to meet the
production demands of the ODM customers and to provide spaces
for new production facilities and warehouse facilities and potential
expansion of the Group’s ODM business in the future, the Group has
during the Review Period engaged an independent third party contractor
to construct two new factories in the Scud Battery Industrial Park, a
land located in Fuzhou and wholly owned by Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The new design of the
new factories is expected to facilitate enhancement to the production
processes and improvement to the quality of production. The relevant
construction work has commenced on 28 June 2019 and is expected to
complete by the first half of 2020. The consideration for the construction
of the two new factories is approximately RMB57.0 million and RMB42.3
million respectively, payable in accordance with the payment terms of
the relevant construction agreement.

Change in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries

The Group made no significant investment or material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries during the Review Period.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, bank loans of approximately RMB291.0
million (at 31 December 2018: RMB247.2 million) were secured by the
Group's assets and bank loans of approximately RMB291.7 million (2018:
RMB133.4 million) were unsecured.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding as at 31 December 2019
amounting to approximately RMB24.2 million (at 31 December 2018:
RMB3.1 million) was mainly attributed to the construction of new
factories and acquisition of equipment.
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Contingent Liabilities RREE

As at 31 December 2019, no provision for contingent liabilities was #2019 12 4310 + BAEEL KA B BEEME -
required.

Capital Structure BARERE

During the Review Period, there had been no change in the share capital P EIEEEIME @ ANA RRIAR A EEE) o
of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Exposure SN L B

For the year 2019, the Group conducted its business transactions 720194 - REB T BUARBETEERZS -
principally in Renminbi. The Group has not experienced any material 7<% [B]f £ [K] & = 55 &h i @ B 1 (a] 82 KR B sl U &
difficulties or negative impacts on its operations as a result of fluctuations “4EE4A S AAEMYE - BEANEEHEEETIE
in currency exchanges rates. Although the Group has certain bank &+ BE - ENEELL KRBT ABMWNRITES B
balances denominated in United States Dollars, Japanese Yen, Indian {EAREBEMNAEELHIERK - &5 2 5 HELE DI
Rupee and Hong Kong Dollars, their proportion to the Group's total assets ~ [E @k - E L R2019FE W EER S F T HE « JNEfE
is insignificant. The Directors considered that no hedging of exchange sk E ¥ T B - BENY > TEEEKE
risk is required and no financial instruments, currency borrowings or BRI £ [F HNE [EL By - I FE i IS SR AN E S
other hedging instruments were used for hedging purposes during 2019. &R KIEEEE ©

Nevertheless, the management will continue to monitor the Group's

foreign exchange exposure and will take prudent measures against

currency exchange risks as and when it is appropriate.

Events After the Review Period EIEEH R EE

Events subsequent to the end of the Review Period are set outin Note 41  [EIFAHA%E SR 1% BIEEH NG BIISIREM 541 o
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant Investment Held and Material Acquisition and
Disposal

Significant Investment Held

The Group did not hold any significant investment during the Review
Period.

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

Save as disclosed below, the Group did not make any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Review
Period:

In recent years, many customers of the Group’s ODM business have been
developing their presence in India in light of the large Indian population
and huge potential for growth of the Indian mobile phone market. To
align the Group’s ODM business with the needs of its customers and to
strengthen the competitive edge of the Group’s ODM business, during
the Review Period, Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. (“Prime Power"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
joint venture agreement (the “JV Agreement”) with two independent
third parties (together with Prime Power, the “JV Partners”) and the
joint venture company (the “JV Co”) in relation to the formation of a
joint venture which engages primarily in the provision of mobile phone
battery cell and power bank assembly service in India.

Pursuant to the JV Agreement, the joint venture will be formed by
subscription of the shares in the JV Co by the JV Partners and immediately
upon the completion of the share subscription in full, Prime Power will
own 50% and the other two JV Partners will own 30% and 20% of
the total issued share capital of the JV Co respectively. Under the JV
Agreement, the JV Partners shall contribute a total of HK$50.0 million in
cash into the JV Co as the subscription price for the share subscriptions in
proportion to their proposed respective shareholdings and in accordance
with the payment terms as set out therein.
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Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

The Group regularly reviews the state and capacity of its dormitories
and related facilities for its staff and their family members as part of its
business development planning in order to determine whether new staff
dormitories and related facilities may be required from time to time.

On 25 February 2020, the Group engaged an independent third party
contractor to construct a complex with a total construction area of
64,842.03 square metres comprising dormitories and related facilities
including basement for the Group’s staff and their family members in the
Scud Battery Industrial Park for a total consideration of RMB248,747,989.
The consideration is expected to be funded by the Group’s internal capital
resources and external borrowings.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Group did not
have any future plan for material investments or capital assets for the
coming year.

Employee, Remuneration Policies and Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 4,129 full-time employees
(2018: 3,394). The salaries of the Group’s employees were determined
by reference to the personal performance, professional qualification
and industry experience of the relevant employee and relevant market
trends. The Group ensures all levels of employees are paid according
to market standard and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the framework of the Group's salary, incentives
and bonus scheme. The management reviews the remuneration policy
of the Group on a regular basis and evaluates the working performance
of the employees. The remuneration of the employees includes salaries,
allowances, year-end bonus and social insurance. In accordance with
the relevant prevailing laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group has
participated in the social insurance plans set up by the relevant local
government authorities, including pension funds, medical insurance
(including maternity insurance), unemployment insurance and work-
related injury insurance. The Group has also participated in the mandatory
provident fund scheme for its Hong Kong employees in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Company also adopted a share option scheme
on 17 June 2019 to reward eligible participants (including directors and
employees of the Group) for their contributions to the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lian Xiu Qin, aged 48, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. She is primarily responsible for the management
of the Group’s daily operations. She joined the Group in March 1998
and she has been the Deputy General Manager and the Division Head of
the first business division of Scud (Fujian) Electronics Company Limited
("Scud Electronics”) since January 2016 and July 2016 respectively,
responsible for managing the Group’s business with its major customers.
Previously, she held other key positions such as the Production Head and
Engineering Manager of Scud Electronics. Ms. Lian has over 20 years’
experience in engineering and manufacturing technologies. She was
awarded the honorary title “Second-term Outstanding Highly Skilled
Talent of Fuzhou” by the Human Resources and Social Security Bureau of
Fuzhou in May 2013. The polymer battery metal shell structure registered
by the State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC as a patent in the
name of Scud Electronics was invented by Ms. Lian and two other staff
of the Group. Publications by Ms. Lian on “Lithium Battery Production
Technologies” and “Electronic Products Assembly Process” are used as
teaching materials at the Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School.

Ms. Lian is a qualified senior technician specialising in the production of
battery cells. She graduated from the Shenyang University of Technology
in July 1995 specialising in Applied Electronics Technology and an
undergraduate qualification in Business English at the Fujian Normal
University in June 2009. Ms. Lian has completed professional training on
“Quantitative Methods in Process Improvement” (ISO 13053-1&2:2011)
published by the International Organisation for Standardisation and on
cost control management. Ms. Lian is currently studying a part-time
Master’s degree in Business Administration at the Seton Hall University
of the United States of America in the PRC. As at 31 December 2019,
Ms. Lian did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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Feng Ming Zhu, aged 56, is an executive Director, a member of the
Corporate Governance Committee and the Vice President of the Group.
He is primarily responsible for the development of the Group’s strategy,
the management of the Group’s legal affairs, the management of the
Group'’s daily operations and monitoring the Group’s internal control
procedures on a day-to-day basis. He joined the Group in March 2007
and successively served as the Director of Investment, the Director of
Administration and the General Manager of SMT Business Unit of the
Group, and was appointed as the Vice President of the Group in April
2013. Mr. Feng graduated from the Anhui University of Finance and
Economics in the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering, and
served as the Chairman of the Battery Technology Association of Fujian
Province, a Specialist of Fujian JingXin Think Tank Industry Research
and a member of the Steering Committee of the Master of Materials
Engineering of Fujian Normal University. As at 31 December 2019, Mr.
Feng did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ho Chung Tai Raymond, SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J., JP, aged 81, is a non-
executive Director, the Chairman of the Company and a member of
the Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee. He joined the Group on 27 September 2018.
Dr. Ho has over 50 years’ experience in civil, structural, environmental
and geotechnical engineering industries and has directly managed a
number of mega-sized engineering projects. Dr. Ho received his degree
of Doctor of Philosophy in Civil Engineering from the City University of
London in June 1971, an Honorary Doctor of Laws from the University
of Manchester in September 2001 and an Honorary Doctor of Business
Administration from the City University of Hong Kong in November 1999.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong in November 1963
with a Bachelor of Science in Engineering and obtained his diploma for
advanced studies in engineering and soil mechanics from the University
of Manchester in July 1964.

26

|

BRI S6m AAEEPITES  0EERZE
ERERAEE HEIZBEEASEEBRER B
BREEZZEEY ARPEEEEREREREEA
EAEEHIZRE o WN2007E3 A MANREE - FIE
RNEELEME - THRAE - SMTSEBALE - K
2013F4 A I RS ERBE - BEERENTFRELHE
EHEAE  TEEL BT ; DI TREEE BRI
EEER RELETEEEXTMRER  EEME
REMKHMIREXBETIRELZEREZE - N20194F
12A318  BEEFRBAEEROIEXVE - HEEL
ERARRABIRG P EE F iz

FHITES

ffE=R - SBS - MBE - BXAMAMELIE - KF
w815 BIEVITEE ARAEFERTME
BE REZEBERNLETRZESGIZINE - H#R
201859 A27AMARERE o MiETRLA - &5
BENE T TRREZBEASOFNEHRECEREE
ZEARETIZEEE - (LR 197156 ARE R
TAELARTIRBLEA - 200149 A S S Bl
FARABREZZBIE LB RAN1999F 11 ANGEAH
BT ABLETEHERSIELTEM - FR1963F
MAREBAXBEE BELRIREBELE
W 1964F7 AESERMITHASA L TREM R
OB e



Dr. Ho has served as an independent non-executive director of AP
Rentals Holdings Limited (stock code: 1496) since March 2016, Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997) since December 2013,
GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 3800) since September
2007, China State Construction International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3311) from June 2005 to June 2019, Deson Development
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 262) since September 1993
and Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 2263) since January
2020, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Ho
is an advisor to The Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive Director
Association (the “HKINEDA"). Dr. Ho has served as a professional advisor
to the Office of the Ombudsman of Hong Kong since October 2015, a
position in which he previously served from July 1995 to March 2013.
He is the Honorary Chairman (since April 2019) and was the Chairman
(from February 2005 to April 2019) of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear
Plant and Ling Ao Nuclear Plant Safety Consultative Committee. As at
31 December 2019, Dr. Ho did not have any interests in the shares of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Hou Li, aged 61, is a non-executive Director. He joined the Group
on 25 August 2016. Mr. Hou is a senior partner of Beijing Dentons
Law Offices, LLP. Mr. Hou holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
East China College of Political Science and Law (now known as East
China University of Political Science and Law) and an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from the Xiamen University. He is
a certified lawyer in the PRC and has over 25 years' experience in
company laws and internal corporate governance structures. Mr. Hou
also engages in various social activities and had served as a member
of the Commission of Legislative Affairs of Fujian Province Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of
the Fujian Province Joint-Stock Enterprises Association and the Fujian
Province Securities Association, an arbitrator of the Fuzhou Arbitration
Commission and the chairman of the Law Office of the Fujian Committee
of the Revolutionary Committee of The Chinese Kuomintang. As at 31
December 2019, Mr. Hou did not have any interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Heng Ja Wei Victor, aged 42, is an independent non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and
Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group on
1 September 2016. Mr. Heng is a partner of Morison Heng, Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Heng holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree
in Electronic Engineering from the University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom and a Master of Science degree in Computer Science from the
Imperial College of Science, Technology and Medicine of the University
of London. He is a member of, and holds a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) certificate issued by, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Heng has served as an independent non-
executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 445) since March 2009, Best Food Holding Company Limited
(stock code: 1488) since May 2011, Lee & Man Chemical Company
Limited (stock code: 746) since June 2010 and Matrix Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1005) since December 2012 and as the company secretary
of China Life Insurance Company Limited (stock code: 2628) since April
2013, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. As at
31 December 2019, Mr. Heng did not have any interests in the shares
of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Lam Yau Yiu, alias Lam Yau Yiu Laurence, aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He joined the Group on 27
September 2018. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has about 31 years’ experience
in auditing, accounting and corporate management. Mr. Lam has served
as the company secretary of V1 Group Limited (stock code: 82) since
February 2019, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lam was the financial controller and the company secretary of
Zhong An Real Estate Limited (stock code: 672) from October 2008
to December 2016, and the qualified accountant and the company
secretary of Creative Energy Solutions Holdings Limited (now known as
Kirin Group Holdings Limited, stock code: 8109) from December 2005
to June 2006, the securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Lam holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration and a Master
of Science in Information Systems Management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology and a Bachelor of Accounting from
the City University of Hong Kong. He was the consultant to Chase Solar
Limited from January 2018 to December 2018 and he was the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Million Cities Development
Limited from January 2017 to July 2017. As at 31 December 2019, Mr.
Lam did not have any interests in the shares of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Wong Chi Wing, alias Wong Chi Wing Lawrence, aged 56, is an
independent non-executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee. He joined the Group
on 27 September 2018. Dr. Wong is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a new economy expert
and data scientist with over 30 years’ working experience in some of
the world’s leading consulting firms, such as Accenture, Deloitte and
KPMG, and listed conglomerates such as PCCW and Hutchison Telecom.
He was a managing director of Accenture Consulting in Greater China
and has established, trained up and managed a team of approximately
200 management consulting professionals and data scientists serving
the global market.

Dr. Wong is now the managing partner of Big Data Elite Asia Limited and
GCE Consulting Limited, which focus on providing advisory and training
services to board of directors of listed companies on Big Data, Digital
Transformation, Fintech and Independent Directorship. Since July 2016,
he serves as an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the internal audit committee of Autotoll Limited, which is operating
under the Stored Value Facilities licence administrated by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority and is the only service provider of electronic
toll collection in Hong Kong. Since February 2020, he serves as an
independent non-executive director and the audit committee chairman of
Cirtek Holdings Limited (stock code: 1433), which is principally enegaged
in manufacturing and selling apparel labels and trim products and the
securities of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Wong is Certified Drucker Educator (CDE) of Peter Drucker Academy,
and is the Chairman of both the New Economy Committee and Training
& Accreditation Committee and the Deputy President of the HKINEDA.
He also serves as a think-tank member and executive committee member
of Dashun Foundation focusing on Belt & Road Initiatives.
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Dr. Wong holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration and
two Master’s degrees (one in Business Administration and the other in
E-commerce) from the City University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Statistics and Computer Science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2019, Dr. Wong did not
have any interests in the shares of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA, CPA), aged 43, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and
is responsible for its overall financial and accounting affairs. He is a
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Prior to joining the Group in September 2005, Mr. Yeung worked as
an auditor in an international accounting firm. He has more than 20
years' experience in the accounting field. He holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration and Accounting.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”)
presents its annual report and audited consolidated financial statements
for the financial year from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
("Review Period”).

The discussions in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
annual report form part of the discussions of this directors’ report.

A discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance
and community investment can be found in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” to be published.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its major subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 and Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 83.

The Board has decided not to recommend any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to preserve cash for the working capital
requirement of the business of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during 2019 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during 2019 in the share capital are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
December 2019 comprised retained earnings, other reserves and share
premium of approximately RMB951.1 million (2018: RMB903.8 million).
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the Review Period and up to the date of this report

were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Lian Xiu Qin (Chief Executive Officer)
Feng Ming Zhu

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ho Chung Tai Raymond (Chairman)
Hou Li

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Heng Ja Wei Victor
Lam Yau Yiu
Wong Chi Wing

According to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the Company,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Ms. Lian Xiu Qin, Mr. Heng Ja Wei
Victor and Mr. Lam Yau Yiu will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company in accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of
association of the Company. Ms. Lian Xiu Qin, Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor and
Mr. Lam Yau Yiu all being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. There are
no service contracts or appointment letters of any of the Directors who
are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
which are not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO") as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 17 June 2019 for the
purpose of rewarding eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and encouraging eligible participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the
benefit of Company and its shareholders as a whole. Eligible participants
include directors and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, promoters or service
providers of any member of the Group who the board of directors of
the Company considers to have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company. The Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years expiring on 16 June 2029 and
the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the board of
directors of the Company may at any time terminate the Scheme without
prejudice to the options granted during the life of the Scheme and which
remain unexpired immediately prior to such termination.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and
remained outstanding under the Scheme was Nil as at 31 December 2019
and no options have been granted under the Scheme during the Review
Period. The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 109,000,124
shares, representing approximately 10% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual report, without
prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of share
issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and may
be granted to any individual in any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue for the time being,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number of
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shares issued and to be issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates representing in
aggregate over 0.1% the Company’s share capital on the date of such
grant or with an aggregate value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by resolution of the Company’s shareholders (voting
by way of poll). Subject to the terms of the Scheme, an offer of grant
of an option will remain open for acceptance by the eligible participant
for 28 days from the date of the offer. Upon the acceptance of the
offer, a consideration of HK$1 for the grant of the option is payable
and the relevant option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during the exercise period to be determined
by the Board, which shall not exceed 10 years. The board of directors
of the Company may with respect to each grant of options, determine
the minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The exercise price of the options shall be determined
by the board of directors of the Company in its absolute discretion but
will in any event not be less than the higher of:—

(1) the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of an
offer of an option by the Company (which must be a business day);

the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
5 business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of an
option; and

(3) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Options”, at no time
during the Review Period or at the end of the Review Period was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the Directors

or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions (ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued
share capital of the Company)

Name of shareholder

REREH

Swift Joy Holdings Limited (Note 2)
AEERERAT (FFFE2)

B RERNEE

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Right Grand Holdings Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner

ERERERRR (HfE2)

Fang Jin (Note 3)

BHBEAA

Fe (HE3) EEEE R
Note 1:  We have applied the number of shares of the Company in

Note 2:

Note 3:

issue as at 31 December 2019, i.e. 1,090,001,246 shares,
when calculating this percentage.

Each of Swift Joy Holdings Limited and Right Grand
Holdings Limited was a private company directly wholly-
owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Among 532,338,000 shares, (i) 403,770,000 shares were
owned by Swift Joy Holdings Limited and 110,568,000
shares were owned by Right Grand Holdings Limited (see
also Note 2 above) and (ii) 18,000,000 shares were owned
by Cheer View Holdings Limited, another private company
directly wholly-owned by Mr. Fang Jin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Capacity and nature of interest

Interest in controlled corporations
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company
is set out on pages 50 to 76 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the total remuneration of the
Directors and the five highest paid employees are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE,
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”),
a nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”), a remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) and a corporate governance
committee (“Corporate Governance Committee”).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in considering
how the Board should apply financial reporting principles and for
maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Company’s independent
auditor. As at 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee consisted of
three members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Mr. Lam
Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Nomination Committee is to identify, screen and
recommend to the Board appropriate candidates to serve as Directors,
to oversee the process for evaluating the performance of the Board and
to develop, recommend to the Board and monitor nomination guidelines
for the Company. As at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
consisted of four members who were Dr. Wong Chi Wing (Chairman), Dr.
Ho Chung Tai Raymond, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to assist the Board in
determining the policy and structure for the remuneration of executive
Directors, evaluating the performance of executive Directors, reviewing
incentive schemes and Directors’ service contracts and fixing the
remuneration packages for all Directors and senior management. As
at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee consisted of four
members who were Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (Chairman), Dr. Ho Chung
Tai Raymond, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Corporate Governance Committee is to assist the
Board in considering how the Board should apply risk management
and internal control principles, performing the corporate governance
duties and ensuring the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. As at
31 December 2019, the Corporate Governance Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam Yau Yiu
(chairman), Dr. Wong Chi Wing and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, one non-
executive Director namely Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond and one existing
executive Director namely Mr. Feng Ming Zhu.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the top five customers and the largest customer of the Group
represented approximately 78% and approximately 40% of the Group’s
total sales revenue of the Review Period, respectively. Purchase from
the top five suppliers and the largest supplier of the Group represented
approximately 63% and approximately 38% of the Group’s total
purchases of the Review Period, respectively.

At no time during the Review Period did a Director, a close associate of
a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge
of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) has any interest in the top five customers or suppliers
of the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to article 167 of the articles of association of the Company,
every Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which he/she shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of his/her duties in his/her offices or trusts provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to the relevant Director. Such permitted
indemnity provision was in force during the Review Period and remained
in force as at the date of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group had the following connected
transaction and continuing connected transactions, certain details of
which are set out below in compliance with the requirements of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in relation
to such transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The name of, and the relationship with, the parties connected with the
Company are as follows:

Name Relationship
=1 %

Fang Jin (“Mr. Fang”)

e ([h%EE]) RN EHER AR

Scud Electronics

A controlling shareholder of the Company

BEFFRERX

REANREMERAAUE6T7E  SREFIESE
ERNEBUBETHEREAREMET  REIER
EATHMEEARIHARELERRZOMBR
WERWEBK BERFEX BAUBEAR
AIMBEELENESRE  BRERERE  HER
WERETEHEEMEAEESHFRTEHE
MeEE - 2SREFNBERXEREBERRE
BEBEARRSEBBNBEL

BEXZREFEREXRS

REESRE AEEGETTIBERS RHER
BR G HETHBERR ETHRAEMAZTNHRTE
T e

RRARERELTRNEVUARTETZERHNRE
HE e

HARRBREN AR MARRBERNT

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

REBRET RER (BR) EFTARAR  ARRZEEZEZEHBAR
Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang held 70% shareholding interest
RERD BERERBRMBERAR @ FREBEEE70%ME

Scud Battery
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Scud Battery Co., Ltd., an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
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(A)

Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2017-2019)

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud
Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.

Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock agreed
to lease to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First (2017-
2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2,
Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 31,155 square metres; (i) 1 office building with a
construction area of approximately 13,268.80 square metres, rental
area of approximately 7,826 square metres; (i) 1 staff dormitory
with construction area of approximately 25,973.92 square metres
with a total of 435 dormitory rooms, rental area of approximately
19,704 square metres with a total of 330 dormitory rooms; and
(iv) 1 warehouse building with construction area and rental area
of approximately 11,250 square metres. The First (2017-2019)
Premises were leased for use as factory, office for administration
use for the Group, staff dormitory for the employees of the Group
and warehouse for storage of stocks.

For the factories, office building and staff dormitory, the term of
lease was from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019, and for the
warehouse building, the term of lease was from 1 July 2017 to 31
December 2019. Under the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement,
the annual rental for the year ended 31 December 2017, 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2019 were RMB13,245,120,
RMB14,325,120 and RMB14,325,120 respectively. The rentals were
payable in cash on a monthly basis.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease
(2017-2019) Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises
owned by Scud Stock.
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Under the Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement, Scud Stock
agreed to lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second (2017-
2019) Premises”) located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2,
Kuai An Extension Area, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province,
PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks of factories with a construction
area of approximately 40,627.68 square metres, rental area of
approximately 9,472 square metres; (i) 1 office building with
a construction area of approximately 13,268.80 square metres,
rental area of approximately 5,443 square metres; and (iii) 1 staff
dormitory with construction area of approximately 25,973.92
square metres with a total of 435 dormitory rooms, rental area of
approximately 6,270 square metres with a total of 105 dormitory
rooms. The Second (2017 — 2019) Premises were leased for use
as factory, office for administration use for the Group and staff
dormitory for the employees of the Group.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2019. The annual rental under the Second Lease (2017-2019)
Agreement was RMB4,786,104. The rentals were payable in cash
on a monthly basis.

Further details of the First Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and the
Second Lease (2017-2019) Agreement are set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 30 December 2016.

As at 30 December 2016, Scud Stock was owned as to 67% by
Mr. Fang, who was a Director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company. With effect from 30 August 2018, Scud Stock has been
owned as to 70% by Mr. Fang. Mr. Fang resigned as a Director with
effect from 27 September 2018. Mr. Fang remains a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock is an associate of Mr. Fang
and thus a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Therefore, the above transactions constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company.
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(B)

The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
Lease (2017-2019) Agreement and the Second Lease (2017-2019)
Agreement are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2017
Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2018
Annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019

The actual rental amounts paid for the above continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019
was RMB19,111,224.

Lease agreements with Scud Stock (2020)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and Scud Stock
(as lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “First Lease (2020)
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the First Lease (2020) Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to
lease to Scud Electronics the premises (the “First (2020) Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks
of factories with a construction area of approximately 40,627.68
square metres, rental area of approximately 31,155 square metres;
(i) 1 office building with a construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres, rental area of approximately 7,826 square
metres; and (iii) 1 warehouse building with construction area and
rental area of approximately 11,250 square metres. The First (2020)
Premises were leased for use as factory, office for administration
use for the Group and warehouse for storage of stocks.

HZE2017F12A31BEFEZ2FE LR
HE2018F12A31HIEFEZFE LR
HE2019F12A31HILFEZFE LR

(B)

SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

REBREFEARERBEOLREE —HHEE
(20175 E2019F ) L E _HHEE(20174
F2019F ) AR ERKRO X NE L5
ZFEEEROFBET

RMB
ARET

18,031,224
19,111,224
19,111,224

HZE2019F12831HILFE @ FilliHERER
SHERBHNEEAARE19,111,2247T °

EEFREBR AR 45T L MY & 1558 (20205 )

72019512 A30H - REREF(HERAEEA)
HRERBROEALBE AL —HHEEHE
([E—1HTEE (20205 ) i ) BT RERR K
MITHREE T2 BL -

RIEE—HHEE(2020F ) ik - RERKG R
EAREREFEAMNTFREZEABMNTS
B [ R e A {3 55.39-25% I 554428 I ER
([ E—4L(20205F ) W% 1) - B1EG)mME K
B BEEELA40,627.68F 5K HEME
#7331,155F 5K 5 (i — @R AL - ZEEE
#9/313,268.80F 7oK - HHEEEL /7,826
ok Ri—EEEAE  2EEELREER
HEAH11,250F 5K - BEFRE/E —#1(2020
FIMERBEREEZBE - THRAERE
MEF2EE o

41



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAF

__a

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

42

The term of lease is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
The annual rental under the First Lease (2020) Agreement is
RMB10,361,765.64. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessee) and Scud Stock (as
lessor) entered into a lease agreement (the “Second Lease (2020)
Agreement”) to renew the lease of certain premises owned by
Scud Stock.

Under the Second Lease (2020) Agreement, Scud Stock agreed to
lease to Scud Battery the premises (the “Second (2020) Premises”)
located at land lot numbers 39-2 and 44-2, Kuai An Extension Area,
Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 4 blocks
of factories with a construction area of approximately 40,627.68
square metres, rental area of approximately 9,472 square metres;
and (ii) 1 office building with a construction area of approximately
13,268.80 square metres, rental area of approximately 5,443 square
metres. The Second (2020) Premises were leased for use as factory
and office for administration use for the Group.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.
The annual rental under the Second Lease (2020) Agreement is
RMB3,598,194.24. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the First Lease (2020) Agreement and the
Second Lease (2020) Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 December 2019.

As at 30 December 2019, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is an associate of Mr. Fang and thus a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Therefore, the above transactions
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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The details on annual caps for the aggregate rental payable by
Scud Electronics and Scud Battery to Scud Stock under the First
Lease (2020) Agreement and the Second Lease (2020) Agreement
are as follows:

Annual cap for the year ending 31 December 2020

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2020 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2020.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2019)

On 31 December 2018, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a lease
agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) pursuant to which Scud
Battery agreed to lease certain premises owned by Scud Battery
(the “Scud Battery Premises”) to Scud Stock for the period from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Lease Agreement
(2019)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2019), Scud Battery agreed to lease to
Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises located at No. 135, Rujiangdong
Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 1
factory building with construction area and rental area of approximately
26,665 square metres and (i) 1 warehouse building with construction
area and rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres. The Scud
Battery Premises were leased for use as manufacturing facility.

The term of lease was from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2019. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2019) was
RMB5,618,400. The rentals were payable in cash on a monthly basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2019) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 December 2018.

HZE2020F12A31BIEFEZFE LR

@

SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEERE

REBREFEREBREHLREBEE—NAE
(20205 ) i M5B — I THE (20204 ) & FE R
REBRBOHSINHEESEBEFE LROFBN
—F :

RMB
ARET

13,959,959.88

FEEE2020F 1 A1 BES  RAMERS
2020F1 A1 Bt ©

ERFRERRAR 5T M A H B 17558 (20195F)

#2018 12A31H - REREM(EALEA)
HERERBD(EAERBA)GTLT —HHEER
FOBRL REREHREKETHRERE
EBNME(RERSOWEDEBAFRE
BE A% {n - 7H BA 20191 A1 H £ £20194F12
A31B81IE(HEEBZE(20195) 1) -

RIEHAEHZ(2019F) - REBEARERZR
ERBHUATEREEZERENTERERFIR
1355 B TRERKD - B0 —E
BE - EEEELKEEEEL26,665F 5 KKk
(ih—EEEAE - BEmMERHEEEELS,450
FHKFMEEZREREMYMETIBIEEE
FEHRE E2019F1 518 22019412 A31
H - RBEEERZE(2019F) ZFHEAAR
#5,618,4007T - FAE RS AT -

HEHZQ019F ) zE—FFBIHR AR AR
HA2018F 12 A31H Z A% -

43



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWRE

(D)

44

As at 31 December 2018, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by
Mr. Fang, the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the lease under the Lease Agreement (2019)
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock
to Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2019) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was RMB5,618,400.

The actual rental amount paid for the above continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2019
was RMB5,618,400.

Lease agreement with Scud Stock (2020)

On 30 December 2019, Scud Battery (as lessor) entered into a
lease agreement with Scud Stock (as lessee) pursuant to which
Scud Battery agreed to renew the existing lease of the Scud Battery
Premises to Scud Stock for the period commencing from 1 January
2020 and ending on 31 December 2020 (the “Lease Agreement
(2020)").

Under the Lease Agreement (2020), Scud Battery agreed to lease to
Scud Stock the Scud Battery Premises located at No. 135, Rujiangdong
Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, PRC comprising (i) 1
factory building with construction area and rental area of approximately
26,665 square metres and (i) 1 warehouse building with construction
area and rental area of approximately 8,450 square metres. The Scud
Battery Premises were leased for use as manufacturing facility.

The term of lease is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. The annual rental under the Lease Agreement (2020) is
RMB6,421,028.52. The rentals are payable in cash on a monthly
basis.

Further details of the Lease Agreement (2020) are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2019.
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As at 30 December 2019, Scud Stock was owned as to 70% by Mr. Fang,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. Scud Stock is therefore a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the lease under the Lease Agreement (2020) constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company.

The annual cap for the aggregate rental payable by Scud Stock to
Scud Battery under the Lease Agreement (2020) for the year ending 31
December 2020 is RMB6,421,028.52.

The rentals are payable commencing 1 January 2020 as the term of
lease is from 1 January 2020.

Further details of the transactions and relationships of the connected
parties are also set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions set out above and have confirmed that, during the
year ended 31 December 2019, such transactions have been entered into:

(1) (except for the Lease Agreement (2019) and the Lease Agreement
(2020)) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the relevant agreements governing such transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The independent auditor of the Company has also confirmed that in
relation to the above continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

(2) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such transactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

(3) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that such
transactions have exceeded the relevant annual cap as set by the
Company.
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(E) Trademark transfer agreement with Mr. Fang

Given the evolution of the battery market worldwide into the
smart devices era, the scale of the Group’s own-brand business
has gradually diminished over the years. Leveraging on the Group’s
competitive edge in the ODM industry as one of the only few
companies with the capabilities to provide ODM services to well-
known telecommunication brands and recognising the huge
potential of the ODM market, the Group’s business strategy is
to terminate its own-brand business with the “SCUDRZERR"
brand and focus its resources on strengthening its growing ODM
Business. To facilitate the implementation of the Group’s aforesaid
business strategy, on 30 December 2019, Scud Battery entered into
a trademark transfer agreement with Mr. Fang (the “Trademark
Transfer Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed that a
total of 15 “SCUD", "FRFERR" the "SCUDIRERR" trademarks and
related intellectual properties rights shall be transferred by Scud
Battery to Mr. Fang for a total consideration of RMB3,000,000 (the
“Trademark Transfer”).

As at 30 December 2019, Mr. Fang was the controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Fang is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules and accordingly, the Trademark
Transfer constituted a connected transaction of the Company.

Further details of the Trademark Transfer Agreement are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the Review Period, the Group entered into certain transactions
with parties regarded as “related parties” under the applicable
accounting principles. Details of the related party transactions are set
out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions which are also non-exempted connected transaction
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction and
Continuing Connected Transactions” above.
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CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transaction and
Continuing Connected Transactions” above and in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no other contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries and no other contracts of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors were interested in any business apart from the
business of the Group, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group during the Review
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Set out below are changes in information of Directors of the Company
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules:

Name of director

EEMR

Details of change

BEFE

Ho Chung Tai Raymond
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Resigned as an independent non-executive director of China State Construction International

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited (Stock

R2020F 1 A2 EZEAES A RIZRAERAR (BRHRSE  2263) 2B IEHITES

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Cirtek Holdings Limited (Stock Code:1433)

&z Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3311) on 3 June 2019
720196 A3EBHEF IR ERBREEER AR (RO : 3311) 2BIENTES
Code: 2263) on 22 January 2020

Wong Chi Wing

FEL on 21 February 2020

HR2020F2 A1 BEZ T ATEZRERAT (RO 1433) 2B IEHITES

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director or entity connected with a Director (within the meaning
of section 486 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong)) had any direct or indirect material interests in any
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its subsidiaries, its holding company or its fellow subsidiaries
was a party entered into during, or subsisting during or at the end of,
the Review Period.
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PENSION SCHEME

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme,
which is registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in
Hong Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme and is funded
by contributions from employer and employees in accordance with the
provisions of the MPF Ordinance. No forfeited contributions (by employers
on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) may be used by the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions.

Furthermore, the employees of the Group in the PRC are members
of state-managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local governments. The employers and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll
under the rules of the schemes.

Details of the pension scheme contributions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in Note 4(p) to the consolidated
financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into
or existed during the Review Period.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group values its employees and provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate its employees. The Group regularly
reviews the remuneration package of its employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to market standard. The Group also provides
regular training to its employees for their career development.

The Group values the views and opinions of its customers and regularly

communicates with them in order to obtain feedback and opinions and
understand their business needs and demands.
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The Group has developed long-term and good relationships with its
suppliers. The relevant departments of the Group work closely together
to ensure that the procurement process is conducted in an open, fair
and just manner.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there was no material non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group which
had a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group
during the Review Period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Review
Period.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENT PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

HO CHUNG TAI RAYMOND
Chairman

31 March 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are committed to maintaining and ensuring a high level of
corporate governance standards and continuously reviews and improves
the Group’s corporate governance and internal controls practices. Save
as otherwise specified, set out below are the principles of corporate
governance as adopted by the Company during the financial year from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Review Period”). The
Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) in Appendix 14
of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”). The Company complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
during the Review Period.

ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER (“CEO")

During the Review Period, Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond served as the
Chairman of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of the
Company and is responsible for leading the Board in protecting the
Shareholders’ interests as a whole and for overseeing the Group. Ms. Lian
Xiu Qin served as the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") of the Company
and is responsible for managing the overall business operations of the
Group, proposing strategies to the Board and monitoring the effective
implementation of the strategies and policies adopted by the Board.

Save for their business relationships as a result of their respective
directorships and positions in the Group, there are no financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships between Dr. Ho Chung
Tai Raymond and Ms. Lian Xiu Qin.
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THE BOARD

As of 31 December 2019, there were seven members on the Board,
which comprised of two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors
("NEDs"”) and three independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs"),
whose names are shown in the table on page 62. The INEDs are
considered by the Board to be independent of the management and
free of any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgments. The Board considered that each of the
INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board and its deliberations.
The term of appointment of Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing,
two of the INEDs, commenced on 27 September 2018 and will end on
the earlier of 26 September 2020 and the date of the annual general
meeting to be held by the Company in 2020. The term of appointment
of Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, another INED, commenced on 1 September
2018 and will end on the earlier of 31 August 2020 and the date of
the annual general meeting to be held by the Company in 2020. All
appointment letters of the INEDs can be terminated by the Company
or the INED giving at least 3 months’ prior written notice. Each of the
INEDs confirmed their respective independence to the Group. The term
of appointment of Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond, a NED, commenced
on 27 September 2018 and will end on the earlier of 26 September
2020 and the date of the annual general meeting to be held by the
Company in 2020. The term of appointment of Mr. Hou Li, another
NED, commenced on 25 August 2018 and will end on the earlier of 24
August 2020 and the date of the annual general meeting to be held
by the Company in 2020. All appointment letters of the NEDs can be
terminated by the Company or the NED giving at least 3 months’ prior
written notice. Save for the Directors’ business relationships as a result
of their respective directorships and positions in the Group, there are
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships
among members of the Board and they are independent from each other.
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The Board met regularly during the Review Period on an ad hoc basis as
required by business needs. The Board’s primary purpose is to set and
review the overall strategic development of the Group and to oversee
the achievement of its business plans to enhance Shareholders’ value
as a whole. Daily operational decisions are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management. Such Board meetings involved
the active participation, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication, of the Directors. During the Review Period,
the Board met 7 times and the Directors’ attendance record is shown
in the table on page 62. In advance of the Board meetings, appropriate
notices, meeting agenda and other relevant information were given to
all Directors. All Directors were consulted to include additional matters
(if any) in the agenda for Board meetings. Draft and final versions of
the Board meeting minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment
and record respectively. The original minutes of Board meetings are kept
by the company secretary of the Company and such minutes are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any
Director. The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of Directors’ liability.

The Company’s overall management is vested in its Board, which accepts
that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for the performance
and affairs of the Group. The Board'’s role is to provide entrepreneurial
leadership, set the Company’s strategic aims and the Company’s values
and standards, and to ensure that its obligations to its stakeholders
and others are understood and met. To facilitate the operations, the
Board has established a schedule of matters reserved for its approval.
The specific responsibilities reserved for the Board include (1) setting
the Group's strategies and dividend policy; (2) reviewing operational
and financial performance; (3) approving major investments and
divestments; (4) reviewing risk management and internal control system
of the Group; (5) ensuring appropriate management development and
succession plans are in place; (6) approving appointments of Directors
and other senior executives; (7) approving corporate social responsibility
policies; (8) ensuring effective communication with Shareholders and
(9) other significant operational and financial matters. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Group are delegated
to the management.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continually provided with updates to regulatory
and governance developments. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects. Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills, including updates to laws and regulations
applicable to the Company and its Directors as well as any amendments
thereto. During the Review Period, the Company arranged directors’
training session for the Directors and also provided regular updates to the
Directors on material changes to regulatory requirements applicable to
the Directors and the Company and on the latest business development
of the Group on a timely basis. The Directors confirmed that they
have complied with code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code in relation to continuous professional development. During the
Review Period, all of the Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars, in-house briefing and
reading materials to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in
areas related to their roles, functions and duties of Directors such as
corporate governance and regulatory updates. In addition, during the
Review Period, all of the Directors have attended the directors’ training
session arranged by the Company, and Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond, Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing attended
various directors’ training seminars arranged by various organisations
including the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. On a continuing basis, Directors are
encouraged to keep up to date on all matters relevant to the Group
and attend briefings and seminars as appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference as suggested under the
code provisions and recommended best practices under the Corporate
Governance Code and adopted with reference to “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in February 2002. As at 31 December 2019, the
Audit Committee comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Heng Ja Wei
Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing, and the chairman
of the Audit Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Each committee
member can bring to the Audit Committee his valuable experience in
reviewing financial statements and evaluating significant control and
financial issues of the Group, who among themselves possess a wealth
of management experience in the accounting profession or commercial
sectors. The Audit Committee was established on 3 December 2006 and
held 3 meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’
attendance is shown on page 62.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(i) to review the half-year and annual financial statements of the
Group before they are submitted to the Board for approval;

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor,
and any questions of its resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(iii) to review and monitor the external auditor’'s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance

with applicable standards;

(iv) to review the Company’s financial controls;
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(v) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vi) to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit
function;

(vii) to review the arrangements which the employees of the Company
can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters; and

(viii) to review the terms and conditions of ongoing connected
transactions of the Group.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee carried out its duties
as set out above, including reviewing certain financial information of
the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the Review
Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page 62. As
at 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee comprised Mr.
Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED), Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (a NED), Mr.
Lam Yau Yiu (an INED) and Dr. Wong Chi Wing (an INED). The chairman
of the Remuneration Committee was Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor. Its main
duties are summarised as follows:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policies, and to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of all individual
executive Directors and senior management;
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(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

(iii) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration; and

(iv) to advise Shareholders on how to vote in respect of any
service contract or appointment letter of Directors that requires

Shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The work done by the Remuneration Committee during the Review
Period included the above and the following:

(i)  determining the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors;
(ii) assessing performance of executive Directors; and
(iii) approving the terms of executive Directors’ service contracts.

Details of the amount of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration payable to member of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

In the band of
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) on 3 December 2006 and held 1 meeting during the Review
Period. The committee members’ attendance is shown on page 62. As
at 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee comprised Dr. Wong
Chi Wing (an INED), Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond (a NED), Mr. Lam Yau
Yiu (an INED) and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED). The chairman of
the Nomination Committee was Dr. Wong Chi Wing. The Nomination
Committee selects and recommends appropriate candidates based on
the candidates’ prior experience and qualifications to the Board on the
appointment of Directors. The main duties of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or
length of service) of the Board on a regular basis and to make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(i) to develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the qualifications
of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

(iii) to identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a Board
member and to select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships having
regard to each candidate’s merit against an objective criteria and
the benefits of diversity of the Board;

(iv) to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors
to determine their eligibility;

(v) to review and assess the adequacy of the corporate governance
guidelines of the Company and to recommend any proposed
changes to the Board for approval; and

(vi) have regard to the Company’s policy concerning diversity of Board
members, and make appropriate disclosure of the policy or a
summary of the policy in the Company’s corporate governance
report.

The work done by the Nomination Committee during the Review Period
included the above and determining the policy for the nomination of
Directors.
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NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORSHIP EERBHEE

The Board has approved and adopted a nomination policy for directorship

with effect from 1 January 2019 (the “Nomination Policy”). The

Nomination Policy aims at setting out the processes and criteria for

the nomination of a candidate for directorship in the Company. The

EFSEMAVYEM " BEEFTREER(RER
w1 ZBEBE2019F 1 A1BBAER - ZIRBEBUR
EESAREARAERREAZET RIZE - 7
ZLEESRTHBTERRANGBEER  B2E

Nomination Committee shall consider the following factors in assessing  FHEZ :
the suitability of a proposed candidate:
(a) reputation for integrity; (@) #WfEEZE:

(b)

(d)

()

accomplishment and professional knowledge and industry
experience which may be relevant to the Company;

commitment in respect of available time;

merit and potential contributions that such candidate could bring to
the Board with reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, independence,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive director
of the Company, to assess the independence of such candidate;
and

board succession planning considerations and the long-term needs
of the Company.

The Nomination Committee has the discretion to consider any other

factors and matters and nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the
approach to achieve diversity in the Board to ensure that the Board has the
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business. The Company recognises the
benefits of diversity in Board members and believes that Board diversity can
be achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and/or length of service. In
forming the perspective on diversity, the Company will also consider
its own business model and specific needs from time to time. All Board
appointments will be based on merits and each candidate is considered
against objective criteria.

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree annually measurable
objectives for implementing diversity on the Board and recommend them
to the Board for adoption. The Board will from time to time review
one or more aspects of its diversity and measure progress accordingly.
Having reviewed the Group’s business model and operation needs and
the current composition of the Board, the Nomination Committee has
not set any measurable objective during the Review Period.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy with effect
from 1 January 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”). It is the policy of the
Board, in considering the payment of dividends, to allow shareholders
of the Company to participate in the Company’s profits whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. The Board shall consider
the following factors before declaring or recommending any dividends:

(@) the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) the Group’s liquidity position;

() retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

(e) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders;
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(f) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(g) general economic conditions and other internal or external factors
that may have an impact on the business or financial performance
and position of the Company; and

(h) any other factors that the Board deem appropriate.

The declaration, recommendation and payment of any dividends are also
subject to compliance with applicable laws, regulations and the articles
of association of the Company. The Board will continually review the
Dividend Policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
"Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 September 2018 and held 2
meetings during the Review Period. The committee members’ attendance
is shown on page 62. As at 31 December 2019, the Corporate Governance
Committee comprised Mr. Lam Yau Yiu (an INED), Dr. Wong Chi Wing
(an INED), Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor (an INED), Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond
(a NED) and Mr. Feng Ming Zhu (an executive Director). The chairman of
the Corporate Governance Committee was Mr. Lam Yau Yiu. All of the
committee members have significant experience in the internal control,
corporate governance, legal and/or accounting areas. The committee
is primarily responsible for performing corporate governance functions
and risk management and internal control functions in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code. With Mr. Feng Ming Zhu, an executive
Director who is responsible for the daily operations of the Group, being
a key member of the committee, Mr. Feng Ming Zhu plays a key role in
experiencing the actual implementation status and/or progress of various
internal control and ongoing monitoring policies, identifying key issues as
and when they arise and interacting with the staff and the operational
systems in order to identify any such issues on a timely basis.
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The main duties of the Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

(a)

(0

to develop, review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Company'’s corporate governance report;

to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis (including reviewing the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems, which includes
assessing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system), evaluate and determine the nature and extent of the
risks the Company is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensure that the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; and

to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
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During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee carried  REEEHIE - CEEAE 82 BT EXMEA B
out its duties as set out above, including discussing with the Group’s & @ BERAEBH AL RGEAEER RS
Risk Management Department and BDO Financial Services Limited in  EIFIREZBEREMBR A THEITFMR °

relation to the internal control systems of the Group.

The following table summarises the attendance of each individual Director ~ FTXR#IM S EEREZE@RENRERRLEERE
and committee member in the respective Board, committee and general & - ZE@NREASHIER -
meetings held during the Review Period.

Meetings attended/held in 2019

R20195 1%/ BTHEH
Board Audit  Nomination Remuneration  Corporate General
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Governance Meeting

Committee
Exe ENZEE® R4ZEE HMZEEe L%ERZEE RRAE
Number of meetings held during the ~ REEHBETHEEHA

Review Period 7 3 1 1 2 1
Executive Directors: BiTEE:
Feng Ming Zhu BRA Mo NAMER O NATER NATER 202
Lian Xiu Qin EAE i N/ATEF N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER "
Non-executive Directors: FHUTES
Hou Li 3 17 N/ATEA N/ATEA N/ATER N/ATERA n
Ho Chung Tai Raymond &% 7 NATER 17 17 2 17
Independent non-executive Directors:  BUFHITEES :
Heng Ja Wei Victor PR Vi 33 171 17 2 171
Lam Yau Yiu R 17 33 n n 212 n
Wong Chi Wing TEH 17 33 n n 212 n
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GOING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards on
a regular basis and the Board endeavors to take the necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code introduced by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers such
Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every guideline
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions as set out in its terms of reference, the
main duties of which are set out above.

During the Review Period, the Corporate Governance Committee reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE LISTING RULES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the Review Period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk Management Structure of the Group

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
assessing their effectiveness. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Risk Management Department

The Group has set up a risk management department which is responsible
for the design and implementation of the risk management system,
assisting the Board in monitoring and supervising the implementation
and effectiveness of the risk management framework and process and
reviewing the measures on dealing with risks. The risk management
department performs an internal audit function and is responsible for
performing review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
control systems of the Group.

The Corporate Governance Committee reports to the Board after review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system. Upon consideration of the work and results of review of the
Corporate Governance Committee, the Board forms its view on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems.
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The Board ensures that a review of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group is conducted annually in respect of the
relevant financial year.

Appointment of BDO Financial Services Limited as
Internal Control Consultant

During the Review Period, the Company engaged BDO Financial Services
Limited (“Internal Control Consultant”) as its internal control consultant
to conduct a review of the internal control systems and procedures of
the Group and to make recommendations accordingly (“Internal Control
Review").

The scope of work of the Internal Control Consultant included an
independent assessment of the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group. During the Review Period, the Internal Control
Consultant performed reviews on the internal control systems of the major
subsidiaries of the Group (including the enterprise resource planning
(“ERP") systems for certain companies within the Group) which involved
collecting relevant information, conducting site visits and interviews and
conducting walkthrough tests.

The Internal Control Review has been completed. Having reviewed the
findings and results of the report on the Internal Control Review prepared
by the Internal Control Consultant, and having taken into consideration
the improvements and/or remedial measures implemented in accordance
with the Internal Control Consultant’s recommendations, the Board is of
the view that the Company has put in place adequate internal control
system and financial reporting procedures to meet its obligations under
the Listing Rules. In view of the above, the Board considers that a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
was conducted during the Review Period and the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DA IO YN~
1E E/l:l-’#&%

EXeRREFIARMBREEHARERREE
N PRI I R AETTIR AT ©

ZRESVBEEBRRA R HAIPEFER

REBESE A2AZERZUBEERERAAF
(TAEpEsIEm D) BEEASEHRER  SA%E
N EIRHI R AR TR WIR L AEME
& ([BPEHIZER L) -

NEEZESER TFEE R BN AEETE
B AR AERIR IR AT - RO B - A ERIE ]
BRUAEEIZMBEARZAMENRR(BEA
SEETRAZEEXERAE(TEEERRE R
FETRE - HBREEEREN REEELA
ALEITRIA

MEEHIEB K - KEMANZEHIBERREZ
NEEHIEHRENERLER  REZEERER
AR 2 R E A E R SRR fE iR
E=gRA ARBICSEILITER A RRESH R R
MBERERF MWETETRUNBATZEE - ER
LFHER EFeRA - EREEABAEERE
BRABEHRSNERIEETRY  ARENE
REERANEHRGEARETR

65



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
G RERBE

Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group

The Group is exposed to different risks and uncertainties. Some of
the Group’s major risks are set out below and appropriate mitigation
measures have been devised to manage such risks.

(A)  OPERATIONAL, STRATEGIC AND FINANCIAL RISKS

The smart electronic products industry advances at a tremendous
pace. Lithium-ion battery module, being the Company’'s main
product, is mostly used in smartphones, laptops, tablets and
wearable devices. The sales of consumer smart electronics may
change rapidly in response to consumer demand or taste. As
a supplier of lithium-ion battery modules for a number of PRC
smartphone brands, the drastic fluctuation in customers’ sales of
smartphones will have significant effect on the sales of the Group's
lithium-ion battery modules.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  investment of resources in development of new products and
application of lithium-ion battery in new industries and new
fields in response to changes in market demands;

(i)  diversification of product portfolios in order to reduce the
impact of a reduction in sales of individual products on the

Group's overall business; and

(iii) proactive recruitment and training of skilled and experienced
technicians to enhance the Group’s R&D capability.
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For lithium-ion battery products, great importance is attached to
their quality and safety. The performance and safety of lithium-
ion battery is very sensitive to ambient environment. The safety of
lithium-ion battery lies in effective use of external circuit design
to ensure battery’s operation is normal and safe. However, the
efficiency and reliability of these safety devices are closely connected
with good and consistent manufacturing quality. Various different
circumstances or causes may also lead to short circuit and other
risks.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) inthe pursuit of higher efficiency and endurance for batteries,
the Group conducted more rigorous review of the safety of
batteries to ensure that all the batteries delivered by the Group
meet high safety standards;

(i) the Group ensures it purchases sufficient product liability
insurance for protection. Product liability insurance covers the
liability arising from a defective product that causes personal
injury, property damage or other losses; and

(iii) the raw materials and other auxiliary materials used for the
Company’s products shall be certified by authorities before
being used. In the process of production, the Company’s
quality control department shall conduct inspection at each
stage throughout the whole production process to ensure the
quality of the Company’s product and safeguard the interests
of consumers with a quality monitoring system.

In 2019, more than 90% of the Group’s turnover was derived
from its ODM business. Over 60% of the sales of its ODM business
was to three PRC smartphone brand manufacturers. If the Group
loses one of these top customers, it may have adverse effects on
the operation and financial results of the Group’s ODM business.
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  look for more potential customers to reduce its dependence
on top customers;

(i)  strengthen after-sales services for customers, pay regular visits
to customers and conduct customer satisfaction survey to
continuously improve the quality of products and services,
consolidate the Group’s competitiveness in the industry and
increase customer loyalty; and

(iii) develop more new products to meet customers’ needs.

The vast majority of the Group’s sales revenue is from operating
units in the PRC. Adverse events in the PRC’s operation and political
environment may result in material adverse effects on the Group's
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  development of overseas markets to increase revenue from
overseas operations; and

(i) continuous monitoring of PRC's operations and political
environment, anticipation of possible problems, and establish
quick strategic response to changing business environment.

Overdue payments by customers granted with credit by the Group
will increase the financial risk to the Group and affect the Group'’s
financial performance and operating cash flow.
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(B)

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  regular review of the amount of accounts receivable from key
customers to control it at an appropriate level; and

(i) implementation of strict internal control measures and increase
collection efforts for overdue accounts receivable.

The main raw material for lithium-ion battery modules (being the
Group’s main product) is lithium-ion bare battery cell. The Group
purchases lithium-ion bare battery cells from many well-known
international manufacturers. In recent years, lithium-ion bare battery
cell has been widely used in smartphones, laptops, tablets, wearable
devices, power tools, electric bicycles, energy storage and other
fields. Any increase in the price or shortage of supply of lithium-ion
bare battery cells will have a material impact on the profitability
and production costs of the Group.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i) regular research on and evaluation of suppliers to ensure
stable supply of raw materials; and

(i) through automation upgrade of production lines, the Group
solves the problem with human resources and effectively
controls production costs, which have positive effects on
improvement of the Group’s profitability and control of
production costs.

ACCIDENT RISKS

Major accidents including fires, natural disasters or serious infectious
diseases will affect the Group's assets and operations, thus affecting
the Group's operational capacity and reducing profitability.

(B)
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Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  ensure comprehensive insurance coverage over the Group’s
properties and business is purchased,;

(i) provision of regular education and training sessions on safety

for all staff to strengthen staff’'s awareness of production

safety;

(iii) training on fire safety, fire emergency evacuation and fire drill

at workplace are organised at least twice a year to ensure staff

have a solid understanding of the significance and necessity of

production safety and improve their own awareness of safety

protection; and

(iv) organise physical examination for the benefit of its staff to

help in assessing possible occupational and serious infectious

diseases.

INDUSTRY RISKS

The possible slowdown of the Chinese economy in the near future,
the possible drop in global shipment of smartphones and the possible
substantial decrease in consumers’ demands for replacement of
smartphones will have material adverse effects on the Group’s
business, financial position and operation results.

Actions taken by the Group to address these issues include the
following:

(i)  proactively pay attention to the application of lithium-ion
batteries in new industries and new fields, grasp opportunities
for access to the market and adjust the development strategy
in response to changes in the market; and

(i) proactively build a platform for communication with consumers,

pay close attention to consumers’ demands, timely listen to

consumers’ opinions, and provide good products and after-
sales services to increase customer loyalty.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

o is aware of its obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
and the Listing Rules;

o conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the relevant guidelines
and policies relating to inside information issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange from time to
time;

o has implemented procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs; and

o has implemented policy regarding prohibition on the unauthorised
use of confidential or inside information.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
(the “Model Code"). Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, the
Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code for the financial year ended 31
December 2019.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company. During
the Review Period, the Group paid approximately RMB1,848,000 to its
external auditors, namely BDO Limited, and approximately RMB347,000 to
its PRC auditor for their audit services. The Group also paid approximately
RMB264,000 to BDO Limited and approximately RMB316,800 to its
affiliated firm for their non-audit services in respect of the review of
the interim financial information of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2019 and the provision of internal control post implementation
consultancy services to the Group respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Directors’
responsibilities for the accounts and the reporting responsibilities of
the external auditors are set out on page 79 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Yeung Mun Tai (FCCA,
CPA). Mr. Yeung took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Review Period.

SHAREHOLDER AND INVESTOR RELATIONS
COMMUNICATION STRATEGIES

The Board established a Shareholders’ communication policy setting
out the principles of the Company in relation to its communication
with the Shareholders, with the objective of ensuring the Shareholders
are provided with access to information about the Company in order
to enable Shareholders to assess the Company’s overall performance,
exercise their rights in an informed manner and engage actively with
the Company.

Information would be communicated to Shareholders mainly through
the Company’s corporate communications including interim and annual
reports, annual general meetings and other general meetings that
may be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange, its corporate communications and
other corporate publications on the Company’s website. Shareholders
may direct enquiries about their shareholdings to the Company’s Share
Registrars. To the extent the requisite information of the Company is
publicly available, Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our
head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the address,
facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s website.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more
Shareholders holding on the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
at our head office in Hong Kong by post, facsimile or email via the
address, facsimile number or email address provided on the Company’s
website, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
The written requisition may also be deposited at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre, 77 Leighton
Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or the
Company Secretary. If within 21 days of such deposit of the written
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

STAKEHOLDERS

The continuing development and present scale of the Group were
benefited from the trust and support of the stakeholders. We have
been dedicating efforts not only to maximise the present value of the
Group but also to maximise the interest and return for all parties so as
to enhance a harmonious development and a victorious collaboration
in the long run.
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INVESTORS

The Group has always paid much attention to communication and
interaction with investors, and continues to improve communication
channels with shareholders and investors, so as to enhance
governance transparency. The Group’s management regularly meets
with investors, and proactively announces the latest information
and business development plans.

CONSUMERS
PRODUCT SAFETY

The Group has placed emphasis on the safety of products, especially
on mobile phone batteries, and has implemented strict quality control
such as the ISO standards so as to meet safety requirements. With
our product testing centres, we administer stages of tests, including
crash, high-temperature, damp and long period recharging, on
our battery products. We also invest resources in product R&D to
develop more reliable products. The battery products of the Group
have also passed the stringent requirements on quality control and
safety set by the relevant government authorities.

EMPLOYEES
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY

The Group has focused on factory production safety, strived to
enhance employees’ safety knowledge and training, and increased
factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols, so as to ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case of
fire. In addition, the Group has regularly held fire drills and increased
investments in fire prevention facilities in factories, so as to ensure
the sufficiency of fire prevention equipment and facilities.

The Group has proactively taken and implemented various measures,
including:

(i) increase factory fire prevention facilities and safety patrols
(once a week), resolve problems in a timely manner and ensure
unobstructed fire passages and the availability of water in case
of fire;

(i) hold regular safety seminar and training for employees,
especially for new staff, striving to enhance employees’ hazard
prevention and safety awareness;

(iii) conduct at least two large scale fire drills every year and
conduct general safety checks on such days;
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(iv) enhance factory management and divide it into safety
responsibility districts, appoint safety examiners at the
workshops with routine patrols, and eliminate potential
problems in a timely manner; and

(v) improve and formulate storage, safe keeping, transportation
and processing procedures for flammables, and provide
training for staff frequently in contact with such flammables.

ESTABLISHMENT OF OWN SKILL TRAINING INSTITUTE

Apart from occupational safety, the Group has also placed emphasis
on providing on-the-job training for its staff. The Group started
a comprehensive talent training programme, which is tied to
the establishment of its own skill training institute. Talents are
cultivated at the skill training institute and available in the pipeline
to resolve the labour shortage issue faced by industry participants.
After a period of training, the Group will allocate labour resources
directly to various departments, which will shorten the time for
staff replacement and reduce labour cost. Automated production
will also be implemented at different phases. Moreover, in the
training process, participating staff can understand the practical
operation issues arising from the course of production, which
will effectively enhance production efficiencies and qualities. The
Group invites talents from society and selects personnel with the
required management and technical expertise through professional
and rigorous training processes. At the same time, this also brings
to society a new generation of trained talents in fulfillment of the
Company's social responsibilities.
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PROTECTION OF EMPLOYEES’ LEGAL RIGHTS

The Group promotes and undertakes a fair and non-discriminative
employment policy. Employees are employed on contract basis and
employment contracts are signed based on principles of fairness and
on employees’ own volition, with clear provisions on contractual
terms such as scope of work, remuneration, social insurance and
working hours, among others. The legal rights and obligations of
the employer and employee are clearly defined. We also strictly
comply with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to national
social insurance to set up insurance scheme for basic pension,
medical, work-related injuries, unemployment and maternity for
employees and cover the various insurance expenses. Meanwhile, to
further protect the interests of individual employees, the Company
has taken out a commercial accident insurance scheme for all
employees. The Group has complied with the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC since 1 January 2008 and established a labor union.
We hold an employees’ meeting every two weeks, in support of
the construction and development of a harmonious and stable
employee and employer relationship.

COMMUNITY
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

As a responsible enterprise, the Group has always put emphasis
on supporting environmental protection. We strictly control the
production procedures and reduce waste generation. Although
small amounts of waste are generated during the packaging
process, some of them are delivered to qualified recycling plants
for treatment.

For the environmental, social and governance report of the Group,
please refer to the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
to be published.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SCUD GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SCUD Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 83 to 210, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants(“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade and notes receivables
(Refer to notes 4(i), 5(iii) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade and notes receivables
with net carrying amount of approximately RMB2,330 million and a
net impairment loss of approximately RMB53 million was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the trade and notes receivables in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policies which required the exercise of
significant management judgement in considering factors such as the
credit history including default or delay in payments, ageing analysis,
settlement records during the year and subsequent settlements after
the year end.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the directors’ impairment assessment
included:

o Understanding the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

e  Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade and notes receivables;

o Reviewing payment patterns during the year and amount
of subsequent settlements after the year end made by the
customers;

o Assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s estimation of
recoverability of trade and notes receivables with reference to
factors considered by the directors.

e  Assessing the appropriateness of the Expected Credit Loss
provisioning methodology, examining the key data inputs on
a sample basis to assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.
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OTHER INFORMATION
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other

IN THE ANNUAL

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Tsui Ka Che, Norman
Practising Certificate no. PO5057

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Yt

nj\

m & B 2 E W am &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M= ARBT T ARBTT
Turnover E S 6 7,395,203 6,962,078
Cost of sales SHERA (6,864,745) (6,402,412)
Gross profit ES 530,458 559,666
Other revenue Hob e 7 97,956 85,344
Selling and distribution expenses HE NS HEEX (109,705) (96,098)
Administrative expenses TR (308,251) (290,900)
Other operating expenses Hih & &M (105,957) (98,670)
Finance costs BhE A A 11 (48,274) (54,062)
Profit before income tax B P S35 B A 8 56,227 105,280
Income tax FT1SHE 12 (7,531) (9,196)
Profit for the year R[S 5 A 48,696 96,084
Other comprehensive income for the AFEHEZHEMBEKS !
year, net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently A2 EHIRIR S FEE BN
to profit or loss HHE
— Exchange differences on translating —HMEBINETG 2 EH ZFE
foreign operations (1,822) (2,309)
— Exchange differences reclassified on — AR AR — B AN B R B R E AT
dissolution of a foreign subsidiary DR IER ERE - (1,765)
Other comprehensive income for the year, AREEFEE M2 EKER
net of tax (1,822) (4,074)
Total comprehensive income for the REERHEIKNFELE
year 46,874 92,010
Profit for the year attributable to: TEA TR ARFE i H]
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGIE 2 =N 52,543 93,274
Non-controlling interests IR (3,847) 2,810
48,696 96,084
Total comprehensive income attributable to: N3I| A + (L 2 E s 858
Owners of the Company VNG YN 50,304 89,200
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS R (3,430) 2,810
46,874 92,010
Earnings per share TR & F]
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EXREE(ARES) 14 4.82 8.56
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

an\ (=] /jﬁ’%ﬂﬁ;ﬂv%‘%

At 31 December 2019 R20194 12 H31H

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B e ARET ARBT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MR 15 384,502 216,757
Investment properties B 16 61,141 66,188
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 18,227 =
Intangible assets mEAE 18 2,461 1,905
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 7X18 « & & & EAbEURFRIA 21 28,655 14,409
Deferred tax assets EETHIBEE 29 140,995 145,209
Total non-current assets R EELTE 635,981 444,468
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 19 498,416 596,543
Trade and notes receivables U B 5 TR IE I e W =% 20 2,329,774 2,165,386
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables a1 7RI - &4 & E ith fE U 7718 21 171,391 271,533
Amounts due from related parties FEURREE A T 30IR 22 152,259 283,809
Current tax recoverable AUz Bl BN EARS 18 11,728 9,886
Pledged bank deposits EERITIFR 23 977,454 978,011
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR IR 24 406,197 182,529
Total current assets MENEELRTE 4,547,219 4,487,697
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and notes payables BB 5 FIE K BN =R 25 3,346,741 3,301,930
Other payables, receipts in advance and E AT 5RIA - TRWRGRIA R
accrued charges JEETE R 26 142,536 148,845
Lease liabilities — current portion HEBE - REBH 17 4,133 =
Bank loans — current portion RITER—MEE S 27 582,689 380,548
Other loans — current portion HEER—RBED 27 8,789 10,038
Amounts due to directors ETEERIA 28 409 377
Amounts due to related parties RSB A 5 22 11,648 50,237
Total current liabilities B BEERE 4,096,945 3,891,975
Net current assets REBEERE 450,274 595,722
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRBERS 1,086,255 1,040,190
Non-current liabilities FRENEE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEBE-—ERBIHS 17 5,765 =
Other loans — non-current portion Hih S —3EmEEn 27 604 9,393
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRTEA G 29 5,360 5,360
Total non-current liabilities EmB B ERE 11,729 14,753
Net assets BEE 1,074,526 1,025,437
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R e MR AR

At 31 December 2019 2019412 H31H

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBT T ARBTT
Capital and reserves EXRE #E
Share capital &N 30 107,590 107,590
Reserves E= 951,138 903,846
Equity attributable to owners ANREE AELES
of the Company 1,058,728 1,011,436
Non-controlling interests FrERER 32 15,798 14,001
Total equity MR 1,074,526 1,025,437
LI/ ¥
J \
)
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
IBEATT EEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF E2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEMEBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

Retained  Attributable

Statutory ~ Enterprise profits/ ~ to owners Non-
Share Share  Capital  reserve expansion Translation  (Accumulated of the  Controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve fund fund  reserve losses) ~ Company Interests  equity
LN
¥ iz REEN  HAA

B%  B#uE A48  0RE  RRE:  ERER (RMER)  RENR FERER 48
RVBOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMB'O0D  RMBOOO  RWBOOD  RVBO0D  RMBOOD  RMBOD0  RMBOD

ARBTTL ARETL ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARBTL ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 31 December 2017 as RO1TENANBRES

originally presented 2hlnEs 107590 619288 186,215 120,056 60,865 (68,495) (99336) 926,183 1209 937432

Intil aplication of IFRS 9 ERERERT KRS E
295 = = = = = = By ) (58 (4005

Restated balances at 1 January 2018 201851 A1 BIEET &5k 107590 619288 186,215 120,05 60,865 (68495 (103,283) 922236 11,191 933,427
Profit for the year KEFA - - - - - - 93204 9324 2810 96,08
Exchange differences on translating foreign AEEH £ EH £8

operations - - - - - (2,309 - (2,309 - (2,309
Bxchange differences reclassified on @A -EENHELARES

dissolution of a foreign subsidiary NEESER - - - - - (1,765) - (1,765) - (1,765)
Total comprehensive income REREANGEE

for the year - - - - - (4.074) 93,274 89,200 2810 92,010
Appropriations o - - - 5,896 2,697 = (8,593) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2018 as 120185128318

originally presented BREE5|m s 10759 619288 186,215 125952 63,562 (72,569) (18,602) 1,011,436 14,001 1,025,437
Iniial application of IFRS 16 BN RERA R B R 6% - = = = = = B01) 301 313) (339
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 R019F1 1B 2 EFI R 10759 619288 186,215 125952 63,562 (712,569) (21,614)  1,008.424 13688 1,022,112
Profit{oss) for the year KEERR /(B8 - - - - - - D53 553 (3847 486%
Bxchange differences on translating foreign 50257 Ex £8

operations - - - - - (2,239) - (2,239 47 (1822)
Total comprehensive income FERRENREE

for the year - - - - - 239 52,543 50,304 (3430) 46,874

Capital Contribution to a subsidiary by non- SR ER AN BAT LS

controlling interest - - - - - - - - 5,540 5,540
Appropriations o - - - 8,305 4153 = (12.458) - - =
At 31 December 2019 20198128318 107,590 619288 186,215 134257 67,715 (74,808) 18471 1,058,728 15,798 1,074,526
Notes: P&E -

Share premium IR0 m (B

The share premium account represents the excess of the issue price  BRDEEBEREIEZHTE(FIREMETHAI)BHAT
net of any issuance expenses over the par value of the shares issued ZE/TIRMOEEZHEE  WEFARRAT Z KRG HE
and has been credited to the share premium account of the Company. BE > B)ARMEEBRASHSHE R A FE34ERT
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section — &l °

34 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

86



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREBEBRAT

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the paid-in capital of subsidiaries acquired plus
the consideration received by the Company pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares.

Statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") applicable to foreign investment enterprises and
the Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company,
these PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves,
namely a statutory reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund
which are non-distributable.

Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Scud Electronics”), Scud Battery
Co., Ltd. (“Scud Battery”), Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen Hongde"”), Fujian Green Energy Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Green
Energy”). Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Hongde"),
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. (“Scud Intelligent Technology”)
(together the “PRC Subsidiaries”) are required to transfer 10%
of their respective profit after income tax as reported in the PRC
statutory financial statements to the statutory reserve fund until the
balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital. Pursuant
to the Articles of Association of the PRC Subsidiaries, they are also
required to make appropriation from their respective profit after
income tax as reported in the PRC statutory financial statements to
the enterprise expansion fund at rates determined by their respective
boards of directors.

The statutory reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with the approval from the relevant government
authorities, to increase capital for expansion of production of the PRC
Subsidiaries. The enterprises expansion fund, subject to the approval
by the relevant government authorities, may also be used to increase
capital of the PRC Subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Gain/losses arising on translating the net assets of foreign operations
into presentation currency.

Retained profits/(accumulated losses)

No dividend is proposed for the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the balance of retained profits
of the Group was RMB18,471,000 (2018: accumulated losses of
RMB18,602,000).

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRETmER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1L F/Z

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Cash flows from operating activities RETEMBHRERE
Profit before income tax % BIT1S F AiT via A1) 56,227 105,280
Adjustments for: FHEIER :
Interest income L2 U A (11,182) (10,348)
Finance costs BhE AN 48,274 54,062
Amortisation of intangible assets T A 1,100 1,349
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERRETE
equipment 51,635 53,539
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant  HEYE  KE RBE (W) i
and equipment (3,232) 5,180
Write-off of property, plant and M - HE KA
equipment 3,917 1,464
Depreciation of investment properties KEYENE 5,047 846
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREAENE 20,854 =
Impairment loss recognised on trade and  FhfEWE Z 3 E K EKRZERER 2
notes receivables BIEEE 56,576 44,976
Impairment loss recognised on IENFIE - 1S R H fth EHRIERER
prepayments, deposits and other ZRIEEE
receivables 20,641 17,857
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and  BAMER 2 EIRE 5 7B K EWREZERE
notes receivables previously recognised Es BB [o] (4,013) (19,970)
Reversal of impairment loss on BABRZEMNKIE - Be REMEWRKIE
prepayments, deposits and other B R Rl
receivables previously recognised (23,778) (5,655)
Write-down of inventories FEHUR = 14,109
Write-off of inventories FEH 21,025 18,357
Provision for reworks RSB = 4,037
Dissolution of subsidiary NG - 376
Operating profit before changes in LIBESEHAIRL LR
working capital 243,091 285,459
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAD,/(35n) 77,102 (57,227)
Increase in trade and notes receivables FEWE 5308 & e Z 52180 (215,627) (477,638)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERIE © Re REMEWGRIE
deposits and other receivables B (1) 89,033 (159,120)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from  FEUEIE A 2B R/ (£ 0)
related parties 131,550 (37,630)
Increase in trade and notes payables JE B 5 3R IE KR B =R A0 44,811 1,010,110
Decrease in other payables, H A FRIA - TRWGRIA R ERT B RR A
receipts in advance and accrued charges (6,309) (104,954)
Cash generated from operations EEELARS 363,651 459,000
Interest paid ERALE (48,274) (54,062)
Income tax paid BT ATEHE (4,613) (12,067)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,“/-_]_\AIE,E/}“,E%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12 431 H 1 F/Z

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

Net cash generated from operating EEFHRELERS TR

activities 310,764 392,871
Investing activities REEE
Interest received 2 Y B 11,182 10,348
Capital contribution to a subsidiary by JEE H%Eﬁﬂ'ﬂ‘ﬁ% AIZEE

non-controlling interests 5,540 -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits EIRIREFOR D (3 0) 557 (332,623)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE P%&nﬂﬁ

and equipment FR{S5k18 13,666 -
Payments to acquire property, plant and BEYE  BE RERERE

equipment (243,419) (47,386)
Payments to acquire intangible assets HEEFEENRIE (1,656) (1,000)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFMARSTE (214,130) (370,661)
Financing activities & EE
Bank loans raised EERTER 1,055,882 754,469
Other loans raised SEEMER = 20,000
Repayment of principal portion of leases EEHEERS D (24,273) -
Repayment of bank loans EBRITER (854,966) (788,615)
Repayment of other loans EEHEMER (10,038) (9,000)
Repayment of obligations under finance EEREHEAE

leases = (2,350)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to FERTES I R

directors 32 (5,234)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due to FERTREE A LRIBORA), /10

related parties (38,589) 44,504
Net cash generated from financing BEEE S RETE

activities 128,048 13,774
Net increase in cash and cash ReRASEEER FEEM

equivalents 224,682 35,984
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F¥RERRELZEEIER

of year 182,529 146,304
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes E RS E) & (1,014) 241
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FREERESEEEE

year 406,197 182,529
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRFALEEBEAEHRIN

cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEER IR 406,197 182,529
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE IR R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1L F/Z

1. GENERAL

SCUD Group Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 July 2006 as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares were
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 December 2006.

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones, tablets and digital electronic appliances, while also
engaging in manufacture and sale of lithium-ion bare battery
cells.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs - effective
from 1 January 2019
IFRS 16
R TS RS 2ERI 1655

IFRIC-Int 23

SRR ERELEE G —REE23%

Amendments to IFRS 9

BURR B 75 5 2RI ZE 95 (18 ET AN)

Amendments to IAS 19

BIR = E 2RI 1958 (18FTAN)

Amendments to IAS 28

BB =ET 2R 52858 (185 AN)

Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
B B 5 R 5 22 R20159F — 2017 A H 2 FE e

Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
REIFEIREXERI2015F — 201 7FAH 2 FESE

Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
RETTEIREXERI2015F — 2017 A H 2 FESE

Annual Improvements to 2015-2017 IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
REI SRS XERI2015F — 2017F A 2 FESE

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 “Leases” have been
summarised in below. The other new or amended IFRSs
that are effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

90
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Q0B e EHEFMR I EEREZ ETHAER
AT ERRH 2006512 521 BEBBHAR
SHAERAR([BRET])EMR L -

ARBNMEBEXBR/REZR - REKBEQA
TERERETH  FREMIBBRETE
mrRz BRFEeEAR R 2 EER
HE  TMMEEEBETFECCEERHE o

2. BRAAFET RS BRI WS
28 ([ BFR A A5 3R 5 22 A )

(a) MAFITREEFTER K ®REE
Al—H2019%F 1818 BEXK
Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
FRS T BR P2 1) N E 1

Prepayment Features and Negative Compensation

BEMEZ BN

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
FTENSET - fRRskEE

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
REE AR ReEREr RS

Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

R MEERNNEIRUERTA) EKE 6t

Amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”
RIS ERERIE 1R USRI AR) & &R

Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes”
R R 255 (IBFTA) [ AT 8

Amendments to IAS 23 ”Borrowing Costs”
Re R E 235 (BT [BERKA]

BRI SR EERIE 1655 HE 2%
ZREMNT c B2019F 1 A1 BEBZ HA
IS FT EBR B s R A 2 R A R
BRI BT MEATE -



2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16")

(i)

Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16

IFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting
treatment for lease accounting, primarily for
accounting for lessees. It replaces IAS 17- “Leases”
("IAS 17"), IFRIC-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”, SIC-Int 15 “Operating
Leases-Incentives” and SIC-Int 27 “Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of
a Lease”. From a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases
are recognised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, with the
narrow exception to this principle for leases which the
underlying assets are of low-value or are determined
as short-term leases. From a lessor’'s perspective,
the accounting treatment is substantially unchanged
from IAS 17. For details of IFRS 16 regarding its
new definition of a lease, its impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and the transition method adopted
by the Group as allowed under IFRS 16, please refer to
section (ii) to (v) of this note.

The Group has elected to apply IFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and recognised
all the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS
16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at the date of initial application.
The comparative information presented in 2018 has
not been restated and continues to be reported under
IAS 17 and related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in IFRS 16.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(i)
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(a) RAFTRCETRARTBRE R
Bl—E201941 818 B4 M (&)

EIfR B 7 3R & 22 R 1635 — HHE ([ IR AT
BEHEERIFE 1655 ]) (F)

Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued) (i) RABEBEIEREEAF1HENT
& (&)
The following tables summarised the impact of TRBEE Z BRI SR & RIS
transition to IFRS 16 on consolidated statement of 165 ¥ # 22018412 H31H £2019
financial position as of 31 December 2018 to that of 1 FIATEHNGETBRARNTE
January 2019 as follows: U
Carrying Capitalisation Carrying
amount of operating amount
at 31 December  lease contracts at 1 January
2018 under IFRS 16 2019
IR BB B 75
20184 HEER R20195
12A31BH  B165RERL 1H1EH
AREE KEHEEH BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBT T ARET
Line items in the RAEVBRARESIEE
consolidated statement PR AN BB B TS s
of financial position AERIFE 165 2 2
impacted by the
adoption of IFRS 16:
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Property, plant and Y - BB KEAE
equipment 216,757 (9,688) 207,069
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 30,954 30,954
Lease liabilities — current ~ HE&E—REEH
portion - (22,020) (22,020)
Lease liabilities — non- HEBE-—ERBIS
current portion - (2,571) (2,571)
EQUITY =
Accumulated losses ZEEE 18,602 3,012 21,614
Non-Controlling Interest e (14,001) 313 (13,688)

The following reconciliation explains how the operating
lease commitments disclosed applying IAS 17 at the
end of 31 December 2018 could be reconciled to
the lease liabilities at the date of initial application
recognised in the statement of financial position as at
1 January 2019:

LA B8R B 2 7A2018F 12 A31 8 K
ERBRet R 1TRBENL
EHEAEEN2019F1 18 M5
TEARR R FERR A B X FE AR B HAY A
EaEZHERER



2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 (Continued)
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2.

R T RIS T BB B IR E

2Bl w)

(a) RAFTRCETRARTEERE S
Bl—E201941 818 B4 M (2)

BB 75 3R 2 22 B 5 1695 — HH B ([ EIREET
BEHEERIFE 1655 ]) (&)
() ENEBRPBRELENF1RHR

& (&)
1 January 2019
2019F181H
RMB’000
AR®T T
Operating lease commitments at 2018 12 A31 A M & EAYE
31 December 2018 26,082
Less:commitments relating to leases exempt & : #A%e & AL 0 E AR RGHY AIE
from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases with — %G BRI & ok IR T & HARR 7420194
remaining lease term ending on or 12A31 B2 AR EMAE
before 31 December 2019 (32)
Less: total future interest expenses W ARRF B R (1,459)
Total lease liabilities recognised at R2019F1 A1 RN HE B EEE
1 January 2019 24,591

The new definition of a lease

Under IFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or part
of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. A contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time
when the customer, throughout the period of use,
has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset and
(b) the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration
in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, unless the lessee apply the
practical expedient which allows the lessee to elect,
by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components, and instead
account for each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

(i) HENHTEE
RIZBIBR B 75 & RIS 165% -
EWERREREEABEE)N—
BRI E (R A BB — IR
BRFEHN D - ERFPREME
EREERE : (A RERERAD
Bl B E i R B R B KB a5 I
b)FEETERNEENREE
BRI FEN TR —BRERERZESE
BRI EER A

AEEHEERD AR —BHZ AR
HESFFEEFONEHNME - AHE
ABRENRESEESZHERD
EEZHE D ELE LB MIF
HERDEBIER - RIFRBEA
& R B EE 7 AEABR AR RAE
BERMNEENMEER TR
HERD - MEKSHERD REM
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)
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(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The new definition of a lease (Continued)

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and account for all each lease component
and any associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

Accounting as a lessee

Under IAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an
operating lease or a finance lease based on the extent
to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of a lease asset lie with the lessor or the lessee.
If a lease is determined as an operating lease, the
lessee would recognise the lease payments under the
operating lease as an expense over the lease term. The
asset under the lease would not be recognised in the
statement of financial position of the lessee.

Under IFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but IFRS 16
provides accounting policy choices for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying
asset is of low-value. The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities at the commencement date of a lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIBITEBREIERE

(Continued) R #)
(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective (a) A HF T RS ET B BR B 78 3 o 2%
from 1 January 2019 (Continued) Al—B2019F1A1HBER (&)
IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued) ERRBI IR & 2E R 1655 — HHE ([ BB E)S
BIREERFE165E ) (&)
(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued) (iii) EAFRBEANSER (&)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liability.

For the Group, investment properties that were held
for rental or capital appreciation purpose would
continue to be accounted for under IAS 40 and would
be carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. For
leasehold land and buildings which is held for own
use would continue to be accounted for under IAS
16 and would be carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation. The adoption of IFRS 16 therefore does
not have any significant impact on these right-of-use
assets. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgement and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

{F RS E RN AR BEE
Wt EaENEE(RTX
EAEEEEARNETBUR) ¢ (i)
MREE B Hisk 2 pIYEL M EAR &1
SRR B W B A A {rT FR B BRI 5 (i)
FAAEENTRNPERERA: Kv)
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B KGR R AR E AR B E LR
THETERA « BRIEZSN AT BEETT
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
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Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group'’s incremental borrowing
rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option and (v) payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in
the lease term, a change in the in substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(iv) Accounting as a lessor

(v)

The Group has leased out its investment property to a
tenant. As the accounting under IFRS 16 for a lessor
is substantially unchanged from the requirements
under IAS 17, the adoption of IFRS 16 does not have
significant impact on these consolidated financial
statements.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied IFRS
16 using the modified retrospective approach and
recognised all the cumulative effect of initially applying
IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated losses at the date of initial application (1
January 2019). The comparative information presented
in 2018 has not been restated and continues to be
reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in IFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the
date of 1 January 2019 for leases previously classified
as operating leases applying IAS 17 and measured
those lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019 for leases previously classified
operating leases under IAS 17 as if IFRS 16 had been
applied since the commencement date, but discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. For all these right-of-use
assets, the Group has applied IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets” at 1 January 2019 to assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.
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(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective
from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRS 16 — Leases (“IFRS 16”) (Continued)

(v)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has also applied the follow practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of
the date of initial application (1 January 2019) and
accounted for those leases as short-term leases; (iii)
exclude the initial direct costs from the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at 1 January 2019 and (iv)
used hindsight in determining the lease terms if the
contracts contain options to extend or terminate the
leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical
expedients such that: (i) IFRS 16 is applied to all of the
Group's lease contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and (ii) not
to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease under IAS 17 and
IFRIC-Int 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIBITEBREIERE
(Continued) R #)

(a) ERAHEIHAEERT BRI E

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective

from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

IFRIC-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of IAS 12
“Income Taxes”, by providing guidance over how to reflect
the effects of uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether
to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or
together based on which approach better predicts the
resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume
the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a
right to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the entity
determines it is probable that the tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should measure
current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the
entity determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty
in the determination of tax is reflected using either the
“most likely amount” or the “expected value” approach,
whichever better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to IFRS 9 — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets
with negative compensation can be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
if specified conditions are met — instead of at fair value
through profit or loss.
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(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective () AT REETERGEREE

100

from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that IFRS 9 applies to long-term
interests in associates or joint ventures which form part of
the net investment in the associates or joint ventures and
stipulates that IFRS 9 is applied to these long-term interests
before the impairment losses guidance within IAS 28.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IFRS 3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the previously
held equity interest should therefore be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
- Amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IFRS 11 which clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation
which is a business and subsequently obtains joint control
of the joint operation, the previously held equity interest
should not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIBITEBREIERE
(Continued) R #)

(a) ERAHEIHAEERT BRI E

(a) Adoption of new or amended IFRSs — effective

from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IAS 12 “Income Taxes”

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised consistently with the transactions
that generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”

The amendments issued under the annual improvements
process make small, non-urgent changes to standards
where they are currently unclear. They include amendments
to IAS 23 which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically
to obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs
(Continued)

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new or amended IFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

2.

RN T RIS T BRI AR &

2Bl w)

(b) MM RENMZ FTREHETH
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THIFRE AR BB IHRR BRI K
RIERT BRI 15 & 22 R 2 AR B E 15 R
R AREASERERA -

Group.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business'
I R B 765 e 45 HE I 35 355 (18 RT A% FHEZER
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material’

Bt BB 1R LRBER ST ERESR(ETA) BEAZER

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

BRI 15 = R FE 95 - B & At R 3957 P RELR S

K BIRR B T 3R S ERIZE 75% (B RT AR)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
BRSBTS RS ZE RIS 1057 M BFR @ 5+ X B 55 2855 Associate or Joint Venture?
(&I A) KEEREBEARIEECERENEALE?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020

2  The amendments were originally intended to be
effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on what is
meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce
outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a “business” to focus on returns from selling goods and
services to customers, rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that

permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business.
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. = NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED IFRSs 2. IRNHITRZIBITEBREIERE
(Continued) R #)

(b) EREAE N RERZHF REEFTE

(b) New or amended IFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 - Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of
“Material”, aligning the definition across all IFRS Standards
and the Conceptual Framework, and incorporating
supporting requirements in IAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects
of the uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark
reform. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and |IAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves
a business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely
when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new pronouncements. The
Directors so far concluded that the application of these new
pronouncements is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group's financial performance and financial position.
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3. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

104

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("IASs”) issued by the IASB and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee of the IASB (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “IFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

3. A%

(a)

(b)

(c)
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—— NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

4. EXETHBE
(a) EBAHRGEHE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up
to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses
are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on
a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they
are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

106

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are
accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests even
if this results in those non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests over the fair value
of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration
paid, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the
carrying amount to each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

108

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost or valuation net of expected residual
value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as

follows:

Plant and machinery 10%

Motor vehicles 20%

Electronic equipment, furniture and 20%
fixtures

Moulds 20%-33.33%

Leasehold improvements 10%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Cost comprises direct costs of construction as
well as borrowing costs capitalised during the periods of
construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets
for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change
therein recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(e) Investment property (Continued)

()

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income, the Group chooses
not to classify and account for these property interests as
investment property.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1

January 2019) (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (iii) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of an investment property, they
are carried at fair value and for right-of-use asset that
meets the definition of a leasehold land and buildings held
for own use, they are carried at fair value.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that
are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under
IAS 40 “Investment Property” and are carried at fair value.
The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use under IAS 16 “Property, plant
and equipment” and are carried at fair value. Other than
the above right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased
a number of properties under tenancy agreements which
the Group exercises it judgement and determines that it
is a separate class of asset apart from the leasehold land
and buildings which is held for own use. As a result, the
right-of-use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()
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Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
January 2019) (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be
payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in future
lease payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in substance
fixed lease payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)

(g) Leasing (accounting polices applied until 31 (9) HE(EZ2018F12A31HILEARAE

December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets
(i) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at
the date of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over
their useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss and included in
administrative expenses.

Software 3-5 years

(ii) Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

—  adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

—  the Group is able to sell the product;
—  sale of the product will generate future economic

benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Intangible assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Capitalised development costs are amortised over
the periods the Group expects to benefit from selling
the products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in cost of
sales.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of
internal projects are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts, irrespective
of whether there is any indication that they may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

(i) Financial Instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.

FVTOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated
using the effective interest rate method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

4, ERSHBE#)

(i) &WMIA#E)

(i)

EEEE(FE)
MERATETANEREENEE
HASRERE RERINAE KA
ERABBIELEE -

BEBITA

A TACHRFEGTASEHERE
BENEBRAREENRSRER
BiE - "EBEBIANGES R
LA 4R

BERA  BERBRENERESREL
BERBHEKAE  HhE@RE
MEBAEAS KA SR o RE#H
KA ENEREER R KA ERF
TEFTE o FIBWA ~ EH Yz K&
BN ERERER - BURRERHN
EfR SN RER -

BATEFAREGEEYE  HER
BMAENRERENHESTHEEZE
ERAFEFARMEEKETE
HPAHEERSREMAREASR
MEMR - MAFEFAEMEER
BHNERREERTIRAFEAE -
MEWARBERN L E - EX
Yeas Ko B HRIA ROBE N 1B a5 AR o
Hib s RS EFENE M2 EmK s
FHER - REUBHERE - EMEEYK
SR Rt B EREREHRNEER

N

Bl



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVTOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
All other equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and interest
income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables, financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt investments measured at
FVTOCI. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

118

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using IFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2

(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE »)

(Continued)
(i) Financial Instruments (Continued) (i) €E@MITA#E)
(i) Financial liabilities (iii) 2HERE

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are initially measured at
fair value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, financial liabiltiies included in
other payables, receipts in advance and accrued
charges, borrowings, amounts due to related parties,
amounts due to directors and lease liabilites are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with IFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of
that liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss for the year.
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4., SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

122

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

3 creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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V)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the period
between the payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.

(i) Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances

Customers obtain control of the products when the
goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one
performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 60-90 days.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers
from the sale of product provides customers a right
of return (a right to exchange another product of
the same type, quality, condition and price). These
rights of return do not allow the returned goods to
be refund in cash. The right of return gives rise to
variable consideration. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until the associated uncertainty is subsequently
resolved. The application of the constraint on variable
consideration increases the amount of revenue that
will be deferred. In addition, a refund liability and a
right to recover returned goods assets are recognised.
In the comparative period, revenue for these contracts
was recognised when a reasonable estimate of
the returns could be made, provide that all other
revenue recognition criteria are met. If a reasonable
estimate could not be made, such revenue would be
deferred until the return period lapsed or a reasonable
estimate could be made. As a result of the change in
accounting policy, the adoption of IFRS 15 does not
result in significant impact on the Group’s accounting
policies, as an exchange by customers of one product
for another of the same type, quality, condition and
price (for example, exchanging the product for one of
a different colour or size) is not considered a return
for the purposes of applying IFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(I) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital
electronic appliances (Continued)

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from
the sale of product provides standard warranty service
for defective goods to assure that the product sold
complies with the agreed-upon specifications within 6
months following the date of delivery. The warranty
gives rise to a separate performance obligation if
a warranty provides a customer with a service in
addition to the assurance that the product complies
with agreed-upon specifications. Therefore, an entity
shall allocate the transaction price to the product and
the service. As a result of the change in accounting
policy, the adoption of IFRS 15 does not result in
significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies
as an assurance-type warranty does not give arise to
an additional performance obligation.

Other revenue

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Processing income is recognised over time when
processing services are provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE »)

(Continued)

(m) EHNEEREE

(m) Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when (i) the Group completes
the sales of products under such services contracts but
yet issue invoice to customers. Any amount previously
recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade
receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances received
from customers) exceeds the revenue recognised to date
under the output method then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.

RHEERAKERATEFPBRRAEED
R RIS AR B BRI (i R K R B
fERfF) - R - EUSCRE AN S EEREK
EREGAERN - BRESIBMRAER
W o

EMEERARBEAKED B TP K
REEREBECDBD) - MAEERS
TEPZER

BRHEENAEBRREZSERBAH
SERKE MIHE A RMF P E L ERRE
R o KRR B/ANEEN T SRRER
BEFHAREREN D BRERE SN
e BRRE(RERE P WEMTEMN
RIE)BHESXERNKE - MAKE
ERBHE=BERASNAMRE -

127



SCUD GROUP LIMITED
REREEBRAF

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ /| -~ jﬁ%#&%lﬁt

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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(n) Income tax

(n) FriS®i

128

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or
liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates
and jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBZE 2
(Continued)

(o) Foreign currency (o) 0

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate(s) (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB and INR) at the average exchange rates
for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating
to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests
as appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

130

(p) Employee benefits

(a)

()

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews

the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine

whether there is any indication that those assets have

suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Investment properties under cost model;

Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases; and

Investments in subsidiaries.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

(r)

(s)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expenses immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount
under another IFRS, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease under that IFRS.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EASHBE 2

(Continued)

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities (t) BERIARERE
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing EXASEERBATSEHEA LERSHEER
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive Eif Al BE B EBUR AR - Bz B
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is AL S IR AT R - BIlE BE AR A2 T E )
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that SRR B EEREE -

can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic i SR A RE R 2 H BN & - &5
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be REEAISEfLET  BIZEEBBRERKIRE
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a &+ MER B = A R 08 RIBR S
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of EURENERAE BN ZBRAESEHA
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the AIEERLFENRERET  NEEES
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence SN EE - HEA H AR A e ) R (i A
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also BRAN o

disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u) Related parties (u) BEAL
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) fWEBLATAL @ RIFZALTSZATH
related to the Group if that person: TR BERK B BN [E A R
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; (i) PEHIk R
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEEEEAFEN ok
(iiiy is a member of key management personnel of (i) ARNEEHARABEFRAMNE
the Group or the Company’s parent. ZEBENE o
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the (b) fHFFE THMEMGRYE - BIZERBER
following conditions apply: RE B B
(i) The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEASEBER-—SEHH
same group (which means that each parent, BRERBI(ANEE]LAA - HER
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the AIRARWEARKILEE @
others). 33) o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —"REBRS—EBHNBER
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a AlgEE (RS —EBAK
member of a group of which the other entity is a BARIMEEKE QAR
member). NAHEEDE) -
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MREBHRA-—F=7HAa
party. B o
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(u) Related parties (Continued)

(b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(Continued)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the group or to the group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)

and

(iii)

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.
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5.

134

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRS requires the directors to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection
and disclosure of the Group’s critical accounting policies and
estimates. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets or liabilities are as follows:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and investment
properties of similar nature and functions. The Group will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, and will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in
a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charges in future periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(ii) Net realisable value of inventories

5. EEEHHERATRERERE
ZEERIR (@)

(i) FEZTSHFE

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes

BFEZASRFEDNHEEERGEEPIE
2 (et EER AT TR A f Al & &
Fsz o M E AT THIRIRIR I o R UE
BreERHEEMBERLRMEDL -
TeRERFRREBEFHFREMTE
RRFMETBIMABEAZ( - EENER

in customer taste and competitor actions in response to any HEREH G EET -
industry downturn. The directors reassess the estimations at
the end of each reporting period.

(iii) Allowances for trade receivables EWE S RIE 2 #1E

The Group uses a provision of matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and notes receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based
on management’s estimate of the lifetime expected credit
losses to be incurred, which is estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of overdue fee
receivables, customers’ repayment history and customers’
financial position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions, all of which
involve a significant degree of management judgement. The
provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and of forecast general economic conditions. The
information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade and
notes receivables are disclosed in Note 20. If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Warranty claims

The Group generally offers half-year warranties for its
own-brand name products sold. The directors estimate
the related provision for future warranty claims based on
historical warranty claim information, as well as recent
trends that might suggest that past cost information may
differ from future claims. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the
Group’s productivity and quality initiatives, as well as parts
and labour costs.

Impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether an intangible asset is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise and a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise.
Details of the impairment testing are provided in Note 18.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment and
investment properties at the end of each reporting period.
Property, plant and equipment and investment properties
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, the
directors estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(vii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB60,993,000 (2018: RMB26,855,000)
which relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses
and may not be used to offset taxable income elsewhere
in the Group. These subsidiaries have no temporary taxable
differences which could partly support the recognition
of deferred tax assets. Also, there are no tax planning
opportunities available that would further provide a basis
for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, profits would increase by approximately
RMB15,248,000 (2018: profits would increase by
approximately RMB6,714,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 29.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(viii) Control over Cybertech Optiemus Holdings

138

(ix)

Limited (“Cybertech”)

The Group owns 50% equity interests in Cybertech. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control
over Cybertech and its subsidiaries (collectively “Cybertech
Group”), the directors considered whether the Group has
the ability to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. In making this judgement, the directors considered
that the relevant activities of Cybertech are directed by the
board of directors and all resolutions of directors’ meeting
are passed by simple majority. Since the Group is entitled
to appoint 3 out of 5 directors into the board of directors
of Cybertech in accordance with investment agreement,
the Group dominates the board of directors of Cybertech
and is able to direct the relevant activities of Cybertech
Group. The directors of the Company were therefore of
the opinion that Group has control over Cybertech Group
during the year despite its shareholding therein was
50% and Cybertech Group were qualified as subsidiaries
of the Company under IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements” for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Estimation of incremental borrowing rate for
lease liabilities

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security,
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use assets in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into

, which requires estimation when no observable rates

financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates.

|
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Turnover

Turnover represents gross invoiced sales, less returns and
trade discounts.

The following table provides information about trade
receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from
contracts with customers.
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6.

EXRBERIBER
(a) &%

ERREREEHERBRERERE ST
e

TREHRBBAERKESHE ANEER
KEEFEHNZENAEZER -

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

20195 20184

12A31H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREFT

Trade and notes receivables FEWE 5 ZOE & R R 1% 2,329,774 2,165,386
Contract liabilities BREE 28,733 31,031

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to consideration for work completed but not billed
at the reporting date on revenue. The contract assets
are transferred to receivables when the rights become
unconditional. This usually occurs when the Group provides
the invoice to the customer.

The contract liabilities mainly relate to the advance
consideration received from customers. RMB31,031,000 of
the contract liabilities as of 31 December 2018 has been
recognised as revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019 from performance obligations satisfied in previous
year.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales
contracts for lithium-ion battery modules and related
accessories for mobile phones and digital electronic
appliances and therefore the above information does not
include information about revenue that the Group will be
entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contracts that had an original
expected duration of one year or less.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

140

Reportable segments

The Group has adopted IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
with effect from 1 January 2009. IFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision makers in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

The Group is engaged in the business of the Group’s own
brand “SCUDFRERR" (“Own-brand business”), original design
manufacturing (“ODM business”) as well as bare battery cells
(“Bare battery cells business”). The chief operating decision
makers (i.e. the Company’s directors) review the segment
information of these businesses and based on it to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. The
Group's reportable segments are set out below:

ODM business — Manufacture and supply of lithium-ion
battery modules, power banks, motive battery and related
accessories for branded mobile phone and tablets and EV
manufacturers within and outside China.

Own-brand business — Manufacture and sale of
“SCUDFRERR" brand lithium-ion battery modules, power
banks, power management module, motive battery smart
wearable devices battery and related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electronic appliances.

Bare battery cell business — Manufacture and sale of
lithium-ion bare battery cells for mobile phones, tablets and
power banks.

Others — Sales of raw materials and work-in-progress and
processing income.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

SEERIHBER )

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

On 30 December 2019, the Group entered into a trademark
transfer agreement with Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling
shareholder, pursuant to which the parties agreed a total
of 15 “SCUD”, “FREM" and “"SCUDFRERR" trademarks
and related intellectual property rights shall be transferred
by the Group to Mr. Fang lJin for a total consideration of
RMB3,000,000. Upon completion of the trademark transfer,
the Group shall cease to have any right in respect of such
trademarks and rights and accordingly, the “Own-brand
business” segment was terminated from 30 December
2019. The trademarks and related intellectual property
rights were internally generated and did not form a cash-
generating unit on their own. As such the trademark
transfer did not account for as a Discontinued Operation.

The Group reclassified the associated assets and liabilities
to the “ODM business” segment from the “own-brand
business” segment in order to fully utilise the production
capacity of the Group. As a result, no assets and liabilities
were presented under the “own-brand business” segment
as at 31 Decemebr 2019.
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented as

follows:

(b) H¥RDAR(E)

ERZEXBNOHBERZ5I0T

Segment revenue and results D Eb R FAE
2019
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Others Total
BE
ODMEE#H RlESS ERER Hit #@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRE AR%Tn AR¥®Trn AR%Tn ARETx
Total Turnover Fal—) 8,106,445 44,704 310,321 508,945 8,970,415
Less: Intersegment sales W AERHE (1,235,981) - (25,827) (313,404) (1,575,212)
Turnover BER 6,870,464 44,704 284,494 195,541 7,395,203
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/(B8R) 96,840 3,408 (11,492) 13,671 102,427
Unallocated income AOEBA
- Bank interest income —8RTREWA 11,182
- Others —Hf 6,383
Unallocated expenses RAOERY
- Auditor’s remuneration — RS (2,112)
— Legal and professional fees —FEREXER (2,583)
— Staff costs —BIK (7,672)
— Exchange loss - EREX (344)
— Others —Hit (2,780)
— Finance costs — BB (48,274)
Profit before income tax B TS5 Al A 56,227
Income tax Fi5 R (7,531)
Profit for the year ARERRF 48,696

142



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREERRAA
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR R AR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194F 12431 H I F/E

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

SEERIHBER )

(b) Reportable segments (Continued) (b) BIF|DE(E)

Segment revenue and results (Continued) D ER o R EAE (4E)
2018
Own-brand  Bare battery
ODM business business  cell business Others Total
BE
ODME7% migE BNER Hth Feay
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETT AREFTT AR%®Tr ARETR
Total Turnover mEFEE 6,461,948 1,175,165 296,519 211,311 8,144,943
Less: Intersegment sales W BB E (1,242)  (1,111,971) (65,179) (4,473)  (1,182,865)
Turnover B 6,460,706 63,194 231,340 206,838 6,962,078
Segment profit DI EF 143,315 1,124 14,668 5,638 164,745
Unallocated income ROBBA
- Bank interest income —RITFEHA 10,348
— Exchange gain — B X s 801
— Gain on dissolution of a — fREUSINH B A A
foreign subsidiary Py 376
Unallocated expenses APEHE
— Auditor’s remuneration — %NS (2,712)
- Legal and professional fees —FEREEER (4,506)
— Staff costs —BTHA (4,011)
- Others =i} (5,699)
— Finance costs — BB AR (54,062)
Profit before income tax % P55 B A 105,280
Income tax Fri5Hi (9,196)
Profit for the year NEE %A 96,084
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

EEBRIIER B

(b) H¥RDAR(E)

Assets and liabilities BEREE
2019
ODM Own-brand Bare battery
business business cell business Total
BE
ODME7 LY S EREK #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®Tnr AR¥TR AR%®Tx
Segment assets DEfEE 4,813,850 - 210,468 5,024,318
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE
— Property, plant and —W%E  BER
equipment B 8,280
— Investment properties —REWFE 61,141
— Bank balances and cash —RITHERRR S 2,242
— Prepayments, deposits and —TEHRIE Rk
other receivables H i fE U R IR 18,732
— Others —HAt 68,487
Consolidated total assets A BEARE 5,183,200
Segment liabilities DEPEE 3,931,773 - 149,108 4,080,881
Unallocated corporate liabilities K28 A R B &
— Trade payables —E FENHIA 15,929
— Other payables — H th e K08 5,061
— Amounts due to directors —ENESEHIE 409
— Deferred tax liabilities —REHIEAE 5,360
— Others —H 1,034
Consolidated total liabilities mAABERE 4,108,674

144



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREERRAA
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

(b) Reportable segments (Continued)

4= A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE R R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194F 12431 H I F/E

(b) HR¥RDER(E)

EEBMOEER B

Assets and liabilities (Continued) BERBE(E)
2018
ODM  Own-brand Bare battery
business business  cell business Total
BB
ODMET% mh R R BINE 5T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFIT AREFT AREBTT ARETRT
Segment assets DEfEE 4,184,214 424,122 242,238 4,850,574
Unallocated corporate assets ROBEARIEE
— Bank balances and cash —RITEBR KRB 9,948
— Prepayments, deposits and —TENRIE Rk
other receivables H {th e Y ZkTE 873
— Investment properties — KB 66,188
— Others —Hh 4,582
Consolidated total assets A EERE 4,932,165
Segment liabilities HHEE 3,406,721 286,541 170,683 3,863,945
Unallocated corporate liabilities F2 B AR EE
— Other payables — Hib B 5RIA 17,593
— Amounts due to directors —ENEERIE 377
— Deferred tax liabilities —REHEEE 5,360
— Others —EAb 19,453
Consolidated total liabilities REAaGERsE 3,906,728
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6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

(Continued)

(c)
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Other information

(c)

ODM
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Hip &8

2019

Own-brand Bare battery

EEBRIIER B

business business cell business Others Total
BE
ODME# AR EUER Hth st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETz ARETR AR%Tr AR%TxR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — #1% - BE RRERE 31,848 14,086 5,577 124 51,635
Depreciation of investment properties REMZENE - 5,047 - - 5,047
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRRAENE 13,560 4,683 2,279 332 20,854
Interest on lease liabilities REARTIE 877 149 382 45 1,453
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, LENE - FRE R
plant and equipment (iz) /B8 (5,426) (6) 2,200 - (3232
Write-off of property, plant and equipment NE - BERRERE 3,197 524 196 - 3,917
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 1,041 40 19 - 1,100
Impairment loss recognised on trade and note HENE STBREREE
receivables R RERE 1,269 21,462 33,845 - 56,576
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FEAFE - ReREMEKZE
deposits and other receivables BRRESE 14,630 5,737 274 - 20,641
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and note BERRZERE SFERERE
receivables previously recognised ERESEERE (15) (562) (3,436) - (4,013)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, BERAZBANZE R RkEM
deposits and other receivables previously Y ERERRER
recognised (21,506) (2,067) (205) - (23,778)
Write-off of inventories &M 18,862 2,163 - - 21,025
Research and development costs HEER 94,526 7,069 12,187 - 113,782
Income tax s (11,618) 21,141 (3,365) 1373 7,531
Additions to property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRERE 94,376 146,987 2,056 - 243,419
Additions to intangible assets BRYEEMNE 1,656 - - - 1,656
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. &2z NHIER )

(Continued)
(c) Other information (Continued) (c) HERE)
2018
ODM  Own-brand  Bare battery
business business  cell business Others Total
BA
ODME# mIEEH BOER £t st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRERTE 30,473 16,356 6,586 124 53,539
Depreciation of investment properties REMENE = 846 = = 846
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERZEERE 4,749 398 33 = 5,180
Write-off of property, plant and equipment nE - BERERERS 765 699 - - 1,464
Amortisation of intangible assets B ARG 1,202 129 18 = 1,349
Impairment loss recognised on trade and note HEREFFERERESE
receivables R RERR 41,033 161 3,782 - 44,976
Write-off of trade and notes receivables MEENE FTERERER 97,434 12,876 = = 110,310
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, FEMFE - REREMERFE
deposits and other receivables WA ZREER 14,470 3,189 198 - 17,857
Write-off of prepayments, deposits and other MERATE e REM
receivables [EYRzE 19,038 24,398 - - 43,436
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and note BABAZENE FTERERE
receivables previously recognised BREHERD (5,380) (13,940) (650) = (19,970)
Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, BEERZENFE - ke kit
deposits and other receivables previously ERFEREERRE
recognised (1,299) (2,382) (1,974) - (5,655)
Write-down of inventories FEHHR 4,155 9,954 = = 14,109
Write-off of inventories FEMEH 14,455 3,902 = = 18,357
Provision for reworks REBEE 4,037 = = = 4,037
Research and development costs MEEH 114,775 8,703 10,720 = 134,198
Income tax FrEH (6,372) 12,581 1417 1,570 9,196
Additions to property, plant and equipment 0¥ BERRERE 32,192 13,117 2,064 13 47,386
Additions to intangible assets BRAERE 934 = 66 - 1,000
Gain on dissolution of a foreign subsidiary REEINNE AR g = - - (376) (376)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(d) Turnover from major products

The Group’s disaggregated turnover from its major products

were as follows:

6. EXBRIIER )

(d) TEEmMZEXE

REAREEETRERIBEXENT

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREFTT
Turnover recognised at a point in time: RE—BHREANEEE
ODM business: ODME7 :
Mobile phone batteries FH#E 6,044,842 6,015,770
Power banks BEIEIR 787,669 429,127
Motive batteries BN EM 28,350 5,918
Others Hit 9,603 9,891
ODM business ODMET 6,870,464 6,460,706
Own-brand business: BEEmEEL:
Power banks BEEIR 18,137 27,762
Power management modules BREEEMA - 14,850
Mobile phone batteries FIHET 14,050 13,161
Others Hit 12,517 7,421
Own-brand business BAmEER 44,704 63,194
Bare battery cell business: BEREK:
Lithium-ion bare battery cells SEEETER 284,494 231,340
Others Hitb 174,350 183,705
7,374,012 6,938,945
Turnover recognised over time: E—BREARRNEEE .
Processing income Ty A 21,191 23,133
Total turnover Fal 0] 7,395,203 6,962,078
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERoHER #)

(Continued)

(e) Geographical information (e)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results as well as
analysis of the Group’s carrying amount of each relevant
segment’s assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets by geographical market
have not been presented as they are all generated from or
situated in the PRC.

(f) Information about major customers Q)

Revenue from major customers, each of them accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue, are set out below:

i & &
AEBWELZY| LM ETISE D AER
EEBREBESTARANEEFED A
HEEERANEYE - BE REHERER
BEMNEREEES T RAAHZIRFEH
EASMRHER o

FEEFEHR
REFERFZkR=Z(FEESMAEEK
#=10% 3 A B) &AL ¢

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Customer A BEA
Customer B =FB
Customer C =FEC

2,950,171 2,911,236
888,381 N/ATEA!
776,427 975,439

L The corresponding revenue did not contribute over
10% of the total revenue of the Group.

TR EYREAEEKRERLR
10% A £ ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1L F/Z

7. OTHER REVENUE 7. Hittigz

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
Government grants AT R 38,172 13,249
Interest income R EUA 11,182 10,348
Net foreign exchange gain Rl Y] = 7,487
Sales of moulds HEEA 12,337 25,318
Compensation from suppliers HIEmmEE 44 2,684

Reversal of impairment loss on trade and B 2 FEWE 5 7IE KB E IR R
notes receivables previously recognised EEER D 4,013 19,970

Reversal of impairment loss on prepayments, @7 HER 2 FBHIE - 124 & HMELR
deposits and other receivables previously RIEREE B

recognised 23,778 5,655
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME  BERREZ RS

equipment 3,232 -
Gain on disposal of trademarks HEmEZ RS 2,610 =
Gain on dissolution of a foreign subsidiary R EUSINHT B A 7l 2 W as - 376
Recovery of prepayments to suppliers BIEMEE 2 T R R IE N

previously written-off 2,229 -
Sundry income IR A 359 257

97,956 85,344

The government grants represent subsidies received from the PRC BURERETE B P B BUF U R 2 B - DARKET AR
Government to appreciate the industrial contribution to the city, ARRIZHBEEENE ARz m AT ELNES
substantial amount of export trade and technology development Bt MTEANBEREODBERENEE - 25
incurred by the Company’s wholly-owned PRC-based subsidiaries. 22 B A A A (e AR R R R AR 1 o

There are no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants.
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This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

8. BRFETBH AR F
Bk (G A) TFIIEE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEREMEN & -

— current year —KREE 2,112 2,712
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BB RRETE

equipment (including depreciation (BIENAZEE R RSN

recorded in research and development & AR#6,731,0007T

costs of RMB6,731,000 (20184 : AR¥7,720,0007T))

(2018: RMB7,720,000) 51,635 53,539
Depreciation of investment properties KEMERE 5,047 846
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 20,854 =
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ERH 1,100 1,349
Impairment loss recognised on trade and TIEWE 5 F0E & B W E R ER

notes receivables ZIBEEE 56,576 44,976
Impairment loss recognised on prepayments, BT FIE - &4 & H i fE W FIBFER

deposits and other receivables ZBEEE 20,641 17,857
Write-down of inventories FEMUR - 14,109
Write-off of inventories FEMH 21,025 18,357
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, plant  HEY¥  RE LB (W) Bia

and equipment (3.232) 5,180
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #5452 « B & 5248 3,917 1,464
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses MR AR 2 FEKA 6,850,287 6,400,431
Cost of processing income INTHAZ BA 14,458 1,981
Provision for reworks RIE BB = 4,037
Operating lease rentals for office premises  HAZELLIHER S 4,674 26,399
Research and development costs e 113,782 134,198
Staff costs (Note 9) B TARA(KIEE9) 588,882 449,970
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) [ M8 (e ) 35 344 (7,487)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1L F/Z

9. STAFF COSTS 9. EIRA&

2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T AREEF T
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EE=< (HFE10) 3,702 3,467
Other staff costs Hih 8 Tk A 595,537 483,448
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRBEFIGT B3R 39,248 31,297

Less: Staff costs included in research and S FE AR BRRE TR
development costs (49,605) (68,242)

588,882 449,970

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION 10. EE R B E

(a) Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 () WBEBB R AEHI(5622F ) FE3831F (5
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the P RAR(HEBEBEEMNRER)HM(E
Ordinance) and the Companies (Disclosure of information 622GE) (AN HEENESMST ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the
Regulation) is as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Salaries, housing allowances, other M - BEERL - 4RI R

allowances and benefits in kind EYEF 1,300 1,929
Fees we 2,378 1,504
Other emoluments: HAb & :
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RONEFIET B 5K 24 34

3,702 3,467
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION 10.EEREEHM &)
(Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESZNMOBMESFBELOT :
are as follows:

2019
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits scheme Total
in kind Fees contributions emoluments
M- EE
AL Hity
BER RIRER
BYEHN wne Bl ez
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETR ARWTRT AR¥TZR

Feng Ming Zhu btz ko) 600 211 12 823
Lian Xiu Qin BEE 700 211 12 923
Hou Li [Z3va — 160 - 160
Ho Chung Tai Raymond fAléEZR - 845 - 845
Heng Ja Wei Victor TR 4 - 317 - 317
Lam Yau Yiu MR IR - 317 - 317
Wong Chi Wing EEH - 317 - 317

1,300 2,378 24 3,702

153



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREEBRAR
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G B 7 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1L F/Z

10. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES’' REMUNERATION 10.EEREEHFM 2
(Continued)

(b) Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors (b) AEBRESIZNMBMESFBENT (&)
are as follows: (Continued)

2018
Salaries,
housing
allowances,
other Retirement
allowances benefits
and benefits in scheme Total
kind Fees  contributions  emoluments
2
Z8G - Eft
ALK RIANEF
EWERN e FHEIER iRt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTET ARBTT ARETT AREBTZR

Fang Jin Pakeia - - 9 9
Guo Quan Zeng S[R3 997 - 9 1,006
Feng Ming Zhu RSB 600 203 13 816
Lian Xiu Qin HEE 332 53 3 388
Zhang Li R - 119 - 119
Hou Li &= = 160 = 160
Ho Chung Tai Raymond BFEES - 212 - 212
Loke Yu laisyy - 267 - 267
Wang Jing Zhong Fas - 52 - 52
Wang Jian Zhang TEE - 52 - 52
Heng Ja Wei Victor B 4 - 226 - 226
Lam Yau Yiu MR - 80 - 80
Wong Chi Wing ERSEE - 80 - 80

1,929 1,504 34 3,467
During both years, none of the director has received any REEFERN  BESFWIIAEERZ R
bonus payments paid by the Group. B8RS o
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION
(Continued)

(c) The five highest paid individuals include three directors for
the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: three), details of
whose emoluments are set out above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) non-

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z
10. EERESEHM =)

(€ #HZE2019F1N2ABIEFE AEES
FMALTBRIE=2(2018F : =R)&EF -
HEM S FEBER £ °

H#mA (20184 : MA)IEES x5 0

director highest paid individuals are as follows: ATHEIT :
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Salaries, housing allowances, other e - BEEEL - HEfbEEL
allowances and benefits in kind KEYEH 2,720 2,508
Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIET B LR
contributions 32 30
Bonus e - -
2,752 2,538

The emoluments of the remaining non-director, highest

HRpFEERSFMALOMESN FIAT

paid individuals are within the following bands: E e
2019 2018

Nil to RMB880,000 (equivalent to Nil ~ ZZE AR #¥880,000c(HHERZEE

to HK$1,000,000) 1,000,0007% 7T) 1 1
RMB880,001 to RMB 1,760,000 AR¥880,001TE AR1,760,0007T

(equivalent to HK$1,000,001 to (FBE 1,000,001 L%

HK$2,000,000) 2,000,0007%7T.) = =
RMB1,760,001 to RMB2,200,000 AE#1,760,001 T E ARH2,200,000

(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to JL(#EE 7 2,000,0018LE

HK$2,500,000) 2,500,000/ T) 1 1

(d) During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the five highest paid individuals (including both directors and
employees) or any directors of the Company as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. None of the directors has waived any emoluments
during both years except that Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng have voluntarily waived their emoluments and directors’s
fees, respectively, for the year ended 31 December 2018 until
the resumption of trading of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange, by when Mr. Fang Jin and Mr. Guo Quan
Zeng have resigned as directors of the Company.

(d) RAREFEAN AEEHERNREZTSH
AT (BREEZERES)KNARREMES
AT EAME - 1EARS]IIAZSE B sk
AREBRH R - SEABEBRAREE -
RREFERATEESERETMAMHE - B
TH&EEREBRIGEERBE2018F12
A31BLEFESRIAERERERZEF
ENMEREZWEE  EEAQFRORN
BMRAMEEERIL(AR  F&EER
FRIEGEEBFEARARBES) o
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ITVAAY

11.

12.

156

FINANCE COSTS

1. @E A

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Interest on bank borrowings RITIE FRFIE 24,891 26,134
Interest on other loans HAE A B 825 1,256
Interest on obligation under finance leases Ft&ATRE & &EH S - 24
Interest on discounted notes receivable B IR U Z 1 T B 21,075 25,572
Interest on lease liabilites HEAENE 1,453 =
Other finance costs H bR E A 30 1,076

48,274 54,062
INCOME TAX 12. B8

No provision for income tax has been made by the Company
as it is not subject to tax in the Cayman Islands or other
jurisdictions save for the PRC where it conducts its principal
business operations.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group's profits were neither arising in nor derived from Hong
Kong during both years, and all subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong incurred losses during the current and prior years.

Provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated based on
the estimated taxable income for PRC taxation purposes at the
rate of taxation applicable for the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the subsidiaries
of the Group that established in the PRC are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25%. Subsidiaries established in
the PRC which are qualified as an Advance and New Technology
Enterprise ("ANTE”) for a 3-year period are entitled to a
concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15%, subject to the
fulfilment of certain conditions on yearly basis during the 3-year
period.

HRBRRPBETEERBELS  ARAE
FRARERSNEMADEER VIR - B8R
RANE A PSR

HREMFARSENGMREEREREL
MIERBER - MAAREBEMAK AN E
RAERAFEMBEFEERSER  SUHY
BERBFBNEVIEL R -

RECEMEREGDRERNBBEEEMANR
RIERBEBIER BN G ERTBRAME -

RIBRBMEPSHOE - AEBETBRRIAONTE
NEVBIZ B RATS TR R 5% © FEHBIRK
VA ABRIERSIM=FNRHEMERE( S
i DEMB AR AERZA15%MEEMEHE
BUE - ARG =FHREEmEs TR -
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.INCOME TAX (Continued)

On 30 November 2016, Dongguan Hongde was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR201644000083. It is subject to income tax at 15%
accordingly.

On 30 November 2017, Scud Electronics was approved to
continue as an ANTE for a period of 3 years and the certificate
number is GR201735000475. It is subject to income tax at
15% accordingly. However, as Scud Electronics did not fulfill
the condition during the year ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018, it is subject to income tax at 25% accordingly.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

12. B8 @)
R2016%F11H308 » X 55 & 1= & f# # &

ATt E AH=F BERNA
GR201644000083 ° E1%15% ) 7% = S 4k 15 fE
FifS®i

2017511 A30H - R EMR E F & £ # &
REMENEE RHA=ZF BFBERRA
GR201735000475 ° EZB1215%H) £ & &1 44 18
FEFTISTH - AT - HRREMEFREZE2019
F£12H318 R2018F12A31B L EEAFTA
154 - BLZAR25% BB RGN B PTG R

Details of the income tax charge in the consolidated statement A EEREEMEEKE RGN X
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows: BT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Current tax — PRC B EARR 18 — A
Enterprise Income Tax: EMEH
— Tax for the year —AFEBIE 4,477 7,815
— Overprovision in prior years — BT FEBEEE (1,160) (592)
Deferred tax — current year (Note 29) EREFLTE — AFE (f17E29) 4,214 1,973
Income tax charge FriS i 2 7,531 9,196
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ITVAAY

12.

13.

158

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The reconciliation between profit before income tax and income

12. Fi8 %)

AR R E M2 E WS R R TS B A

tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ERFISH 2 HARAA T ¢
comprehensive income is as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Profit before income tax bR TS AR F1 56,227 105,280
Tax at tax rates applicable in the relevant BEAREE R AR RAE
jurisdictions HFIE 12,946 27,629
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax DRI 2 H AR R 2
purposes 24,531 18,034
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes H/BRF W AT IF 2 (11,678) (14,392)
Deduction of research and development costs R E A (17,205) (25,020)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERTIBEEBORETE 4,482 4,549
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised RIEZEGIFIEZFBHTKE 2 (2,125) -
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,160) (592)
Effect of concessionary rate granted to the PRC BFHEHEARBRHER
subsidiaries e (2,260) (1,012)
Income tax charge PRS2 7,531 9,196
DIVIDENDS 13. R E

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.

KRS,

H £2019%F &2018F12A31B L FEW &S
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. BREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRREB AR TRER R EE B AR A
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the TEEE -

following data:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Profit for the purposes of basic and diluted ST E SRR E AR &S 2 F A9 A (2
earnings per share (profit for the year NEEB AEIERFEER)
attributable to the owners of the Company) 52,543 93,274

Number of ordinary shares

ZERHAE
2019 2018
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &+ IR EL 7 [ #6588 22 K1) 6 2 3 A%
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings  JI#EFH £
per share 1,090,001 1,090,001
Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount as the basic BRESRFCHEGREXRRBFER B
earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary 201912 A3 B MBS SN B BT LR

shares outstanding as at 31 December 2019 (2018: same). % (20184 : #EA) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BMERRE

Electronic
equipment,
Land under Plant and fumiture  Construction Leasehold
finance lease Building ~ machinery Motor vehicles  and fixtures i progress  improvements Total
AERET B3k i
i gF  HERER fE8  GURRE KRIE 23 it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF  ARBTr AR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETr ARETR
Cost A
1 January 2018 WI8E1A1A 12,904 106,797 310,124 13203 73,062 441 66,848 587410
Additions e - - 39302 281 6,221 1513 63 47,386
Transfer to investment propertie 8\REnE - (106,797) - - - - - (106,797)
Disposals it = = (6.410) (2,958 (5,3%) - - (12,764)
Witen off i - = (284 - (5,216) - - (8,060)
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 018512831 BR2019E1 A1R 12,904 - 3,1 10526 68,677 5985 66,911 507,175
Iital recognition of IFRS 16 ERETERYRRS AR 68 (12,904 - = = = - = (12,904
Additions RE - - 1101 1,762 5971 154,861 3753 13419
Transfer LT - 5,183 3 - - (5,536) 120 -
Disposdls i - - (16,229) (2,740 (817) - - (21,79)
Written off i - - (1113) - (9.835) (612) - (17,560)
31 December 2019 019512631R - 5,183 396,135 954 61,9% 154,698 70,784 698,338
Depreciation it |
1 January 2018 WI8E1A1A 2,958 35,536 134473 8825 820 - 65,758 290,822
Charge for the year KERHY 258 40 34508 674 13,09 - 76 53539
Transfer to investment properties B\RENE - (39,763) - - - - - (39,763)
Disposals it - - (1.91) 221 (339) - - (7,584)
Witen off Lk - - (1877 - [719) - - (6,59)
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 018 12A31AR201951 A1A 3216 = 165,143 1,268 48257 - 66,534 290,418
Iital recognition of IFRS 16 ENETERY RSN 058 3216) - - - - - - (3,216)
Charge for the year KEERS - 78 38,625 640 10,155 = 2137 51,635
Disposds te - - (6.927) 043 (1997 - = (11,359)
Written off L - - (4.674) - (8,969) - - (13,683)
31 December 2019 019512B31R - 78 192,167 5474 47,446 - 68,671 313836
Net book value AT
31 December 2019 W19512831R - 5105 203,968 4,068 14,550 154,698 2113 384,502
31 December 2018 0I8E12A31R 9,688 - 177,029 3258 20,420 5985 377 26,157
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - BMER®RE @

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has pledged property, plant 2019512 A31H « REBEBREHREERLIA
and equipment carried at approximately RMB20,853,000 (2018: R #20,853,0007(20184F : A R #26,792,000
RMB26,792,000) for other loans (Note 27). TR - BE MR E RS EME R (KT
27) °
As at 31 December 2019, plant and machinery with a carrying 20195124318 + BREEAARHE1,001,0007T
amount of RMB1,001,000 (2018: RMB1,653,000) has been (20184 : AR¥1,653,0007T ) KM 5 R 28 2
pledged to a landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses ERENEBNERYER T -
payable.
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREW %
RMB’000

ARET T
Cost R
1 January 2018 2018F1H1H =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BRI - BB K& 106,797
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 2018 12H31H K2019%12831H 106,797
Accumulated depreciation it E
1 January 2018 2018F1H1H =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment HWHEYE - HE MR 39,763
Charge for the year REERZ 846
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 2018%12H318 K&2019F1H1H 40,609
Charge for the year REERZ 5,047
31 December 2019 2019412H31H 45,656
Net book value BREFHE
31 December 2019 2019512H31H 61,141
31 December 2018 20184 12H31H 66,188
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16.

162

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

On 31 October 2018, the Group leased out certain formerly self-
occupied buildings located in the PRC under operating lease
to Scud Stock, where Mr. Fang Jin as the common controlling
shareholder and has beneficial interest. Accordingly, the
Group reclassified such buildings as investment properties. The
properties were previously occupied by the Group as factory
which was previously classified as building under property,
plant and equipment. The carrying value of the building on the
date of reclassification amounted to RMB67,034,000 and the
fair value of the building at 31 December 2019 amounted to
RMB66,100,000 (2018:RMB63,900,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018 have been arrived at
on market value basis carried out by Ascent Partners Valuation
Service Limited, an independent valuer who holds a recognised
and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience
in the location and category of the investment property being
valued.

The fair value was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost approach that considers the cost to reproduce
or replace in new condition the property appraised in accordance
with current construction costs for similar buildings and
structures in the locality, with allowance for accrued depreciation
as evidenced by observed condition or obsolescence present,
whether arising from physical, functional or economic causes.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
has been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13 "Fair value measurement”. All of the fair
values of the investment properties as at 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement,
which uses significant unobservable inputs in arriving at fair
value. During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no
transfers between level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out of
level 3 (2018: no).

16. REWH &)

20185 10A31H - AEEBRBEL2HE K
ETEMURTENEEEFHETFTRER
B&1D - &S BN B2 RIEARAR R I

Emlm o At - AEBBZEEFIER
BEME - ZWEXABAEEBERERK
RN EAME BMERZEBETNEFZI
e REFSPEAPBF2EEEAARE
67,034,0007T &2 A2019F12 A31 BI#F 2 A F
E5 5l A AR E66,100,0007T(20184 : AR
#63,900,0007T) °

7201912 A318 K20185F 12 A31H » A&E
ZIREMEZ A TEDREBENATEZRAER
RA(HERARMEAEREER  WHEESOE
ZIB R B EME L HERR B EE
BT Z HEETMEEEER -

NHEDRBFESERAZEE  TEEE
RAETIRBEHBLUR T REENNEZ
ERA - HENEERABEEEMNREZMN
FBA - AHBEERRIBRHRR(TwmED
B R REEREM S| ) P AR BRI E
BIELBE -

REBMZEENMENR T EAECKRBEBITS
HEERE13RI AT EFEIMAEHATE
BW=EEREIEIEDIE - R2019F12A318 K
2018F 12 A31B 2 BEREMEZ A FEBESE
=R EENTERE  EAFEFERATERKR
TRAIBR 2B A2 MG - #F20194128
31ALEFE  AFEFEVERBIRRE2R
2R - TR A Sk B F 34k (2018
F:fm) e
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Details of the Group’s investment property and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019 are as
follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

16. REWE &)

R2019F 128310 » BEEAAEBREMER A

FEEBREMZFBOT

Carrying
value at
31 December

Fair
value at
31 December

2019 2019

i n

20194 2019%F

12A31H 12A31H

ZREE ZAFE

Fair value hierarchy RMB’000 RMB’000

AFEER AR®T T ARBT T

Buildings located in the PRC Level 3 61,141 66,100
(LA B HHE 5 B

The above investment property is depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rate per annum:

Buildings Over the remaining lease term of the land
As at 31 December 2019, investment properties with a carrying
amount of RMB61,141,000 (2018: RMB66,188,000) have been

pledged by the Group in favour of a bank to secure a bank loan
granted by a bank to the Group (Note 23).

LR ENEANBLRERAT FRINE -

BF T ER T AR

R201912A318 - REEAARKEG61,141,0007T

(20184 : AR#66,188,0007C ) IR EWEE /&

AEFERTET  UWERRTRTFAEERZ
TEM(FFE23) ©
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17. LEASES

IFRS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without restatement
of comparative figures. For an explanation of the transitional
requirements that were applied as at 1 January 2019, see Note
2(a). The accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019, as disclosed in note 3(f).

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land held under operating lease, factory and office used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire
the leased land from the owners with lease periods over the
lease term, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Leases of factory and office generally
have lease terms between 1 to 10 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group.

(a) Leasehold land held under operating lease
(before 1 January 2019)

17. HE

B B B 75 R 5 2 I 551657 J9 20191 A1R
By REHILLEE T - BEMN2019F1A18
FEFR R EE M ERMEHA - B2 M E2@)
HMAAMTEE3(NATIRER - ST BN B8R R B &
2019%1A1B&ER -

AEERELEPAEANSARBERLEEE
HRAEMBEELH ITHREPAEITEEHES
#) o REBE —RMUEFRENEZEKIE - UERE
HERFINEERAREEABRSHEHE L
BT eREZE T AENGRIIFENK -
IBEMAEHE—RBEIZI10FHER - —
RiNE » NEETNFERSE B ANEZE R EH
HEEE -

() REKeHEEAa2HE L (R
201951818 #1)

RMB’000

AR®T T

At 1 January 2018 7201841 818 9,946
Charge for the year FARX (258)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F 12 A31H 9,688

(b) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

(b) EREEE

AN B F A E A BR T B 2 A 6 R Y 2
FF :

Factory and

Leasehold land office Total

AE i IRRBAZE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET AR®T T

At 1 January 2019 20191 81H 9,688 21,266 30,954
Addition NE - 8,127 8,127
Charge for the year FARZ (287) (20,567) (20,854)
31 December 2019 201912 HA31H 9,401 8,826 18,227

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold land with a carrying
amount of RMB9,401,000 (2018: RMB9,688,000) have
been pledged by the Group in favour of a bank to secure a
bank loan granted by a bank to the Group (Note 27).
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M2019F 128318 REEAARK
9,401,0007C(20184F : A K #9,688,000
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17. LEASES (cContinued)

(c) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

17. 8%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
pAga =

RE R R AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

(c) HEEE
HERBENREERRFANZESHOT

RMB’000

AR¥T T

At 1 January 2019 7201941 A18 24,591
Addition INE 8,127
Interest expense FLERX 1,453
Lease payments HERRK (24,273)
At 31 December 2019 1K2019F 128311 9,898

Future lease payments are due as follows:

RREER A LA T EAEEIE

31 December 2019

2019§12831H

Total Interest of the Present value

minimum lease  minimum lease of the minimum

payments payments lease payments

RERE HEHE REHE

NREE RARZFE NRZBE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARMT T AR®TT

Within one year —FR 5,311 1,178 4,133
More than one year but not —FEETNBBME

exceeding two years 2,751 837 1,914
More than two years but not  RI4FIA HERBBRE

exceeding five years 4,679 828 3,851

Total st 12,741 2,843 9,898

1 January 2019
2019F1H1H

Interest of the Present value

Total minimum  minimum lease of the minimum

lease payments payments lease payments

REHE HEHE REHE

[RE§ ARZHE NRZBE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARMT T AR®TR

Within one year —FN 22,892 872 22,020
More than one year but not —FAEENBBME

exceeding two years 2,676 105 2,571
More than two years but not MEL EETNBBRE

exceeding five years - - -

Total st 25,568 977 24,591
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17.

166

LEASES (continued)

The Group has initially applied IFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at
1 January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under IAS
17. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously classified as
finance leases. See note 2(a) for further details about transition.

The Group leases its investment properties as disclosed in note
16 consisting of a factory building and a warehouse building
in PRC under operating lease arrangement. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB5,618,400
(2018: RMB936,000).

At 31 December 2019, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future period under non-cancellable
operating lease with its tenants are as follow:

17. 8%

ANEEE R2019F1 A18 HBLET B A
B K e PR B B B 7 S S BN B 1655 + I 3B B B
ML - AR L ATRIEEE ST ERIFE17
FOEAKERENHERENHEERRE - 1
2018512 A3 BRI LLEE R KL EF - WEHE
ERIDEARMERENTHESY - BHBAEDN
ELHE - B2 RME20) -

AEERBEEHELHAEN F16FTH R
WIREME  SREMRPEN—ERE K —iE
BE - AEERFAERNESBABARE
5,618,4007t(20184F : AR#¥936,0007T) °

R2019F 12 318 » A5 B 5 7 R B4R 15 £
PN AR CEHERUARITIRAE MK
R

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARBT T

Within one year —F R 6,421 5,618
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
Software
B4
RMB’000
AREF T
Cost %S
1 January 2018 2018F1H1H 10,970
Additions INE 1,000
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 2018%12H31HKX2019F1H1H 11,970
Additions NE 1,656
31 December 2019 2019412H31H 13,626
Amortisation and impairment B RRE
1 January 2018 20181 81H 8,716
Charge for the year REERXZ 1,349
31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 2018 12H31HX20195181H 10,065
Charge for the year REEFRST 1,100
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H 11,165
Net book value BRI {E
31 December 2019 20195§12H31H 2,461
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H 1,905
Note: KfzE -
i)  The amortisation charge recognised for the year is included i) $¢J§ﬁ§§%@%$ﬁ_ﬁiﬂ§‘l‘)\ﬁé?§?&&
in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement Hh2AWERITTBAZIET -

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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19. INVENTORIES

19. 78

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Raw materials FEM R 86,743 159,857
Work in progress e 101,748 152,624
Finished goods BUAK oA 308,799 284,062
Goods in transit EHREm 1,126 -

498,416 596,543

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of inventories
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value amounted
to RMB498,416,000 (2018: RMB596,543,000), after provision
for impairment of RMB9,211,000 (2018: RMB23,981,000).
During the year, a write-down of inventories of RMB Nil
(2018: RMB14,109,000) and a write-off of inventories of
RMB21,025,000 (2018: RMB18,357,000) were recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

7201912 A318 « & K Al # IR FEAER
REFIR 2 FERREERAKKA498,416,000
TL(2018%F : AR ¥596,543,0007T) ' & HE
B R E B E A R ¥9,211,0007T(2018%F -
AR #23,981,0007T) ° FA - FEHBAR
¥ T 7L(2018%F © A R #14,109,0007T ) & 157
85 A R #21,025,0007 (20184 © AR
18,357,00070) B4R A B R ©

20 ERESREREKRERE

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Trade receivables FEWE 5508 2,389,303 2,349,308
Notes receivables =R 116,649 89,978
2,505,952 2,439,286
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : RIEBREE (176,178) (273,900)
2,329,774 2,165,386
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. EW B S EREWEE )

An aged analysis of trade and notes receivables at the end of RIFEHZH @ EHBREBEERIRE RN ER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of B HRIERERZBENRER ST ¢

allowance, is as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,828,698 1,682,123
61 to 180 days 612180H 466,595 450,914
181 to 365 days 181&365H 34,481 32,349
2,329,774 2,165,386
The average credit period granted on sale of goods ranged from BT HEERNTFHIEEBRNT60E0H °

60 to 90 days.

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FARBRBENZEHNOT :
year were as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T ARETTT

1 January 1H1H 273,900 351,266
Initial application of IFRS 9 B R FE P B B B S ¥ 5 2RI B 955k = 3,209
Written off s (152,854) (110,310)
Impairment losses recognised BERRREES 56,576 44,976
Reversal of impairment losses previously BATER B EEERE

recognised (4,013) (19,970)
Exchange difference T 5, AR 2,569 4,729
31 December 12H31H 176,178 273,900
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20. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continuved) 20. EW B S HEREWERE &)

The aged analysis of the trade and notes receivables that are BHIBI A RENEKRE FRENREKREEY
past due but not impaired is as follows: ARECDITIAT :

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Less than 6 months past due BERN 2 /< A 96,354 81,033
Over 6 months past due B ER7SE A A £ 4,676 14,309

101,030 95,342
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a MEIBY RKBRENERRIEEZZEYREEE
number of independent customers that have a good track record B MESEAEEERTNEELE - BIE
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the NEFERLER AR ESRAERAEEREER
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment BERNE - MEAREIER 2HWE - A
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been TR EREEITRERRE -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

Notes receivables are stated at FVTOCI. The directors are of FEWEE TR A EFAEMEmK S AR ©
the opinion that the carrying amounts of notes receivables EERRERER ZEHERKES 2 A TFEME
approximate to their fair value. o
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21.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21.F8{1ZX1E - RE& R EAbEUN B

RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREF T
Advance to suppliers BEEYEEEN 196,008 277,303
VAT recoverable AR [O] G (E L 5,858 25,292
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEWMHE  BERRBEHENZS
plant and equipment 23,507 11,276
Deposits paid for other loan arrangement BEMERTHESI M2 iRE 5,148 3,133
Refundable deposits AR EES 2,016 846
Others Hih 9,716 38,978
242,253 356,828
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts & : RIEERE (42,207) (70,886)
Total st 200,046 285,942
Less: Current portion B mEhE Y (171,391) (271,533)
Non-current portion IERENE D 28,655 14,409
Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the FERREBERENESNOT -
year were as follows:
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

1 January 1R1H 70,886 101,324
Initial applications of IFRS 9 BOR FE BB B IS 3R & 2RI B 955k = 796
Impairment losses recognised BERRREEE 20,641 17,857
Reversal of impairment losses WA ERZBEEERE

previously recognised (23,778) (5,655)
Write-off Wiss (25,542) (43,436)
31 December 12A31H 42,207 70,886
Amount due from a shareholder of RMB2,840,000 (2018: STATERTFRIA ~ $2 5 B H fth & Wk TE B9 FE W AR
RMBNil), which is included in prepayment, deposits and other H B AR2,840,0007L(2018%F : ARME
receivables, is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on TO)REER . AERARERRER - FAK
demand. The maximum amount outstanding during the year is EAREESEAAREK2,840,0007T (201845 :
RMB2,840,000 (2018: RMBNil). ARMETT) °
None of the above assets is past due. The financial assets NEBEWAREH - A LEHFEENESHE
included in the above balances relate to receivables for which FE R R L BRNE B8 A R S A FEURROE ©

there was no recent history of default.
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 22.fEW FEAEALTZIE

PARTIES
The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, interest- U HEEATHFIEAEKIR 28878
free and repayable on demand. REREE -
The information disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong BERB A REH(55622% ) E383 6 BHER
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) is as follows: BRI
Maximum Balance at Balance at
amount 31 December 31 December
outstanding 2019 2018
during the year 20195 R20184F
FRAREER 12A31H 12A318H
Eaef K4 R YA R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET R ARBT T
Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd. (Note i) fREMRERRIKD AR A R (KD 75,570 46,916 75,570
EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., S {AE#HEREIR AR A A]
Ltd. (Note ii) (Ffd5Eii) 170,809 100,206 170,809
Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training @82 RER S F i THEFIER
School (Note iii) (B =i ) 3,848 - 3,848
Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd. BERERBHIER QA
(Note iv) (Fft3Eiv) 1,841 - 1,841
Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., BERERE HEHLER A E]
Ltd. (Note v) (Fff5Ev) 8,701 - 8,701
Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd. @M FFEFEHRE A A
(Note v) (FffaEv) 23,040 5,137 23,040
152,259 283,809
Notes: B
(i) Its director and shareholder, Mr. Fang Jin, is also the () HEBSERBRESSEEMANATT IR
controlling shareholder of the Company. ﬁﬁ\ﬁ . ’
(i) Its director is the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling () HBEAAATEBRBRESSEEY T o
shareholder of the Company. a '
(iii) Its director, Mr. Fang Jin, is also the controlling shareholder (i) HBEHSEENMAAATZIZREE o

of the Company.
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22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED
PARTIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Its shareholder, Mr. Fang lJin, is also the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

(v) Its director and major shareholder is the son of Mr. Fang
Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company.

23. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets have
been pledged by the Group in favour of the banks as guarantees
for the issuance of bank accepted notes for payments to
suppliers, landlord as collaterals for electricity expenses payable
and pledged for other loans:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

22. B NBAEANLTFIE )

BicE : (&)
vy HEERZDSEEMBSARBZEBRER -

() HEFRIERRR/AAREZEEBRRADE
TEZF -

23. EEHEM

RBEMR AEEEHATEEER TR
17 (ERAMERE N M BRTELER 2
BR ERENEENERMERTRERE
REFEMERAOEIR

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREFTT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15)  #% - BB & & (FizE15) 21,854 38,133
Investment properties (Note 16) ®E Y (H3E16) 61,141 66,188

Leasehold land held under operating lease st AEREEE 2 BIEKLHERG 2
included in right-of-use assets THETHb 9,401 =
Bank deposits RITER 977,454 978,011
1,069,850 1,082,332

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24. RITHEBRRRE

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less.

The Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”) is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RITHER LA BRAEEFENRS LIRS
HIR A=A AKA THREHRITER °

ARBITARE DY AT EmLBEMER
A - B BINEE IR (RO R AEE - BERM
EEERTE  AKEAKHKRRELETINESL
BMEBZRITHEARK -
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25. TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

174

25. ENEZRERENRE

2019 2018

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade payables BB S5IE 1,380,436 1,348,142
Notes payables AN ESE 1,966,305 1,953,788
3,346,741 3,301,930

An aged analysis of trade and notes payables at the end of the

REBHZR  RNBERRENE S FAREN

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: ERMERER TN ¢
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
0 to 60 days 0£60H 2,442,875 2,476,973
61 to 180 days 61£180H 832,817 763,587
181 to 365 days 181%365H 6,152 9,647
More than 1 year but within 2 years —F U ERREA 14,788 17,065
More than 2 years but within 3 years MFA EBR=FA 26,817 9,453
Over 3 years =FLAE 23,292 25,205
3,346,741 3,301,930

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period

taken for trade purchases ranged from 30 to 90 days.

BN E S HOAEE QA E S E RIS ER A
AL MR - HHWEHERATF ) F308

£90H -



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREERRAA
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

26. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 26. EftfE{tZkE « FE WS IE R FEET

AND ACCRUED CHARGES EH
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Contract liabilities EHAEE 28,733 31,031
Payroll and welfare payables & {~F 357 B % A= ) 38,724 32,105
Accrued expenses FEE X 11,744 19,108
Payables for acquisition of property, plant  BEE W - MR KR EEN KIE
and equipment 62 160
Other tax payables H h fE R 1A 46,227 41,618
Withholding tax liability TEMHIEEE = 9,000
Others EAh 17,046 15,823
142,536 148,845
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
2019F 20184
12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Contract liabilities arising from: ELXEUTNEHEZELN
afE :
Sale of lithium-ion battery modules  $4% fE A F# K 848
and related accessories for mobile BFEMINIERETEM
phones and digital electronic R4 & A BB
appliances 28,733 31,031
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26. OTHER PAYABLES, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE
AND ACCRUED CHARGES (Continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities are as follows:

Sale of lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for

mobile phones and digital electronic appliances

As noted above, the deposit the Group receives on sale of
lithium-ion battery modules and related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electronic appliances remains as a contract
liability until the work completed to date outweighs it.

26. EMEATRIE - FEIRRE R EST
EHw®)

TEANABSROABMNRETROT

nERT - AREEHERARTH LGSR
BT EmriEEE T E R A N A BEC 1 AT IR
BORENMRBHNEE  ERESTERNIE
HBEZER o

Movements in contract liabilities BREEBEES
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Balance as at 1 January W1 B18Bz &% 31,031 37,030
Decrease in contract liabilities as RAFE NERW DR EIBIEE
a result of recognising revenue AHBBERN)MERMSHBERD
during the year that was included  (Fffz¥6)
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (Note 6) (31,031) (37,030)
Increase in contract liabilities as a $HESERZBWZEMERANEE
result of receipts in advance on =0
sale of goods 28,733 31,031
Balance at 31 December M12A318 248 28,733 31,031
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27. B

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Bank loans (Note (a)): RITER(MIEE@Q)):
Secured bank loans EHEIPRITER 291,019 247,170
Unsecured bank loans EIEPIRITE R 291,670 133,378
582,689 380,548
Other loans (Note (b)) H &R (M5E(b)) 9,393 19,431
592,082 399,979
Notes: B 5%
The terms of repayment of the bank loans are as follows: (@) SRITEFEREHMOT
2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Current portion: ENE S
Within 1 year or on demand —FRNHIZRENR 582,689 380,548

As at 31 December 2019, bank loans of approximately
RMB291,019,000 (2018: RMB247,170,000) were
secured by the Group’s property, plant and equipment
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,001,000
(2018: RMB1,653,000) (Note 15), investment properties
and leasehold land with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB70,542,000 (2018: RMB75,876,000) (Note 16
and 17(b)), bank deposits of RMB977,454,000 (2018:
RMB978,011,000) (Note 23) and by personal guarantee
from the Company’s controlling shareholder, Mr. Fang lJin,
for certain bank loans of the Group up to an amount of
RMB582,689,000 (2018: RMB380,548,000).

The average effective interest rates per annum (which are
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group’s
bank borrowings are as follows:

M2019512 8318 » 4 AR #291,019,000
t(20184 : A R #247,170,0007T ) H) R
TERHRASBEEEEEAR,001,000
T(2018% : A R #1,653,0005T ) ( Fff 5%
150 BERZHE - SHEEEA
R #70,542,000t MR E M E KB E L1
(20184 : AR #75,876,0007T) (MfEE165%
17(b)) » A R #977,454,00070(20185 = A
R #978,011,0007T) <MTu$23)H’J§Eﬁﬁm&
NATHERR R A& LA mAEERES

#B 8% = E \ R #6582,689,0007T(20184F /\
Eﬁ%aso,m&oooff)m T SRTTE KT E(E
AFERIEAF o

REBEHIRTTHE %’E’Jflzi’l\ﬁ” FEME (TR
HEREAFE)IMT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
Average effective interest rate on fixed- [E S &R 2 FHEERF=E
rate borrowings 4.56% 4.69%
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27. BORROWINGS (continued) 27. BF )
Notes: (Continued) MisE - (&)
(b) Other loans: (b) HpE:
The Group obtained other loans from a financial institution. REBER—HemEBERESHEMER-
These other loans are secured by certain plant and ZEHMEFHRE TERFEAARK
machinery of net carrying amount of RMB20,853,000 (2018: 20,853,0007T(2018%4F : AK#26,972,000
RMB26,972,000) (Note 15) bear fixed interest rate at 4.75% 7o) (MI5E15) MR R4 - BIE A
per annum and are repayable in three years. R B475% KB =FREIE
The average effective interest rates per annum (which are ANEFBEMERNEHEREFNR(IE
also equal to the contractual interest rates) on the Group'’s REKIFE) B4.2%(2018%F : 4.4%) °
other loans are at 4.2% (2018: 4.4%).
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Current portion: mENE S

Within 1 year or on demand —FRHIREK 8,789 10,038
Non-current portion: ERENE S

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERRENRN 604 9,393
Total #aEt 9,393 19,431
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28. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 28. B EERIE
The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-free and ENEZTREAEET - 22 BEIRERE
repayable on demand. = o

29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 29. ERERMELEHEBEERAE

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised RERNELRE M BHRAXRBERNELETIEE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the E/(aE)BHREBHHT :

movements during the year are as follows:

Impairment Provision for
loss on trade write down to  Undistributed
and other  Provision for net realisable profits of
receivables warranty value  subsidiaries Tax loss Total
FERE SR
REMEY ER  HMAETZ HEAF
RERERRE  REEEE  RFERE  A2WEA HERE Eh)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT = ARETR

1 January 2018 2018F1A18 80,347 103 1,584 (5,360) 65,148 141,822
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss ~ RMEaHEF A/ (1K) 6,874 23) 3323 - (12,147) (1,973)
31 December 2018 and 2018F12A318

1 January 2019 20191418 87,221 80 4907 (5,360) 53,001 139,849
Credit/(charge) to profit o loss ~ RBHETEA /(1K) (7,978) (64) (3.277) - 7,105 (4,214)
31 December 2019 2019%12A318 79,243 16 1,630 (5,360) 60,106 135,635
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ITVAAY

29.

180

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

For presentation purpose, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

2. ERRNEERBEEEREE 2

MEIME  BETEEHREERBBECRE
SRR - U T BRI B®RE mIEL
HEIETR RGBT

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the RERE B ISR R AR 2 IEIET
consolidated statement of financial position B EFE 140,995 145,209
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the REFE B BARR R AR 2 ELER
consolidated statement of financial position IHAEFE (5,360) (5,360)
135,635 139,849

The Group has tax losses carry forwards amounting to
approximately RMB60,993,000 (2018: RMB26,855,000) which
relate to subsidiaries that have a history of losses and may not
be used to offset taxable income elsewhere in the Group. These
subsidiaries have no temporary taxable differences which could
partly support the recognition of deferred tax assets. Also, there
are no tax planning opportunities available that would further
provide a basis for recognition.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, profits would increase by approximately RMB15,248,000
(2018: RMB6,714,000).

NEEB FEEBIEEEL ARK60,993,0007T
(20184 : AR%26,855,0007T) @ HEEIEH
KBS BB RS A B KR 2 7] A LA 857K
SBE it 5 M ERFIUA o LEHE AR
BAHOXHERRELCHEEENERTE R

ERR IS WEBIART B S E — iR H
IR BRERER AT A RERHEENIREE -

it ) 7% 38 0 49 A R #615,248,0007T(2018%F :
AER#6,714,0007T) °



29.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
RECOGNISED (Continued)

According to Articles 3 and 37 of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Law, distribution of dividends by a foreign investment enterprise
in China to its non-tax resident foreign investor is subject to
Enterprise Income Tax at source on a withholding basis. The
standard withholding tax rate pursuant to Article 4 of the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax Law is 20%. According to Article 27
of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and Article 91 of the
Detailed Implementation Rules of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax Law, the applicable withholding tax rate has been reduced
to 10%. Under the Arrangement between the Mainland China
and Hong Kong Special Administration Region (“HKSAR") for
the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal
Evasion, or Mainland China/HKSAR Double Taxation Agreement,
Hong Kong tax residents which hold 25% or more of a PRC
enterprise are entitled to a reduced dividend withholding tax rate
of 5%.

In addition, according to Cai Shui [2008] No.1, a circular jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation on 22 February 2008, distribution of dividends out of
pre 2008 retained profits by a foreign investment enterprise to
its foreign investor in or after 2008 is exempted from Enterprise
Income Tax, whereas distribution of dividends out of profits
generated by a foreign investment enterprise in or after 2008
shall be subjected to Enterprise Income Tax in accordance with
the relevant articles of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law and its
Detailed Implementation Rules as described above. Accordingly,
dividends receivable from certain subsidiaries in respect of profits
earned since 1 January 2008 is subject to 5% withholding tax.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREERRAA
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

2. CRRNELEHRBEEEREE 2

BIERBEMEMEREEIEREIER - P
INEIRERER AT ERIINEREEREZ
IREARBEMNB T XN ERER - B
BHRBECEMSRAFME  EEBBHIRE A
20% ° MBHEFBBEMETHIEE27E R+ E
BRI EMIEFISEIME - LliEmREm
TR ZE10% o BIECA TS B B BIIT &=
([BEBFRITHE D BARE RG2S EHH
MBI IERIRTR A ZHE) » RIS AFPERE25%K
A EE=EBEBRRER - AREER K%
MRE B FENFL

SN - ARIR BB ED I B R B A 48 B P 200842
R22BHEEMEOCBREEMSETE TESR
BR R B A ) (B4F{[2008]15%) » 20084 2 B Fh
EIRECFEEKH RERSBECFE - £20084
2 EDBEINEIZEEN - Al RBREMS
Tt M20084F 3k 2 & FFE N IR B B ERFTIZ
FESE - Ak bR B EEREREE BIIK
Bl R B EEPIB A RS - Bt &F
MEB A RFE20084 181 HFMAKBESERIM
FEM AR B 7B B AR5 % HITEANEL
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29. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 29. OCRIANELRBEERER 2
RECOGNISED (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s share of aggregate amount 20195124318 » AEEE(HEAR QT H
of temporary differences associated with retained earnings of the MEBARREATAANERERES ENHARE
Company’s PRC subsidiaries was approximately RMB362,192,000 362,192,0007T(20184F : AR#291,214,0007T) °
(2018: RMB291,214,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not BN AN EE RSB O R Z R 2 R - B
been all provided for in the consolidated financial statements ZRN ] BRGNS E - A5 BN A LG
in respect of the Group’s share of temporary differences A R BT B A IR ER i B PG 2 BT B R =
attributable to retained profits of the Company's PRC subsidiaries R R e ISR R LIRER TE B B R -

as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. i A<

Number of

ordinary shares

of HK$0.10

each
F%0.108 T Amount
ZERHE Ex-]
in Thousands RMB’'000
& ARBTT

Issued and fully paid: EETREE :
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 MR2018F1A18 » 2018F &

and 2019 2019 12H31H 1,090,001 107,590
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31.

RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity

between the beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:

31. #1E
AEE

N
FONX

SCUD GROUP LIMITED
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ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019
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RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

a5 B & BRI IR & V) & F R R

MERBENGEREEBH K - ARABARFIR
FRMER MO EEBE 2 FHBEHIMT

Share Capital  Translation Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
RIDEE EXGRE ERE REBF @5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
1 January 2018 20181 711 619,288 250,887 (103,862) 52,594 818,907
Loss for the year AEEEE = = = (1,499) (1,499)
Other comprehensive income Hih2me - = 32,629 = 32,629
Total comprehensive income for the AEEEANGLE
year - - 32,629 (1,499) 31,130
At 31 December 2018 and M2018F12A318 K
1 January 2019 019F1A1H 619,288 250,887 (71,233) 51,095 850,037
Loss for the year NEFER = = = (2,386) (2,386)
Other comprehensive income H At 2 E e - - 15,817 - 15,817
Total comprehensive income for the rEEERNGEE
year - - 15,817 (2,386) 13,431
At 31 December 2019 R2019% 128318 619,288 250,887 (55,416) 43,709 863,468
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Summarised financial information in relation to the Group’s

32. FERER

|

REBBEA BB S ([ FRERER ) 2

subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests (“NCls”), WEBARIRNEBRRNEE 2 EEARRERT]
before intra-group eliminations, is presented below: m

2019 2018
Percentage of equity interest held by NCls: FEIZ=fR ST hERZ A DL ¢
Shenzhen Hongde and its subsidiary HRIIEE R EL T E A A 21% 21%
Cybertech and its subsidiaries Cybertech R K & A A 50% N/A i A
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F 128318 ILEE

Cybertech and its

Shenzhen Hongde

subsidiaries and its subsidiary

Cybertech FYIRE

R H KB A = R EHME A A

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR%T T

Revenue Wz 7,866 284,494
Loss for the year KREEEHE (3,917) (8,972)
Loss allocated to NCls DRI AR MR 2 1R (1,959) (1,889)
Cash flows from operating activities — &Z/EFFERESRE 7,732 20,851
Cash flows from investing activities KRETEMBEERE (15,131) 9,318
Cash flows from financing activities REEHMERSRE 9,706 (12,705)
Net cash inflows REMAFE 2,307 17,464
Current assets mEEE 15,617 156,500
Non-current assets FERBEE 20,016 36,579
Current liabilities mEBE (23,278) (129,147)
Non-Current liabilities FERBAEG (4,358) -
Net assets FEE 7,997 63,932
Accumulated NCls RET IR = 3,999 11,799
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32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) 32. FEERER ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31HILFE
Shenzhen Hongde
and its subsidiary
I
K EFE A A
RMB’000
AREFT
Revenue Wz 231,434
Profits for the year NS 5 A 13,347
Profits allocated to NCls D BC 2 IEE AR =R 2 g A 2,810
Cash flows from operating activities REEFARREERE (15,824)
Cash flows from investing activities KERHABREME (1,811)
Cash flows from financing activities REEZHAERESRE 12,424
Net cash outflows RE w5 (5,211)
Current assets MENE E 185,894
Non-current assets EMBNEE 36,372
Current liabilities mEIaE (147,874)
Net assets FEE 74,392
Accumulated NCls RE TR R 14,001
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33.ZA /) @B R &

THE COMPANY

2019 2018
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
MisE AR¥ T AREEFTT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTEB R BIRE 34 250,901 250,901
Total non-current asset IEMENE EAREE 250,901 250,901
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUTH B A TR IE 725,703 709,012
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 919 3,523
Total current assets MENEEBEE 726,622 712,535
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables E fth e~ FRIE 3 3
Amount due to a subsidiary FEISTB B A Rl FIA 6,462 5,806
Total current liabilities mENB EERE 6,465 5,809
Net current assets REBEEFE 720,157 706,726
Net assets BEE 971,058 957,627
Capital and reserves EARRREE
Share capital [N 30 107,590 107,590
Reserves fEfE 31 863,468 850,037
Total equity B 971,058 957,627
}
J ,
b |
FENG MING ZHU LIAN XIU QIN
BT EEE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
- -
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34. SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company at the end of the

34. (B F)
RNREHAAATINBARSENT - RIS
BiH  HENRGER AL B

reporting period are as follows. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-

establishment and

up share/registered

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
HH/RIR BRTREH
ARER ok HMER rEEENERES TEEH
2019 2018

Great Speed Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RREEERAT RBRAEE 50,000% 7 RERR
Scud Group (Hong Kong) Company Hong Kong HK$1 100%* 100%*  Provision of corporate management

Limited B4 18T services
REREE(EB)ERAA REAAERRYE
Keen Power Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100%* 100%*  Investment holding
HAEEEERAT] 6 1,00087 REZR
Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., Ltd. PRC US$127,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-

(Note (i) i 127,000,000%7¢ ion battery modules, power

RER(BR)EFERAAME()

*  Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises

Limited

i Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

banks, motive battery and related
accessories for mobile phones and
digital electrical appliances

HERHEFRREBRE AR
BERFSOEA BHER BN
Bt ARmR

* BBEACFERAERAREESAES

o ERBREEEARARRZS AR
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered

34. it B A Bl (%)

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
it/ IRk BRTRES
ARER Lew afEA rEERURRES TEEH
2019 2018
Scud Battery Co., Ltd. (Note (ii)) PRC US$30,000,000 100%* 100%*  Manufacturing and sale of lithium-
RERT AR FIEE) H 30,000,000 7T ion battery modules, power
banks, power management
module, motive battery, smart
wearable device battery and
related accessories for mobile
phones and digital electrical
appliances
HERHEFRREERETER
MEETSHEA  BHER
SREEEM YT - Bhe
FHERESH IR
Shenzhen Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB38,000,000 79%° 79%®  Research and development,
(Note (iii)) e AR#38,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of
FYMREE A RA ] (i) lithium-ion bare battery cells
BRFEEME  LERHEE
Dongguan Hongde Battery Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000 79%" 79%"  Research and development,
(Note (iv)) HE AR¥50,000,0007T manufacturing and sale of

RETREBLERAT (i)

v Interest indirectly held through Keen Power Holdings

Limited

© Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co.,

Ltd.

Co., Ltd.
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Interest indirectly held through Shenzhen Hongde Battery

lithium-ion bare battery cells

BRTECLHR  LERHE
o EBHREREARARRRS AR
° FBERERBR)EFARAGMEERE
T
tBBRYITRRERERAARMER AR
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34. B A E (&)
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and up share/registered Group's effective
Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
i/ RIR BRIREH
DAEH REhE EMEE FEEENRETRS FTEEHR
2019 2018
Patriots Group (China) Company Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Limited 36 10,0007 HARRER
FEESE(PE)ARAA
Patriots (Hong Kong) Power Sources Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Not yet commenced business
Company Limited B 10,0007C HAFRE ¥
FEE(EE)ERARAA
Scud Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB50,000,000 100%° 100%°®  Not yet commenced business
(Note (v)) i AR #50,000,0007T RARRE R
REREEMBEERAF (M)
Scud Electronics Japan Co., Ltd. Japan JPY20,000,000 100%° 100%®  Research and development and sale
RERETBRRA 81 BA 20,000,000H of lithium-ion battery modules,
power banks, chargers and
network terminal products
BRTEHEE BBER 72
BRABRBERTERHEE
Scud Hong Kong Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%* 100%*  Trading
REREEEHERAT Bk 10,0007 2%
@ Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., e FARMREBGER)EFERAFEEES
Ltd. friees
* Interest indirectly held through Great Speed Enterprises *  ERTAMNEARATEES AR

Limited
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34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid-
establishment and

up share/registered

34. B A =l (4

Group's effective

Name of companies operation capital ownership interest Principal activities
R/ RI R BRTRES/
ARER T TREA rEBENRERS TEER
2019 2018
Prime Power Technology Co., Ltd. Hong Kong HK$50,000,000 100%® N/A  Investment holding
LEMBERRT &R 50,000,000/ 7 ~ER  REER
Cybertech Optiemus Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands HK$50,000,000 50%" N/A Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (Fft&E(vi)) EBRNAE 50,000,000/ 7T TER RESR
Cybertech Optiemus (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10 50%* N/A  Investment holding
(Note(vi)) (Fft&E(vi)) &A 1037 TER  RESR
lluminar Merchandising Private Limited  India INR107,509,642 50%" N/A~ Provision of mobile phone battery
(Note(vi)) (Bff&E(vi)) H0E 107,509,642E1E E L, NER cell and power bank assembly
service in India
REOEREFRECREDHERE
B fR %
@ |Interest indirectly held through Scud (Fujian) Electronics Co., ° FEANRER(ER)ETHERAAMBERA
Ltd. WS

Interest indirectly held through Prime Power Technology
Co., Ltd.

Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus
Holdings Limited

Interest indirectly held through Cybertech Optiemus (HK)
Limited

Notes:

(i)  Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 31 October 1997.

(i) Wholly-foreign owned enterprise for a term of 50 years
commencing 6 December 2005.

(i) Limited liability company for a term of 20 years
commencing 21 January 2005.

(iv) Limited liability company commencing 11 April 2011.

(v) Limited liability company for a term of 30 years
commencing 3 May 2013.

(vi) The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding

having 50% shareholding in these companies, having
considered in substance all facts and circumstances, the
Group has control over these companies. See note 5(viii) for
further details.

During the year, none of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. AEALRS

(a)

The name of and the relationship with related parties (a) FAEATEZRREHEBEENT :

are as follows:

Name Relationship

=L e

Fang Jin Controlling shareholder of the Company.

ik PA/NEIEE i SR

Scud Stock Scud Stock (Fujian) Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin held 70% (2018: 70%)
RERRMD shareholding interest.

Scud Technology
HRERRTIR

Scud Power Technology

REBRE) R

Fujian Youtong

BEE

Fuzhou Shanghe
M A

EBTEB New Energy
ZIARHTRLIR

Scud School
RERBR

BERERBRNDBERIF]  TEAEERFBZRAT0% (20185 : 70% ) Itk

Fujian Scud Technology Co., Ltd., a company in which Mr. Fang Jin held 18% (2018:
18%) shareholding interest.
BERERBHZARAT - FEREERFBEZLF18% (20185 : 18% ) XiE

Fujian Scud Power Technology Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder
holding 94.55% (2018: 94.55%) shareholding interest of the company being the son of
Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company

BEREBRBNOEHAR AT - HAZRA94.55% (20184 : 94.55% ) IREME S RARF
RARBERBRRA @ FRELTF

Fujian Youtong Industrial Co., Ltd., a company of which Mr. Fang Jin was a director

BERBEFARAR  HEEERRARNES

Fuzhou Shanghe Electronics Co., Ltd., a company with its director and shareholder holding
45.45% (2018: 45.45%) shareholding interest of the company being the son of Mr.
Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the Company

BN EMEFARAR - HHZRAA5.45% (201845 : 45.45% ) RIEMNEE MR /AR
AR A S EEZ T

EBTEB New Energy Technology Co., Ltd., a company wholly owned by Fuzhou Shanghe
and with its director being the son of Mr. Fang Jin, the controlling shareholder of the
Company

SEFHEREEARAR  —HEEN EME2ERBENAR BEEES AR ARIERRES
ShEZT

Fujian Scud Senior Technician Training School, a company of which Mr. Fang Jin was a
director and had beneficial interest

BERERSAZTIHIER  —HI2EAEREZYHEEL W AR
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 5. BEAELRF (&)
(b) Transactions with related companies during the year (b) IWERBIIEHRER EAEE D I E R F A LR

not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are BREZENRZ BT

192

summarised as follows:

2019 2018
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARETT
Rental expenses paid to: ENASREY:
Scud Stock (Note i) RERRN (M) 19111 18,031
Scud Technology (Note i) RERRRH (i) 868 1.276
Rental income received from: ERASMA:
Scud Stock (Note i FERRAR (i) 5,618 936
Purchases of finished goods from: (Note iv) FRsm < (Fisy)
Scud Power Technology REREG IR = 8
EBTEB New Energy SERATER 3,624 26,972
Purchases of raw materials from: (Note iv) FERMH (M)
Scud Power Technology RERB NS = 136
EBTEB New Energy HERER 157,706 35,767
Scud School REBZR 4 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BENE - BEREE ()
from: (Note v)
Scud Power Technology RERE NEHE = 103
EBTEB New Energy HERER = 11,363
Scud School RERER 62 -
Processing fee to: (Note ) SRMIET : (Hizkv)
Scud Power Technology RERE R = 1,550
EBTEB New Energy SRR 34 =
Inspection fee to: (Note vii) TRBBET : (M)
EBTEB New Energy SERER = 530
Scud School RERER = 88
Training expense to: (Note ix) SAENERT : (i)
Scud School RERER 1,292 =
Research and development expense to: (Note x) IRFRERT : (i)
EBTEB New Energy SEREIER 38 =
Sales of finished goods to: (Note iv) HEAKRT : (M)
Scud Power Technology RERE NRHE = 240
Scud School RERER = 6
Sales of raw material to: (Note iv) HERMET (M)
Scud Power Technology RERB R = 416
EBTEB New Energy HERER 5,853 3,103
Fujian Youtong RERBE - 554
Sales of property, plant and equipment to: (Note vi) HENE  BERXET « (M)
Scud Power Technology RERS NRE = 415
Scud School REBZR = 3
Interest income charged from EBTEB New Energy (Note viil) [ 5B RUUR| E M A (M 2hviil) 148 587




35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The above transactions were made at prices and terms
as agreed between the parties in the normal course of
business.

Notes:

(i)

On 30 December 2016, Scud Electronics (as lessee)
and Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “New First Lease Agreement”) to
extend the lease period of the existing leased premises
for the period commencing from 1 January 2017 and
ending on 31 December 2019. The annual rental for
the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB14,325,000, and the annual rental for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was approximately
RMB14,325,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018. Scud
Electronics and Scud Stock mutually agreed to forfeit
the rental for one of the leased premise under the
New First Lease Agreement with a relevant amount
of RMB1,080,000 as the premise is still under
construction up to 30 June 2018.

On 30 December 2016, Scud Battery (as lessee) and
Scud Stock (as lessor) entered into a lease renewal
agreement (the “New Second Lease Agreement”)
to extend the lease period of the existing leased
premises for the period commencing from 1 January
2017 and ending on 31 December 2019. The annual
rental for the years ending 31 December 2019 was
approximately RMB4,786,000.

The rental payable under the New First Lease
Agreement and the New Second Lease Agreement
were determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Scud Electronics, Scud Battery and Scud
Stock with reference to the market rental for similar
properties nearby in the PRC and having taken into
account availability of similar premises nearby and the
cost of relocation.
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35. BEALRF &)

(b)

(%)

ARG TN —REHBRETEABES
1% B (E AR R AGRTETT

fiE

(i)

M2016512H30H » R £ BB & +
(tERAMA) BRERKRMD(EAT
AN ERR R E—HHEAE
Wzl MERBAHEWE A
B - FHHIB2017F1A1H#£=2019
F128318 k- & Z2018F12A
BSMALEFEZFERSNAARE
14,325,000t © K& & £2019F12 8
BMMBLEFEZ2FEREHNAARE
14,325,0007T °

HZE2018F12831H ILFE » RE
BRE FER TN —HEAENE
F—HOHERZETES—HH
EMENEe . HESEAARE
1,080,0007C * A AZYWH*EZE2018
F6A0RNERREF -

M20165E12A308 © REREM(/E
BAERBAN)ERERBKMD(EA KA
NEvERpZR(E-_HFEER
&) LERBEHEMFE 2 HE
FHHI 520171 A1H #£ £2019412
A31H 1k » & £2019F12A31H 1t
FEZFEREHAARE4 786,000

JT °©

F—EHEBRIE _OFEER
A THRNESKAERERET - R
ERREM RRERBAD L2 E B
TR 2 5 E S B K AR
D% 2 AT A R AR B AR AN X o
PREERE °
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

194

(b)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)

On 16 May 2018, Scud Electronics (as lessee) and
Scud Technology (as lessor) entered into another lease
agreement (the “Third Lease Agreement”) for the
period commencing 1 June 2018 and ending on 31
May 2021. The annual rental was RMB2,084,000 and
payable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 1 June 2019, Scud Electronics and Scud Technology
mutually agreed to early terminate the Third Lease
Agreement, effective from 1 June 2019.

The rental payable under the Third Lease Agreement
was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Scud Electronics and Scud Technology with
reference to the market rental for similar properties
nearby in the PRC and having taken into account
availability of similar premises nearby and the cost of
relocation.

On 31 October 2018, Scud Battery (as lessor) and
Scud Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease agreement
(the “Fourth Lease Agreement”) for the period
commencing 1 November 2018 and ending on 31
December 2018. The monthly rental was RMB468,200
and receivable by cash on a monthly basis.

On 31 December 2018, Scud Battery (as lessor) and Scud
Stock (as lessee) entered into a lease agreement (the
“Fifth Lease Agreement”) pursuant to which Scud Battery
agreed to lease certain premises to Scud Stock for the
period commencing from 1 January 2019 and ending on
31 December 2019. The annual rental was RMB5,618,000
and receivable by cash on a monthly basis.

The rental receivable under the Fourth Lease Agreement
and the Fifth Lease Agreement were determined after
arm’s length negotiations between Scud Battery and
Scud Stock with reference to the market rental for
similar properties nearby in the PRC and having taken
into account availability of similar premises nearby and
the cost of relocation.

The selling prices of finished goods, work-in-progress
and raw materials are determined and agreed by both
parties.

The selling price of property, plant and equipment is
determined and agreed by both parties.

The processing fee is determined by both parties.
The inspection fee is determined by both parties.

The interest rate applied on the loan is determined
and agreed by both parties.

The training expense is determined by both parties.

The research and development expense is determined
by both parties.

35 BEALRF )

(b)

(%)

BeE - (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@

(d)

Other transaction with related party:

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Fang Jin has guaranteed
certain bank facilities made to the subsidiaries of the
Group of up to an amount of RMB579,688,000 (2018:
RMB370,598,000).

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in
Note 10, is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194F 12431 H I F/E

35. BEALTRF (2)
© HEEBATHEMZS :

M2019F12A31H - & 5t £ 5 M &
SENBARRHESESRREAR
579,688,0007T(20184F : AFR#370,598,000
TORETIRITRVE B IR -

d FEEREASNHMS(2EMHMEI0A
KENEXNARARESME)MT :

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits 52 HAE B AR 3,678 3,433
Post-employment benefits BEER 122 A 24 34
3,702 3,467
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36. NOTE SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 36. TGS HERERWHET
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BB EEEEMNBELE

Obligation Amounts due

under Lease  Amounts due to related

Bank loans Other loans  finance lease liabilities to directors parties

EfiEE

BITER AbER  RERESE fHEEE EFESHE ALFE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2018 20181718 410,379 8431 2,350 - 5611 5733
Changes from cash flow Rengsy
Proceeds from new horrowings REFMEZZHEHE 754,469 20,000 - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BEER (788,615) (9,000) (2,350) = = =
Advance received BlEH - - - = - 44,504
Repayment of advances b - - - - (5,234) -
Interest paid RS (26,134) (1,256) (24) = = =
Other changes: e
Foreign exchange movement MEZ 4315 - - = = =
Interest expense MERR 26,134 1,25 % - - =
Balance at 31 December 2018 W2018F12A31 BERARES 2
as originally presented pega 380,548 19,431 - - 377 50,237
Initial application of IFRS 16 BRERBREBFREERE 6% = = = 24,591 - -
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 201951 B1B 7 B8 380,548 19,431 = 24,591 377 50,237
Changes from cash flow Rengsy
Proceeds from new borrowings REFERFEIE 1,055,882 - - - - -
Repayment of borrowings BRERN (854,966) (10,038) - - - -
Repayment of principal portion of leases  EEMEZ AL LA - - - (24.273) - -
Advances received Bl = - - - 3 -
Repayment of advances BEHT - - - - - (38,589)
Interest paid ZAFE (24,891) (825) = = = =
Other changes: e
Foreign exchange movement HEEH 1225 = = - - =
Capitalisation of new leases FHEEAlL - - - 8,127 = =
Interest expense FEmY 24,891 825 - 1453 - -
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 582,689 9393 - 9,898 409 11,648

196



SCUD GROUP LIMITED

REBREERRAA
ANNUAL REPORT %R 2019

37. COMMITMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IS ERERMIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194F 12431 H I F/E
37. AR 25

(a) BEFREE
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT

Contracted but not accounted for, in respect B stiESWE « HE&
of acquisition of property, plant and RAERTAE R ASR

equipment

24,220 3,130

Operating lease commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding minimum commitments under non-cancellable

(b) REBSFEE
RB|ERR - AEERBETAIRBELLH
ERAT BRI L REFHR&E

operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall AER
due as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Within one year —F R 75 23,397
In the second and fifth years inclusive —ERF(ERMEREEA) 49 2,685
124 26,082

None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group
does not have an option to purchase the leased land and
buildings at the expiry of the lease periods.

FRBOLTERAREE - NREERE
HERRTEBEHS T RNETHERE
o
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irE RS ER R MIEE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194 12431 H I F/Z
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  38. 1 8ERIZo>eR T HE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIFEHER - ZEAem T AMERMENT :

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised costs REBERATENSRMEE
Trade receivables FEURE 55818 2,213,125 2,075,408
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATEM IR © RS R E M FEWRIER
deposits and other receivables SREE 15,982 42,956
Amounts due from related parties FEURBAZE A T-5K18 152,259 283,809
Pledged bank deposits B AIRITIF 977,454 978,011
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 406,197 182,659
3,765,017 3,562,843
Financial assets at FVTOCI BRAFEFAHMGEZARENESRMEE
Notes receivables FE =T 116,649 89,978
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Financial liabilities S@Mas
Financial liabilities at amortised costs REHERATENEHEH
Trade and notes payables R E S TE M R =5 3,346,741 3,301,930
Financial liabilities included in other T AEALFESFRIE - FEWRGRIE R
payables, receipts in advance and accrued  EEFEANSEBEE
charges 24,687 30,734
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,898 =
Bank loans IRITEX 582,689 380,548
Other loans HEMER 9,393 19,431
Amount due to directors Bt EE IR 409 377
Amounts due to related parties FEASTRAZE A T-5R18 11,648 50,237
3,985,465 3,783,257
The above financial instruments which are measured at amortised FHMAEEXN AT ENSRT A - AEGHE
costs are not measured at fair value due to their short-term AU ATFEAE - U EERTEMNEEEE
nature. The carrying values of the above financial instruments BEENTERE °

approximate their fair values.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 39. ¢mEAREERESM T A2 A
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Y&

(a) ERERERE

(a) Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks, which include market risk (including foreign currency

risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk. Details of the policies on how to mitigate these risks

are set out below. The directors manage and monitor these

exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented

on a timely and effective manner.

(i)

Interest rate risk management

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which are all short-
term in nature and carry fixed interest rates. Interest-
bearing financial liabilities are mainly bank loans
with fixed interest rates; therefore, the Group is not
exposed to significant fair value interest rate risk due
to the short maturity of the items. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy and will
consider enter into interest rate hedging should the
need arise.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
assuming that a change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

FEENFHERZEESMAR - B
FIBEB(SIENERR - FIEERRE
BER)  EERBRRADERR - 5B
REZERROBEEOFBERRTX - &
EEEREEREAB - R R LA
BT R B R P -

(i) FIERREE
AREREEIEREHMENDE
MIRITERLIRITHAER - HREER
KB A EERABEERRERE
MERFFEMRITER : At - A&KE
FAETRAMIIHAE - #UtW A
AREANDFENRER - A%E
I8y 7 S5 (AR 1) 2R S R 3R K i 2
R FERFET LA S o

MERYRBED T
ATHSRE ST R A EEEH D
RBERRBELEMETE - YERAR
IRZBEAXRESBITAZAH
KRB -RAZREEEABREMN
o [ i Y P P 5 B {6 PR 38 A sl
1% DEEBEEHNEAESEE
82 7 o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(i)

(i)

200

Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's
profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 would
decrease/increase and the accumulated losses as
of 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB5,827,000 (2018: the accumulated
losses would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB3,805,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group's exposure, to interest rates on its variable rate
bank balances, pledged bank deposits and bank loans.

The Group’s bank balance also expose it to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the
prevailing market interest rate on the bank balances.
The directors consider the Group’s exposure on the
bank deposits is not significant as interest-bearing
deposits are within short maturity periods in general.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not
changed significantly from prior year.

Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements
in foreign currency exchange rates which will affect
the Group’s financial results and its cash flows.
Although the Group has certain bank balances and
bank loans denominated in United States dollars,
Japanese Yen, Indian Rupee and Hong Kong dollars,
the proportion of these foreign currency balances to
the Group's total assets is insignificant. Furthermore,
the Group carries out majority of its transactions in
Chinese Renminbi. Accordingly, in the opinion of the
directors, the Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk.

.¢mEREEREBMIAEZA
EE=)

(a) ERIAREEZ)

()

(i)

FIF R EE (&)
FIEGBRBE DT (&)

i ) R 48 h0 8k A1 % T FIT A8 E b 8
HMERTE  REEEZE2019512
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KEZE2019F12A31 A RET BB
#5380, 6 A 49 A R #65,827,0007T
(20184 : RETEIERIG I, R4
AR3,805,0007T) ° WIHEERE
REMMZRRITHASS  DEBRITE
AR RITE SR T ERR o
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AEBNRITARTHBRRSRERN
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iii) Price risk management

(iv)

In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not
have significant exposure to price risk.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk
primarily relates to the Group’s bank balances, trade
and notes receivables, and other receivables. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that
the counterparties fail to perform their obligations
as at end of the financial year in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the statement
of financial position. In order to minimise the risk,
management of the Group closely monitors overdue
debts. The recoverable amount of each individual
debt is reviewed at each of the reporting period and
adequate allowance for doubtful debts has been made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that credit risk associated
with the Group's trade and notes receivables, and
other receivables is significantly reduced.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has a certain level of concentration of credit
risk as approximately 33.0% (2018: 38.2%) and
approximately 74.5% (2018: 59.7%) of the total trade
and notes receivables, arising from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

The credit risk on bank balances is minimal because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-rating.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical location is mainly in the PRC.
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.2mEREEREBMIAE 2D
FE®)

(a) LRRAREREZ)
(iii) BEEEERE

(iv)

EERA/AKEY EEEEAERE

&2 o

FERREE
FERBRESFTIEITANEEMS
BAKEMBERNRER - NEBEN
ERAERTEEAREMNRITER
W E ZHIAR KR - AREM
FERKIBRR o WEFHIRMBEFE
RREBITRSERSECHRTHE
ENEE - EERRNKZSERSH
BARKAZEFEENREE &
TEERERR AERENEEER
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 390. ¢ BEREERESM T A2 A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EEE)
(Continued)
(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) ERIAREEZ)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2018:

As at 31 December 2019

(iv) EREBEEE)

AEBRBENFRABREERE
(R R R E) S BT ERK
BI AN BIREE - iR AEEB
EEEBEBRERI AR TEETLDE
ERBETRMEBERRN - BRI KL
AEETREFEHEBE—FRORE
BRIEREH N EBRRYE -

TRIZEA EAAREERN20195F12 A
318 K2018F 12 A31HFTE R
BRERBRKEKE ZFBNEHREEE
BRER

R20195F12H31H

As at 31

Carrying Dec 2019

amount ECLs allowance A20195

ARMEE TRHAfE B B R s 12A831H

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT % ARETT AR¥TR

0 to 60 days 0£60H 1,722,457 0.49% (8,505) 1,713,952
61 to 180 days 612180H 465,676 0.54% (2,503) 463,173
181 to 365 days 1812365H 37,167 3.14% (1,167) 36,000
Total F ey 2,225,300 (12,175) 2,213,125
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N Yb L E B
RE RS R AR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE20194F 12431 H I F/E

.2mEREEREBMIAE 2D
FE®)

(a) €RIEEEZE)
(iv) EERBRERE(E)
MR2018%F 12 H31H

As at 31

Carrying Dec 2018

amount ECLs allowance R20184F

BREE TRHE B AR 128318

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT % AR¥ETT ARETT

0 to 60 days 0£260H 1,610,290 0.50% (7,986) 1,602,304
61 to 180 days 612180H 443,208 0.52% (2,454) 440,754
181 to 365 days 1812365H 35,646 9.25% (3,296) 32,350
Total HEt 2,089,144 (13,736) 2,075,408

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has
been collected, current conditions and the group’s
view of economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

BHEEXDERNBEIFHNERE
B - ZFNEREBRABUARBRIL
SE S BB RN « B AT
SUA R AR B S A ORTA S &
RERANBLEZRNESR -
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 39. ¢ R EAMKMEENESRMIAE 2N
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS FE®)
(Continued)

(a) SEEBEEE)
(iv) EEREBRERE &)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

204

The Group has adopted general approach to measure
ECLs on financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and other financial
assets at amortised costs. Under the general approach,
the Group applies the “3-stage” impairment model
for ECLs measurement based on change in credit risk
since initial recognition as follows:

— Stage 1: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the financial instrument is
included in Stage 1.

— Stage 2: If the credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 2.

—  Stage 3: If the financial instrument is credit-
impaired, the financial instrument is included in
Stage 3.

The ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 1 are
measured at an amount equivalent to 12-month ECLs
whereas the ECLs for financial instruments in Stage 2
or Stage 3 are measured at an amount equivalent to
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the risk of default
has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the
Group's historical experience and informed credit risk
assessment and including forward-looking information.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 731H 1F F/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 39. ¢mEAREERESM T A2 A

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS EE®)

(Continued)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) €RIEEEZE)
(iv) Credit risk management (Continued) (iv) EEREERE(E)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is considered as credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired include observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

() granting a concession to the debtors that
the lender would not otherwise consider for
economic or contractual reasons relating to the
debtor’s financial difficulty; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure of default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and adjusted for forward-looking information
through the use of industry trend and experienced
credit judgment to reflect the qualitative factors, and
through the use of multiple probability-weighted
scenarios.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
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(a) Financial risk management (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk management (Continued)

(v)

The loss allowance for financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at
31 December 2018 reconciles to the opening loss
allowance on 1 January 2019 and to the closing loss

.¢mEREEREBMIAEZA

E{E @)
(a) SREREEZ)

(iv) FERBREEE)

7201812 A31B &t ATER 7K IB

Re REMBEWRIBE CREEZE
BREEP2019F1818 2 F 5
BEEBRR2019F12A318 Z2F K

allowance as at 31 December 2019 are as follow: EEREZHEROT
2019 2018
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Opening loss allowance as R1A1B ZEAEERE
at 1 January 5,412 10,731
Impairment loss recognised BETATEMFIE © 2E RE MRS
on financial assets included 2 ERMEERRZREEE
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables 1,443 503
Reversal of impairment loss BEIERISEt ATERZRIE © e R EA
on financial assets included U TE @ B ERRZRERIE
in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
previously recognised (5,118) (3,368)
Written off i = (2,454)
Closing loss allowance as  R12831B ZEREERE
at 31 December 1,737 5,412
Liquidity risk management () FEBHEREE

The ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors, which
has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves,
banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.

REBREENEH  PHRRPE
ERFERDUEETENER BEFY
EEY—ERENRDECRARER
HE - TERBMRREREARKER
f - AEEBEBEFTEHRME R
TRERFEETRRE - RSREE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

V.eHAREEREMIAEZA
18 (@)

(a) Financial risk management (Continued) (a) sREREEZ)

(v) Liquidity risk management (Continued) (v) FGEMEREIE(E)

M20194F %2018 12A31H * A&
EremaERESTARIIERE

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2019 and 2018, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows: HEIEAE R -
2019
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
HR-F AER
HREX -25f BBLE REREHE REAHE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARETR AR%TR  ARETR
Trade and notes payables ENEFTERENSE 3,346,741 = - 3346741 3,346,741
Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AR LR FUE - BUFER
receipts in advance and accrued charges EAEAmERAR 24,687 - - 24,687 24,687
Lease liabilities HEAR 5311 7,430 - 12,14 9,898
Bank loans RIER 599,429 - - 599,429 582,689
Other loans EER 9,071 607 - 9,678 9,393
Amounts due to directors ENEZHE 409 - - 409 409
Amounts due to related parties FENBEALE 11,648 - - 11,648 11,648
3,997,296 8,037 - 4,005,333 3,985,465
2018
Less than 1 Total Total
year or on More than  undiscounted qarrying
demand 15 years 5 years cash flows amount
SR REH
HIREKX -2 BELEF HREnEEE REER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETR ARETRE ARETH
Trade and notes payables ENESZTERENSE 3,301,930 = - 3301930 3301,930
Financial liabilities included in other payables, st AR LR UE  BUFER
receipts in advance and accrued charges [EERNLREE 30,734 = = 30,734 30,734
Bank loans RITER 388,294 = = 388,294 380,548
Other loans EfER 10,863 9,678 - 20,541 19,431
Amounts due to directors ENEZHE 377 = = 377 377
Amounts due to related parties [ERBEALIE 50,237 = = 50,237 50,237
3,782,435 9,678 - 3,792,113 3,783,257
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39.

40.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Fair values of financial instruments

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities
with a maturity of less than one year are assumed to
approximate their fair values.

The fair value of balances with related parties has not been
determined as the timing of the expected cash flows of
these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of
the relationship.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group’s
policy is to maintain the gearing ratio below 60%. Net debt
includes interest-bearing borrowings. Capital includes equity
attributable to owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interests. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period
were as follows:

.¢mEREEREBMIAEZA

EE®
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 # %2019 12431 H 1 F/Z

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) 40. EXREE ()
2019 2018
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFT
Interest-bearing borrowings sHEER 592,082 399,979

Equity attributable to owners of the RNRATHER AR

Company 1,058,728 1,011,436
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR S 15,798 14,001
Total equity B 1,074,526 1,025,437
Gearing ratio BARE B 55.1% 39.0%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Group had

the following events:

(a)

(b)

On 25 February 2020, Scud Battery entered into a
construction agreement with Fuzhou Ting Jia Construction
Co.,
Battery conditionally agreed to engage Fuzhou Tingjia for

Ltd. (“Fuzhou Tingjia”), pursuant to which Scud

the provision of, and Fuzhou Tingjia conditionally agreed
to provide to Scud Battery, construction services for the
construction of a complex with a total construction area
of 64,842.03 square metres comprising dormitories and
related facilities including basement for the Group’s staff
and their family members in the Scud Battery Industrial
Park for a total consideration of RMB248,747,989. Further
details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 25 February 2020.

There has been an outbreak of pneumonia caused by
a new coronavirus which was subsequently named as
COVID-19 by the World Health Organisation (“WHO")
since the beginning of the year 2020. On 30 January 2020,
WHO declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a public health
emergency of international concern. WHO subsequently
characterised COVID-19 as a pandemic on 11 March
2020. The governments and authorities in many cities and
countries across the globe have implemented various severe

41. S{EHEREE
MR RIS - AEE AL TEIE -

(a)

7202092 256 + RERE M EFEIMNFE
ERRIEERAR(RBMERE] T E
B Bl RERELDEHRERESR
BRMEE - BRMNEEEEGERERR
EREMHENRERE N TERBEEHE
HAETER64,842.03F F K2 LR (BIE
Ba ki T ESEBEREN  UEAEES
BITREREKRBFER)REEERE
BRE R ANR248,747,9897T - #—
FHEHNAAE HER2020562 H258 8

At -

B2020F AR - —EHATERREER
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AT EEAER ] B R/COVID-19 » B
202051 A30R - tHEHAMSAHCOVID-19
BEABBREENREAXEESHF-
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41. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

measures in controlling the spread of COVID-19 such as
imposing travel restrictions and quarantine arrangements
on travellers, home confinement of residents and border
controls that are adversely affecting the global economy.
Nevertheless, whilst the control measures have affected
the business operations of the Group, it has not resulted
in material adverse impact on the Group’s 2020 financial
performance or financial position up to and as at the date
of approval of this set of consolidated financial statements.
Depending on the development of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group’s business operations may continue to be
affected if the control measures are not lifted. The duration
and intensity of this global health emergency and related
disruptions are uncertain. Given the dynamic nature of
the pandemic, the related adverse impact on the Group's
operations, financial performance, cash flows and financial
position for the year 2020 which may result from (amongst
others) the control measures could become material but
cannot be reasonably estimated as at the date of approval
of this set of consolidated financial statements. The Group
will closely monitor the development of the COVID-19
pandemic and react proactively to its impact on the Group's
business operations, financial performance, cash flows and
financial position for the year 2020.

The implementations of the control measures in response to
the COVID-19 pandemic are non-adjusting events after the
financial year end of 31 December 2019 and do not result
in any adjustments to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

42. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The

consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors of the Company
on 31 March 2020.
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RESULTS E S
The Group REHE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A318LEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT AREFT ARBFT ARBFT
Turnover 2] 7,395,203 6,962,078 5,801,566 6,061,477 4,509,441
Profit/(loss) before BRETISELAT
income tax swAl (Ei8) 56,227 105,280 20,290 (174,121) 41,536
Income tax FTiSHt (7,531) (9,196) (409) 49,288 (18,000)
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEZREF, (EE) 48,696 96,084 19,881 (124,833) 23,536
Profit/(loss) attributable to: ~ T%I] A /(L
smFl (E51R) -
Owners of the Company AR GIHEA A 52,543 93,274 21,125 (118,951) 38,168
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS R 2 (3,847) 2,810 (1,244) (5,882) (14,632)
48,696 96,084 19,881 (124,833) 23,536
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENRERE
The Group TEE
At 31 December
M12A31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARETTT ARETTT ARETFT ARBEFT
Total assets HEE 5,183,200 4,932,165 3,916,878 3,687,342 3,723,315
Total liabilities FCS= N (4,108,674) (3,906,728) (2,979,446) (2,776,755) (2,668,702)
1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432 910,587 1,054,613
Attributable to: THIA LA
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Y =N 1,058,728 1,011,436 926,183 898,094 1,025,750
Non-controlling interests IEIE = 15,798 14,001 11,249 12,493 28,863
1,074,526 1,025,437 937,432 910,587 1,054,613
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REYEFR

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES KREYE
Percentage of
interest
Total rental attributable to
Description Use Nature area the Group
B Ag 31 HARAEE AEEELER
A factory building and a warehouse building located at No. Manufacturing Short term 35,115 sg.m 100%
135, Rujiangdong Road, Mawei District, Fuzhou, Fujian facility leasehold 35,115 F 5K
Province, PRC HER MHEHE
AP EEZERNTEEERIRKI13RN—ELIERRE
REE
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SCUD Industrial Park

Fuzhou Pilot Free Trade Zone
No. 98 Jiangbin East Avenue
Mawei District, Fuzhou

Fujian Province, PRC

Room 1017, 10/F Leighton Centre
77 Leighton Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

www.scudgroup.com
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: (86) 591-63158388
: (86) 591-87307773

: (852) 28057888
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The annual general meeting of the Company will be held at a time to be announced in due course.
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On behalf of the Board of
SCUD Group Limited
Ho Chung Tai Raymond
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2020

As at the date of this announcement, the Board comprises Ms. Lian Xiu Qin and
Mr. Feng Ming Zhu being the executive Directors, Dr. Ho Chung Tai Raymond and Mr. Hou Li being
the non-executive Directors, and Mr. Heng Ja Wei Victor, Mr. Lam Yau Yiu and Dr. Wong Chi Wing
being the independent non-executive Directors.





